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"Strength and growth
come only through
continuous effort

and struggle’

— Napoleon Hill

At Man Industries, our unwavering focus on

growing not just ourselves but our employees,
clients, communities and channel partners will
see us evolve further in the foreseeable future.
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MISSION

Partnering with every

major global client
in oil, gas and water
sector by providing
quality solutions in
committed time line,
enhancing value for
stake holders.




Among leading
manufacturers of
large diameter pipes

25+

years in pipe
industry

2

state of the art
manufacturing
facility
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Financial
highlights

Groos Profit (Rs. Mn)/

Total Income Rs. Mn Groos Profit Margin (%) 1 9 (y

Total Income
'P Rs.21,110 Mn

27.3%
24.3%
28.9%
33.5%

EBIDTA*
Rs. 2,358 Mn
FY 18 FY 19 FY 20 FY 21 FY 18 FY 19 FY 20 FY 21
PAT
EBITDA* (Rs. Crs)/ PAT (Rs. Crs)/
Margin (%) Margin (%) T Rs. 1 ’009 Mn
- B oy EBIDTA Margin
11 2 AN 11.2%
PAT Margin
AN 4.8%
FY 18 FY 19 FY 20 FY 21 FY 18 FY 19 FY 20 FY 21 *EBIDTA including other income
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CHAIRMAN’S
STATEMENT
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Dear Shareowners,

A warm hello! I am pleased to share
with you the 33" Annual Report of
Man Industries (India) Limited and |
sincerely thank the Board for
providing me with this opportunity
and must say I'm deeply honoured to
addressyouall.

Over the past few years, Man
Industries has emerged as one of the
most innovative players in the pipes
and coating systems business. Your
Company's key differentiating factor
has always been its continued strong
leadership, consistent focus on
corporate governance, leveraging
existing capacities to drive growth
and foraying into newer synergistic
productlines.

The world is moving through an
unprecedented pandemic but the
Indian government's continued focus
and investments in the oil and gas
sector (which is the largest consumer
of steel pipes) will see Man Industries
explore newer heights in the
foreseeable future. We strongly
believe that with its demographic
advantage, India has a strong and
growing domestic demand. With the
Government of India announcing
slew of measures to bring the
economy back on track, we expect
that there will be strong demand for



Man Industries with its commitment of
providing innovative pipe solutions, is
poised to create a niche for itself in the
coming years. Looking forward to your
continuous support in your companys
endeavours.

our products from within. We expect that the
economy will soon start rebounding in the
foreseeable future. The Prime Minister's vision
forIndiain the throes of the Covid-19 pandemic
has ensured a steady transition to a self-reliant
India. Man Industries too is geared to be the
Global Indian company that epitomizes
'‘Atmanirbhar Bharat'. With the announcement
of the expansion of the National Gas Grid as well
as the CGD network, we're assured of sustaining
and increasing stakeholder value. Our order
books at the close of the fiscal was Rs 18,000 mn
asatMarch 31,2021.

The year 2020-21 was one of the most
challenging years for the entire economy as the
country witnessed decline in consumer
demand followed by a slowdown of GDP during
the year under review. In spite of these
headwinds, your company's performance was
robust recording highest profitability and
significant growth. We ended 2020-21 with a
28% growth in EBIDTA and a 19% growth in our
topline, even in these precarious times, and a
PAT up by 82% over the previous year!

In keeping with our continued focus on
corporate governance and in order to increase
cashflow we have divested our non-core
business activity and the Board has approved
the disinvestment of equity of our subsidiary
Merino Shelter Pvt. Ltd which was engaged in
real estate. We shall utilize the proceeds for our
capex and diversification plans. We're also

leveraging our existing capacity to drive growth
and achieve optimum utilization by consistent
debottlenecking and focusing on higher ticket
size projects and undertaking initiatives to
eliminate wastage through lean manufacture.

Lastly, we're continuously building leadership
at the helm and inducting fresh and young
talent. Mr. Nikhil Mansukhani, Executive
Director of the Company, who has many years
of experience in the pipe industry is our second
generation entrepreneur has been designated
by the Board as Managing Director of the
Company subject to the approval of
Shareholders. We're also pleased to have
appointed Mr. Narendra Maripady as
Independent Director, a banking professional
with more than 40 years of experience and the
Ex- Chairman of areputed national bank.

To conclude, Man Industries with its
commitment of providing innovative pipe
solutions, is poised to create a niche for itself in
the coming years. Looking forward to your
continuous support in your company's
endeavours.

Regards,

R.C.Mansukhani
Chairman - Man Industries (India) Ltd.
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COMPANY SYNOPSIS

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

MR. RAMESH C. MANSUKHANI
(Executive Chairman)

MR. NIKHIL R. MANSUKHANI
(Executive Director)

MRS. HEENA VINAY KALANTRI
(Non-Executive Director)

MR. PRAMOD TANDON
(Independent Director)

MR. NARENDRA MAIRPADY
(Independent Director)
w.ef 23" February 2021

MRS. RENU P. JALAN
(Independent Director)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

MR. PRAMOD TANDON (Chairman*)
MR. NIKHIL R. MANSUKHANI
MRS. RENU P. JALAN

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

MR. PRAMOD TANDON (Chairman)
MR. NIKHIL R. MANSUKHANI
MRS. RENU P JALAN

NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

MR. PRAMOD TANDON (Chairman*)
MRS. HEENA VINAY KALANTRI
MRS. RENU P. JALAN

(*wef 5" September 2020%)

MANAGEMENT TEAM

Mr. Ashok Gupta

Mr. Jatin Shah

Mr. Bhavesh Karia

Mr. Gurinder Singh Sethi
Mr. Durgesh Chokade

M/s. M. H. Dalal & Associates

Chief Financial Officer

Group Head - Legal & Secretarial

President - Marketing & Business Head

Vice President - Marketing & Business Development
Vice President - Anjar Plant

Statutory Auditors

BANKERS

State Bank of India
ICICI Bank

IDBI Bank

Union Bank of India
Bank of India

Exim Bank

The South India Bank

REGISTRAR AND SHARE TRANSFER AGENT
M/s. Link Intime India Private Limited
C-101, 247 Park,

L.B.S. Road, Vikhroli (West)

Mumbai - 400083

Phone : 022 - 49186000

Facsimile : 022 - 49186060

Email : rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in

REGISTERED OFFICE

MAN House, 101, S. V. Road,
Opp. Pawan Hans, Vile Parle (W),
Mumbai - 400056

Phone : 022 66477500
Facsimile : 022 - 66477600
Website : www.mangroup.com
Email : enquiry@maninds.org

PLANTS

Pipe and Coating Complex, Anjar
Khedoi Village, Taluka Anjar
District Kutch (Gujarat)

Pipe and Coating Complex, Pithampur
Plot No 257/258 B Sector |, Pithampur Industrial Area
Pithampur, District Dhar (Madhya Pradesh)
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NOTICE

MAN INDUSTRIES (INDIA) LIMITED
CIN: L99999MH1988PLC047408

Registered Office: Man House, 101, S.V. Road, Opp. Pawan Hans, Vile Parle (West), Mumbai- 400 056
Website: www.mangroup.com, Email: investor.relations@maninds.org
Tel. No.: 022 6647 7500, Fax No.: 022 6647 7600

NOTICE is hereby given that the 33" Annual General Meeting (the “Meeting”) of Man Industries (India) Limited will be held on
Wednesday, 29" Day of September, 2021 at 3:00 P.M. (IST) through Video Conference (“VC”) / Other Audio Visual Means
("OAVM") (“hereinafter referred to as“electronic mode”) to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company (including consolidated financial
statements) for the financial year ended March 31, 2021, together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors
thereon.

To confirm payment of the Interim Dividend of Rs. 2/- (i.e. 40%) per equity share already paid to eligible shareholders as the
Final Dividend for the financial year 2020-21.

To appoint a Director in place of Mrs. Heena Vinay Kalantri (DIN : 00149407), who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers
herselffor re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:
4, Ratification of the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditor for the financial year ending March 31,2022.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 148 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, M/s. M. P. Turakhia & Associates, Cost Accountants, be and are hereby
appointed as Cost Auditors by the Board of Directors to audit the cost records of the Company for the FY 2021-22, be paid a
remuneration of Rs.1,00,000/- (Rupees One Lac Only) plus applicable taxes and reimbursement of out of pocket expenses.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors and/or the Company Secretary, be and are hereby authorized to settle
any question, difficulty or doubt, that may arise in giving effect to this resolution and to do all such acts, deeds and things as
may be necessary, expedientand desirable for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution.”

Appointment of Mr. Narendra Mairpady (DIN:00536905) as an Independent Director of the Company.
To considerand if thoughtfit, to pass, with or without modification(s) the following resolution as Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 150 and 152 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013, and the Rules made thereunder, Schedule IV thereto and other applicable provisions of the said Act
and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, Mr. Narendra Mairpady (DIN: 00536905),
who was appointed by the Board of Directors of the Company as an Additional Director with effect from 23rd February, 2021
inthe category of Independent Director pursuant to the provisions of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 whose term of
office as Additional Director expires at this Annual General Meeting and who has submitted a declaration that she meets the
criteria forindependence as provided in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and who is eligible for appointment, be
and is hereby appointed as an Independent Director of the Company, not liable to retire by rotation, for a period of five (5)
consecutive yearstill 22nd February, 2026.

10 | Man Industries (India) Ltd.
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any Director or the Company Secretary of the Company be and are hereby authorised to file
requisite forms or applications with statutory/regulatory authorities and to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as
may be considered necessary and appropriate to give effect to this Resolution and to settle any question or doubt that may
ariseinthisregard.”

Change in designation of Mr. Nikhil Mansukhani (DIN:02257522) from Executive Director to Managing Director.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as Special Resolution:

RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 196, 197, 198 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with the Companies (Appointmentand Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,
2014, SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, Schedule V of the Act (including any
statutory modifications and re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), in partial modification of the earlier
resolution approved by the Shareholders at the Annual General Meeting (AGM) held on September 28,2018 wherein he was
re-appointed as Executive Director of the Company for a period of 5 (five) years, effective from October 3,2018 to October 2,
2023, liable to retire by rotation, and in partial modification of the Resolution passed in the meeting of the Board of Directors
held on June 23, 2020 wherein his remuneration was restructured by Board within the limit of his total remuneration
approved by the Shareholders at the aforesaid AGM, with a view to minimize the tax burden on his remuneration due to the
change in the Income Tax provisions by Finance Act, 2020 in relation to taxation on the employer's contribution to the
Provident Fund, and pursuant to the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the approval
of the Board of Directors in their meeting held on August 9, 2021, the consent of the members of the Company be and is
hereby accorded for change in designation of Mr. Nikhil Mansukhani (DIN: 02257522) from 'Executive Director' to
'Managing Director' of the Company (w.e.f. October 01, 2021), at the same remuneration as restructured by the Board
earlier as set out below, till the remaining period of his current tenurei.e. till October 2,2023:

SALARY (Basic):Rs. 12,50,938 p.m.

INCREMENT : The increment for every financial year shall be minimum 10% to maximum of 30% subject to approval of the
Board and subject to overall ceiling limits as laid down under the Companies Act.

COMMISSION: Commission based on net profits of the Company in a particular year, which put together with salary and
perquisites shall be subject to overall ceiling laid down in Sections 197 of the Companies Act' 2013 shall be paid.

HOUSING: Free furnished accommodation. In case no accommodation is provided by the Company, he shall be entitled to
House Rent Allowance in lieu thereof @ 60% of salary. Value of perquisite to be calculated as per Income Tax Act.

MEDICAL REIMBURSEMENT: Expenses incurred for self and family, equivalent to one month's salary every year or three
months'salaryinfiveyears.

LEAVE TRAVEL CONCESSION/ALLOWANCE: Expenses incurred for self and family. Value of perquisite to be calculated as per
IncomeTaxAct.

INSURANCE: Actual Premium to be paid by the Company.
LEAVE: Leave accumulated shall be encashable at the end of the tenure as per the Company rules.

CAR, DRIVER & TELEPHONE/CELL PHONE: Car, Driver and phone including mobile phone facilities will be provided by the
Company for personal and official use. Expenses related to personal use to be treated as perquisites as per IT Rules.

REIMBURSEMENT OF CLUB AND ENTERTAINMENT EXPENSES: Actual expenses to be borne by the Company.

EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTION TO RETIREMENT FUNDS LIKE EMPLOYEES PROVIDENT FUND (EPF), NATIONAL PENSION SYSTEM
(NPS), ORANY OTHER SUPERANNUATION FUND:Rs. 62,500 p.m.

GRATUITY AND RETIREMENT BENEFITS: To be paid as per the rules of the Company.

The above may be treated as a written memorandum setting out the terms of re-appointment of Mr. Nikhil Mansukhani
under Section 190 of the Act.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the above remuneration payable to Mr. Nikhil Mansukhani for the remaining period of his
current tenure i.e. till October 2, 2023, shall be considered as minimum remuneration in case the Company has no profits or
the profits of the Company are inadequate in any financial year, notwithstanding that such remuneration may exceed the
limits specified under Section 197 and ScheduleV of the Act.
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT except for the change set out hereinabove, all other terms and conditions of Mr. Nikhil
Mansukhani's appointment as approved by the Shareholders at their Annual General Meeting held on September 28,2018
shallremain unchanged unless otherwise modified by the Board of Directors of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any Director or the Company Secretary of the Company be and are hereby authorised to file
requisite forms or applications with statutory/regulatory authorities and to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as
may be considered necessary and appropriate to give effect to this Resolution and to settle any question or doubt that may
ariseinthisregard.”

Place: Mumbai
Date:August9,2021 By order of the Board of Directors

Regd. Office:

'MAN HOUSE' JatinShah
101,S.V.Road, Opp.Pawan Hans, Company Secretary
Vile Parle (West), Mumbai-400056

12 | Man Industries (India) Ltd.
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NOTES FOR MEMBERS’ ATTENTION
VIRTUAL MEETING

In view of the continuing COVID-19 pandemic, to ensure social distancing norms, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”)
has, vide its circular dated January 13, 2021 read together with circulars dated April 08, 2020, April 13,2020 and May 05, 2020
(collectively referred to as “MCA Circulars”) permitted convening the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) through Video
Conferencing (“VC") or Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM), without the physical presence of the members at a common
venue. In accordance with the MCA Circulars, provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”), the
AGM of the Company is being held through VC/OAVM. The deemed venue for the AGM shall be the Registered Office of the
Company.

Generally, a member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on a poll
instead of himself and the proxy need not be a member of the Company. Since this AGM is being held through VC / OAVM
pursuant to the MCA Circulars, physical attendance of members has been dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility for
appointment of proxies by the members will not be available for the AGM and hence the Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are
not annexed hereto. Further, the members participating through the VC/OAVM shall be reckoned for the purpose of quorum
under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”).

ELECTRONICCOPY OF ANNUAL REPORT AND NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

a) Incompliance with the MCA Circulars and SEBI Circular dated January 15, 2021, Notice of the AGM along with the Annual
Report2020-21is being sent only through electronic mode to those Members whose e-mail addresses are registered with
the Company/ Depositories.

Members may note that the Notice and Annual Report 2020-21 will also be available on the Company’s website
www.mangroup.com, websites of the Stock Exchanges, i.e. BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited at
www.bseindia.com and www.nseindia.com respectively and website of Link Intime India Private Limited (“LIIPL") i.e.
https://instavote.linkintime.co.in.

UPDATION OF PAN, BANKDETAILS, EMAILIDSETC.

a) SEBI has mandated submission of Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every participant in the securities market.
Members holding shares in electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit their PAN details to their depository
participants. Members holding shares in physical form are requested to submit their PAN details to the Company’s RTA.

Members holding shares in dematerialised form are requested to intimate all changes pertaining to their bank
details/NECS/mandates, nominations, power of attorney, change of address/name, PAN details, email address etc. to their
Depository Participant only and not to the Company or the Registrar and Share Transfer Agents (RTA) of the Company.The
Company or its RTA cannot act on any such request received directly from the members. Changes intimated to the
Depository Participant will be automatically reflected in the Company’s records which will help the Company and its RTA
provide efficientand better service to the members.

In case of members holding shares in physical form, such information is required to be provided to the Company’s RTA. A
‘KYC Form'is given in this Annual Report for capturing the above details. Members are requested to send the duly filled in
‘KYC Form’to the RTA. In addition, they can also register their email address and/or update their Bank Account detail by
clicking on the link https://linkintime.co.in/emailreg/email_register.html provided by Registrar and Share Transfer Agent
ofthe Company.

STATEMENT UNDERSECTION 102 OF THEACT

The Explanatory Statement in terms of the provisions of Section 102(1) of the Act, which sets out details relating to special
business to be transacted at the meeting forms part of this notice.

Also, relevant details with respect of Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment at the AGM, in terms of regulation 36 of
the SEBI Listing Regulations, Secretarial Standards on General Meetings, are annexed to this notice.

PROXY

The AGM is being held pursuant to the MCA Circulars through VC / OAVM, physical attendance of Members has been
dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility forappointment of proxies by the Members will not be available for the AGM. Hence,
the Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are not annexed to this Notice.
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AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVE

Institutional / Corporate Shareholders (i.e. other than individuals / HUF, NRI, etc.) are required to send a scanned copy
(PDF/JPG Format) of its Board or governing body Resolution/Authorization etc., authorizing its representative to
attend the AGM throughVC/OAVM oniits behalf and to vote through remote e-voting.

The said Resolution/Authorization shall be sent to the Scrutinizer by e-mail through its registered e-mail addressed to Mr.
Jayant Suthar, Proprietor, J. Suthar & Associates at cs.jaysuthar@gmail.com with a copy marked to Company’s email ID at
investor.relations@maninds.org, not less than 48 (forty eight) hours before the commencement of the AGM i.e. by 3:00 p.m.
on Monday, September27,2021.

INFORMATION FORNON-RESIDENT INDIAN SHAREHOLDERS

Non-resident Indian shareholders are requested to immediately inform the Company/ RTA, if shares are held in
physical mode or to their DP, if the holding is in electronic mode, regarding change in the residential status on return to
India for permanent settlementand/or the particulars of the NRE account with abankin India, if not furnished earlier.

BOOKCLOSURE PERIOD

The Register of Members and the Share Transfer Books of the Company shall remain closed from Thursday,
September 23, 2021 to Wednesday, September 29, 2021 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of Annual General
Meeting.

TRANSFER OF SHARES ONLY AFTER DEMATERLISATION

As per SEBI mandate no requests for effecting transfer of shares except in case of transmission or transposition of shares shall
be processed unless the shares are held in the dematerialized form with a depository. Hence, investors are requested to
demat their physical holding of shares for any further transfer. Members can contact the Company’s RTA for assistance in this
regard.

TRANSFER OF UNPAID/UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND AND RELATED SHARES TO IEPF

Unclaimed dividend for the Financial Years 2013-14 to 2020-21 are lying in the respective unpaid dividend accounts of the
Company. Members wishing to claim dividends, which remain unclaimed, are requested to approach the Registrar & Transfer
Agent or the Company. Members are requested to note that dividends that are not claimed within seven years from the date
of transfer to the Company’s Unpaid Dividend Account, will, as per Section 124 of the Companies Act, 2013, be transferred to
the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) established by the Central Government. Further all shares in respect of
which dividend has not been claimed for seven consecutive years or more shall also be transferred to the IEPF as per section
124 of the Actand the applicablerules.

The respective due dates of transfer of the unclaimed dividend and the underlying shares are mentioned under the
heading ‘Unclaimed Dividend’ in the ‘Corporate Governance’ section of the Annual Report. Shareholders whose
shares or unclaimed dividend has been transferred to the Fund may claim the said shares or unclaimed dividend by
making an applicationin Form IEPF 5 and submission of the prescribed documents to the Fund.

E-VOTING

Pursuant to Section 108 of the Act, rule 20 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, as
amended, Regulation 44 of SEBI Listing Regulations and the MCA Circulars, the Company is pleased to provide the
facility to Members to exercise their right to vote, on the resolutions proposed to be passed at AGM, by electronic
means.

The Company has engaged the services of LIIPL to provide the remote e-voting facility on InstaVote and the e-voting
system on the date of the AGM on InstaMeet.

The Company has appointed Mr. Jayant Suthar, Proprietor of M/s J. Suthar & Associates Company Secretaries
(holding membership no. FCS 8779) to act as the Scrutinizer and to scrutinize the entire e-voting process (i.e. remote e-voting
and e-voting atthe AGM) in afairand transparent manner.
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REMOTEE-VOTING: IMPORTANT DATES

Cut-off date :

For determining the Members entitled to vote on the Wednesday, September 22, 2021
resolutions set forth in this notice.

Remote e-voting period :

During this period, members of the Company as on the End at:
cut-off date may cast their vote by remote e-voting. 5.00 p.m., Tuesday, September 28, 2021

Commence from :
9:00 a.m., Saturday, September 25, 2021

[ Remote e-voting module shall be disabled for voting
thereafter by LIIPL ]

REMOTE E-VOTING : PROCEDURE

Type of shareholders

Login Method

Individual Shareholders holding
securities in demat mode with
NSDL

If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e-Services website of
NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com either
on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Services is launched,
click on the“Beneficial Owner”icon under“Login”which is available under’‘IDeAS’section.
Anew screen will open.You will have to enter your User ID and Password.

After successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services. Click on “Access
to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on
company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be re-directed to e-Voting
service provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or
joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at
https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register Online for IDeAS “Portal or click at
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp

Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL:
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the
home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available
under‘Shareholder/Member’section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your
User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and
a Verification Code as shown on the screen. After successful authentication, you will be
redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company
name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service
provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual
meeting & voting during the meeting.

Individual Shareholders holding
securities in demat mode with
CDSL

Existing user of who have opted for Easi/ Easiest, they can login through their user id and
password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page without any further
authentication. The URL for users to login to Easi / Easiest are
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or www.cdslindia.com and click on New
System Myeasi.

After successful login of Easi / Easiest the user will be also able to see the E Voting Menu.
The Menu will have links of e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL, KARVY, LINK NTIME, CDSL.
Clickon e-Voting service provider nameto cast your vote.

If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi./Registration/EasiRegistration

Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing demat Account
Number and PAN No. from a link in  www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will
authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the
demat Account. After successful authentication, user will be provided links for the
respective ESP where the EVotingisin progress.
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Type of shareholders Login Method

Individual Shareholders (holding You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your
securities in demat mode) & Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility.
login through their depository

Oncelogin, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Once you click on e-Voting option, you
participants

will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, wherein
you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name
and you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote
during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

Individual Shareholders holding |

securities in Physical mode &
evoting service Provider is » Clickon“Sign Up” under ‘SHARE HOLDER’ tab and register with your following details: -

. Opentheinternet browserandlaunch the URL: https://instavote.linkintime.co.in

LINKINTIME. A. User ID: Shareholders/ members holding shares in physical form shall provide
EventNo.(210386) + Folio Number registered with the Company.

PAN: Enter your 10-digit Permanent Account Number (PAN) (Members who have
not updated their PAN with the Depository Participant (DP)/ Company shall use the
sequence number provided to you, if applicable.

DOB/DOI: Enter the Date of Birth (DOB) / Date of Incorporation (DOI) (As recorded
withyour DP/Company -in DD/MM/YYYY format)

D. Bank Account Number: Enter your Bank Account Number (last four digits), as
recorded with your DP/Company.

Shareholders/ members holding shares in physical form but have not recorded ‘C’ and ‘D;
shall provide their Folio numberin‘D’above

» Set the password of your choice (The password should contain minimum 8 characters, at
least one special Character (@#5&%), at least one numeral, at least one alphabet and at least
one capital letter).

» Click“confirm”(Your password is now generated).

2. Clickon‘Login’'under‘SHARE HOLDER' tab.

3. Enteryour User ID, Password and Image Verification (CAPTCHA) Code and click on “‘Submit’
. After successful login, you will be able to see the notification for e-voting. Select‘View’icon.
. E-voting page willappear.

. Refer the Resolution description and cast your vote by selecting your desired option
‘Favour / Against’ (If you wish to view the entire Resolution details, click on the ‘View
Resolution’file link).

. After selecting the desired option i.e. Favour / Against, click on ‘Submit’. A confirmation
box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on ‘Yes; else to change your
vote, clickon’No'and accordingly modify your vote.

Institutional shareholders:

Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are required to log on the e-voting system of
LIIPL at https://instavote.linkintime.co.in and register themselves as ‘Custodian / Mutual Fund / Corporate Body" They are also
required to upload a scanned certified true copy of the board resolution /authority letter/power of attorney etc. together with
attested specimen signature of the duly authorised representative(s) in PDF format in the ‘Custodian / Mutual Fund / Corporate
Body’ login for the Scrutinizer to verify the same.

Individual Shareholders holding securities in Physical mode & evoting service Provider is LINKINTIME, have forgotten the
password:

o Clickon'Login'under'SHARE HOLDER' tab and further Click 'forgot password?'
o EnterUserlID, select Mode and EnterImage Verification (CAPTCHA) Code and Click on 'Submit".
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* Incaseshareholders/membersis having valid email address, Password will be sent to his / her registered e-mail address.

»  Shareholders/ members can set the password of his/her choice by providing the information about the particulars of the
Security Question and Answer, PAN, DOB/DOI, Bank Account Number (last four digits) etc. as mentioned above.
»  The password should contain minimum 8 characters, at least one special character (@1#$&¥), at least one numeral, at least one
alphabetand at least one capital letter.
Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode with NSDL/CDSL have forgotten the password:
» Shareholders/ members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget Password
option available atabovementioned depository/ depository participants website.
> Itis strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password
confidential.
For shareholders/ members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for voting on the resolutions
contained in this Notice.
During the voting period, shareholders/ members can login any number of time till they have voted on the resolution(s) for
aparticular“Event”.
Helpdeskfor Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode:
In case shareholders/ members holding securities in demat mode have any technical issues related to login through Depository i.e.
NSDL/CDSL, they may contact the respective helpdesk given below:

Login type Helpdesk details

Individual Shareholders holding | Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request
securities in demat mode with | at evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30

NSDL
Individual Shareholders holding | Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request
securities in demat mode with | at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022- 23058738 or 22-23058542-43.

CDSL

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in physical mode/ Institutional shareholders & evoting service
Provider is LINKINTIME.

In case shareholders/ members holding securities in physical mode/ Institutional shareholders have any queries regarding e-voting,
they may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (‘FAQs') and InstaVote e-Voting manual available at
https://instavote.linkintime.co.in, under Help section or send an email to enotices@linkintime.co.in or contact on: - Tel: 022 -4918
6000.

12. ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH INSTAMEET
Shareholder will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM through InstaMeet. The meeting shall
be opened 30 (Thirty) minutes before the scheduled time of the AGM and shall be kept open throughout the
proceedings of the AGM.
Please note that the attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose
ofascertaining the quorum under Section 103 of the Act.
Members desiring to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM are requested to refer to the detailed procedure given below.
ATTENDTHEAGMTHROUGHVC/OAVM: PROCEDURE:- Forallshareholders:
1. Opentheinternet browserand launch the URL: https://instameet.linkintime.co.in.
2. Selectthe”Company”and’Event Date’and register with your following details: -
A. DematAccountNo. or Folio No:Enter your 16 digit Demat Account No. or Folio No:
+ Shareholders/ members holding sharesin CDSL demat account shall provide 16 Digit Beneficiary ID.
« Shareholders/ members holding shares in NSDL demat account shall provide 8 Character DP ID followed by 8
Digit ClientID.
Shareholders/ members holding shares in physical form shall provide Folio Number registered with the
Company.
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B. PAN: Enter your 10-digit Permanent Account Number (PAN) (Members who have not updated their PAN with the
Depository Participant (DP)/ Company shall use the sequence number provided to you, if applicable.

C. Mobile No.:Enter your mobile number.
D. E-mail ID:Enteryoure-mail ID, as recorded with your DP/Company.

Click“Go to Meeting”(You are now registered for InstaMeet and your attendance is marked for the meeting).

Shareholders will be required to allow camera and use internet with a good speed to avoid any disturbance during the
meeting.

In case shareholders/members have any queries regarding login, they may send an e-mail to
instameet@linkintime.co.in or contact on:-Tel:022-49186175.

SPEAKERREGISTRATION FORTHE AGM

i. Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting may register themselves as a
speaker by sending their request in advance atleast 7 (seven) days prior to meeting i.e. Wednesday, September
22, 2021 mentioning their name, demat account number/folio number, e-mail ID, mobile number at
investor.relations@maninds.org.
Only those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will be allowed to express their views/ ask
questions during the meeting.

iii. Shareholders will get confirmation on first cum first basis.

iv. Shareholders/ members who are registered as speakers for the event are requested to download and install the

Webex application by clicking on the link www.webex.com/downloads.html/. (Members may also refer a tutorial video
available on www.youtube.com/watch?v=U2C9BVtGVrk).
Shareholders are requested to speak only when moderator of the meeting/ management will announce the name
and serial number for speaking.

vi. Please note that the Company reserves the right to restrict the number of questions and number of speakers,
depending upon availability of time as appropriate for smooth conduct of the AGM.

vii. Othershareholder may ask questions to the panellist, via active chat-board during the meeting.

The shareholders who do not wish to speak during the AGM but have queries may send their queries in advance 7
(seven) days prior to meeting i.e. Wednesday, September 22, 2021 mentioning their name, demat account number/ folio
number, e-mail ID, mobile number at investor.relations@maninds.org. These queries will be replied by the Company
suitably during the AGM.

E-VOTING DURING THE AGM THROUGH INSTAMEET:

i. Only those shareholders, who are present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not cast their vote on the

Resolutions through remote e-voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-
voting system available during the AGM.
If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e-voting available during the AGM and if the same
shareholders have not participated in the meeting through VC/OAVM facility, then the votes cast by such
shareholders shall be considered invalid as the facility of e-voting during the meeting is available only to the
shareholders attending the meeting.

iii. Shareholders who have voted through remote e-voting will be eligible to attend the AGM. However, they will not be
eligibletovoteatthe AGM.

Oncetheelectronicvotingisactivated by the scrutinizer/ moderator during the meeting, shareholders/ memberswho have

not exercised their vote through the remote e-voting can cast the vote as under:

E-VOTING PROCEDUREDURINGTHEAGM : FORALLSHAREHOLDERS
(@) OntheShareholdersVCpage, clickon the link for e-voting“Cast your vote”.

(b) Enter your 16 digit Demat Account No. / Folio No. and OTP (received on the registered mobile number/ registered
e-mail ID) received during registration for InstaMEET and click on'Submit.

(c) After successful login, you will see “Resolution Description” and against the same the option “Favour/ Against” for
voting.

(d) Cast your vote by selecting appropriate option i.e. “Favour/Against” as desired. Enter the number of shares (which
represents no. of votes) as on the cut-off date under’Favour/Against’

(e) Onceyou confirmyourvote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify or change your vote subsequently
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OTHERINFORMATION RELATED TO E-VOTING

a. A person, whose name is recorded in the register of members or in the register of beneficial owners of the
Company, as on the cut-off date i.e. Wednesday, September 22, 2021 only shall be entitled to avail the facility of e-
voting, either through remote e-voting and voting at the AGM. A person who is not a member as on the cut-off date
should treat this notice forinformation purposes only.

Members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the AGM will be entitled to attend the AGM and their
presence shall be counted for the purpose of quorum. However, they shall not be entitled to cast their vote again. In
case a member casts his vote by more than one mode of voting including remote e-voting, then voting done through
remote e-voting shall prevail and other shall be treated asinvalid.

Voting rights of the members shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid-up equity share capital of the
Company as on the cut-off date i.e. Wednesday, September 22,2021.

Any person, who acquires shares of the Company and becomes a member of the Company after dispatch of the
notice and holds shares as of the cut-off date may follow the procedure for remote e-voting as enumerated in detail
hereinabove. They may also refer to the FAQs and e-voting manual available at https://instavote.linkintime.co.in or
write an e-mail to enotices@linkintime.co.in or investor.relations@maninds.org.

Every client ID no./folio no. will have one vote, irrespective of number of joint holders. However, in case the joint
holders wish to attend the meeting, the joint holder whose name is higher in the order of names among the joint
holders, will be entitled to vote at the AGM.

The members may also update their mobile number and e-mail ID in the user profile details of their respective client
ID no./folio no., which may be used for sending future communication(s).

GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS

i. Shareholders/ Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Tablets/ Laptops connected through
broadband for better experience.

Shareholders/ Members are required to use Internet with a good speed (preferably 2 MBPS download stream) to
avoid any disturbance during the meeting.

ii. PleasenotethatShareholders/Members connecting from Mobile Devices orTablets or through Laptops connecting via
Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Visual loss due to fluctuation in their network. It is therefore recommended to use
stable Wi-Fi or LAN connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

iv. At the AGM, the Chairperson shall, at the end of discussion on the resolutions on which voting is to be held, allow e-
voting atthe AGM.

The Scrutinizer shall submit a consolidated Scrutinizer’s Report of the total votes cast in favour or against, not later
than 2 working days of the conclusion of the AGM, to the Chairman or a person authorized by him in writing,
who shall countersign the same and declare the result of the voting forthwith.

i. Theresultsalongwith the consolidated Scrutinizer’s Report shall be declared by means of:
(a) disseminationonthe website of the Companyi.e. www.mangroup.com and website of LIIPLi.e.
https://instavote.linkintime.co.in;and

(b) communication to BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited, thereby enabling them to
disseminate the same on their respective websites.

Place: Mumbai
Date:August9,2021 By order of the Board of Directors

Regd. Office:

‘MAN HOUSEFE' Jatin Shah
101, S.V. Road, Opp. Pawan Hans, Company Secretary
Vile Parle (West), Mumbai-400056
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 SETTING OUT ALLTHE MATERIAL
FACTS RELATINGTO SPECIAL BUSINESS:

Item No. 4

The Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Amendment Rules, 2014, mandate audit of the cost accounting records of the Company in
respect of certain product categories. Accordingly, the Board of Directors based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee
appointed M/s M.P. Turakhia & Associates, Cost Accountants as the Cost Auditors of the Company for the FY 2021-22 at a
remuneration of Rs.1,00,000/- (Rupees One Lac Only) plus applicable taxes and reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses in
connection with the audit.

In terms of the provisions of Section 148(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,
the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors has to be ratified by the Members of the Company. Accordingly, consent of the
members is sought for approving the Ordinary Resolution set out at ltem No. 4 of the Notice for ratification of the remuneration
payable to the Cost Auditors for the financial year 2021-22 as stated above.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives are in any way, concerned or interested, financially
orotherwise, in the said resolution.

The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution as set outin Item No. 4 of the Notice for the approval of the Members.

ItemNo.5

Mr. Narendra Mairpady has been appointed as an Additional Director in the category of Independent Director, by the Board of
Directors w.e.f.23.02.2021 based on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee. His term of appointment
as Additional Director is upto the date of this meeting. Heis 67 years ofage.

Mr. Narendra Mairpady has given declaration to the Board that he meets the criteria of independence as provided under section
149(6) of the Act. The details of Mr. Narendra Mairpady, as required to be given pursuant to the Listing Regulations and the
Secretarial Standards, are annexed to this Notice.

In the opinion of the Board, Mr. Mairpady professional expertise and experience will be very helpful in the growth of the Company
and he also fulfils the conditions for appointment as specified in the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder. Hence,
the Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution as set outin Item No. 5 of the Notice for the approval of the Shareholders.

None of the Directors/Key Managerial Personnel of the Company/their relatives, except Mr. Narendra Mairpady is concerned or
interestedin the aboveitem.

ItemNo.6

The members of the Company at their 30th Annual General Meeting held on September 28, 2018, had approved the re-
appointment of Mr. Nikhil Mansukhani (DIN: 02257522) as the Executive Director of the Company for a period of five years from
October 3,2018 up to October 2, 2023. The members in their aforesaid Annual General Meeting had also provided authority to the
Board of Directors (including the Committee of the Board) to alter and vary the terms, conditions, designation and/or the
remuneration of Mr.Nikhil Mansukhaniin the best interests of the Company within permissible guidelines.

Pursuant to the aforesaid authority provided to it, the Board of Director by a resolution passed in their meeting held on June 23,
2020, restructured the remuneration of Mr. Nikhil Mansukhani as set out in the resolution no. 6 within the limit of his total
remuneration approved by the Shareholders at the aforesaid Annual General Meeting held on September 28, 2018 with a view to
minimize the tax burden on his remuneration due to the change in the Income Tax provisions by Finance Act, 2020 in relation to
taxation on the employer's contribution to the Provident Fund.

It may be noted that Remuneration of Mr. Nikhil Mansukhani has not been increased by the Board in view of the continuing COVID-
19 pandemicandthe currentchangeindesignationisalso proposed at the existing remuneration.

Having regard to the vast knowledge, experience and dedicated services rendered by Mr. Nikhil Mansukhani towards the growth of
the Company, the Board of Directors on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee at its meeting held
on August 9, 2021, redesignated him as Managing Director of the Company w.e.f. October 1, 2021 subject to the approval of
members of the Company in the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company, at the same remuneration as restructured by
the Board of Directors on June 23,2020 up to the remaining period of his current termi.e. up to October 2,2023.

Mr. Nikhil Mansukhani, Mr. R.C. Mansukhani and Mrs. Heena Vinay Kalantri, being related to each other, be deemed to be interested
to the extent of the remuneration payable to Mr. Nikhil Mansukhani as Managing Director. None of the other Directors, Key
Managerial Personnel or their relatives be deemed to be interested or concerned, financially or otherwise, in this resolution.
Therelevant details pursuant to Regulation 36 of the SEBI (LODR), Regulations, 2015 are annexed to this Notice.

The Directors recommend the Resolution as set outin Iltem No.6 of the Notice for the approval of the Shareholders.

Place: Mumbai

Date: August9, 2021 By order of the Board of Directors
Regd. Office:

‘MAN HOUSE'’ Jatin Shah
101, S.V. Road, Opp. Pawan Hans, Company Secretary

Vile Parle (West), Mumbai-400056
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
Dear Members,

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 33rd Annual Report of your Company along with the Audited Accounts for the
financial year ended March 31, 2021.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS / RESULTS (% in Lakhs)

Particulars For the financial For the financial

year 2020-21 year 2019-20
Profit before Depreciation 18,284 11,855
Less: Depreciation 4,637 5,231
Profit Before Tax 13,647 6,624
Exceptional Item (Loss) - 250
Less: Taxation 3,584 975
Profit after Tax 10,063 5,398
Add: Other Comprehensive Income (net of tax) (262) 669
Total Comprehensive Profit 9,801 6,067
Add: Profit brought forward 51,897 48,161
Total profit available for appropriation 61,698 54,228
APPROPRIATIONS:
Adjustment of Income Tax (Earlier year) 321
Transfer to General Reserve 1,006
Proposed Dividend 1,142
Provision for taxation — Dividend -

Balance carried to Balance Sheet

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Net sales and other income for the standalone entity increased to 32,710,594 lakhs from % 1,77,561 lakhs in the previous year with
increase of 18.60%. The operating profit (PBDIT) witnessed a increase of 34.23% from ¥ 18,296 lakhs in 2019-20 to ¥ 24,558 lakhs in
2020-21.The profit after tax (PAT) showed a increase of 86.42% at % 10,063 lacs from % 5,398 lakhs in the previous year.

DIVIDEND

Pursuant to the approval of the Board on October 27, 2020, your Company paid an interim dividend of ¥ 2/- (i.e. 40%) per equity
share of face value of ¥ 5/- each, to shareholders who were on the register of members as on November 4, 2020, being the record
date fixed for this purpose. Inview of the uncertainties due Covid-19 pandemic, the Board thought it prudent not to recommend a
final dividend for this year and the interim dividend of X 2/- per equity share declared by the Board in October 2020 was considered
as the final dividend for the financial year 2020-21. Thus, the total dividend for the financial year 2020-21 remains % 2/- per equity
share.

TRANSFERTO RESERVES
Anamountof¥1,006 lakhs is proposed to be transferred to the General Reserve.
ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to the provisions of Sections 92(3) and 134(3)(a) of the Act and the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules,
2014, the Annual Return in Form no. MGT-7 can be accessed on the website of the Company i.e. www.mangroup.com

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

The Company is having three subsidiary companies falling under the purview of Section 2(87) of the Companies Act, 2013. In
accordance with Rule 8(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, a report on their performance and financial position is
presented herein below:
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Name of the Subsidiary Performance
Companies

The implementation of the Scheme of Demerger is still pending and as
such, the consolidation of Financial Statements of Merino Shelters
Private Limited has not been given effect of.

Merino Shelters Private Limited
(Incorporated in India)

Man Overseas Metal DMCC The Cc')mpany has achieved a net profit of AED 1.12 lakhs durin'g the
financial year 2020-21 as compared to net profit of AED 7.56 lakhs in the

(Incorporated in UAE) .
previous year.

Man USA Inc (Incorporated in USA) The net revenue during the financial year 2020-21 of the Company
stood at USD NILas compared to USD NIL in the previous year.

In accordance with proviso to Section 129(3) read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, a statement containing
salient features of the financial statements of the Company's subsidiariesin Form AOC-1 is attached to the financial statements of the
Company and forms part of this Annual Report.

During the financial year 2020-21, no company has become or ceased to be subsidiary of the Company and no material change in
the nature of the business of the existing subsidiary has taken place.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (except of Merino Shelters Pvt. Ltd) for the financial year
ended March 31,2021, prepared in accordance with the Companies Act, 2013 and Ind AS-110 on consolidated financial statements
form part of this Annual Report and same shall also be laid in the ensuing Annual General Meeting in accordance with the provisions
of Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013, the standalone and consolidated financial statements
of the Company along with the documents required to be attached thereto and separate financial statements in respect of its
subsidiary companies are available on its website i.e. www.mangroup.com and are also available for inspection at its Registered
Office.

DIRECTORS

Mrs.Heena Vinay Kalantri (DIN:00149407), Director s liable to retire by rotation at the conclusion of the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting and being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment. Appropriate resolution for her re-appointment is being placed before
for your approval at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. Brief resume of Mrs. Heena Vinay Kalantri and other information has been
giveninthe notice convening the Annual General Meeting. Your Directors recommend her Re-appointment.

Further, Mr. Nikhil Mansukhani (DIN : 02257522) has been designated by the Board as Managing Director of the Company subject to
the approval of Shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The Board has also appointed Mr. Narendra Mairpady (DIN :
00536905) as Additional Director since 23rd February 2021 in the category of Independent subject to the approval of the
Shareholders. Mr. Mairpady has vastexperience in the Banking, Finance and Accounting areas.

Mr. Pramod Tondon (DIN: 00364652) and Mrs. Renu Purshottam Jalan (DIN : 08076758) act as independent Directors and they have
given declarations that they meet the criteria of independence as laid down under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Regulation 16(b) of the Listing Regulations, 2015.

BOARD EVALUATION

Regulation 4(2)(f)(9) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015 mandates that the Board shall monitor and review the Board evaluation
framework. The Companies Act, 2013 states that a formal annual evaluation needs to be made by the Board of its own performance
and that of its committees and individual directors. The annual evaluation process of the Board of Directors, its committees and the
individual Directors including the Chairman of the Company was carried out in the manner prescribed by the Companies Act, the
guidance note on Board Evaluation issued by SEBI and as per the Corporate Governance requirements prescribed by SEBI Listing
Regulations.

A structured questionnaire was circulated for reviewing the functioning and effectiveness of the Board, its Committees, the
individual directors including the Chairman of the Company. All the directors participated in the evaluation survey. The evaluation
criterion for the Directors was based on their participation, contribution and offering guidance to and understanding of the areas
which are relevant to them in their capacity as members of the Board. Responses were analyzed and the results were subsequently
discussed by the Board. Recommendations arising from the evaluation process was considered by the Board to optimize its
effectiveness.
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NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THEBOARD

The details of the number of meetings of the Board of Directors held during the financial year 2020-21 are furnished as a part of the
Corporate Governance Report.

COMPOSITION OF AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises of Mr. Pramod Tandon and Mrs. Renu Jalan, Independent Directors and Mr. Nikhil Mansukhani,
Executive Director of the Company. Mr. Pramod Tandon has been appointed as Chairman of the Audit Committee w.e.f. September
5,2020, consequent to the death of the erstwhile Chairman of the Audit Committee Mr. Kirit Damania who passed away on August
21, 2020. The Company Secretary is the Secretary to the Committee. There has not been any instance during the year when
recommendations of the Audit Committee were not accepted by the Board of Directors.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The Board, has, on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, framed and adopted a policy for
selection and appointment of Directors, Senior Management and their remuneration pursuant to the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations, 2015.

Thesalient features of the Policy, are:
Appointmentand remuneration of Director, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management Personnel.

Determination of qualifications, positive attributes and independence for appointment of a Director (Executive/Non-
Executive/Independent) and recommendation to the Board matters relating to the remuneration for the Directors, Key
Managerial Personnel and Senior Management Personnel.

c.  Formulating the criteria for performance evaluation of all Directors.
d.  BoardDiversity

The Company's policy inter-alia, on Directors' appointment and remuneration, including criteria for determining qualifications,
positive attributes, independence of a Director and other matters provided under the Act is available on the website of Company at
Www.mangroup.com.

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Thefinancial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) under the historical cost convention
on accrual basis except for certain financial instruments, which are measured at fair values, the provisions of the Act (to the extent
notified) and guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI). The Ind AS are prescribed under Section 133 of
the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act'), read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016. The Company has adopted all the Ind AS standards and the adoption was
carried out in accordance with applicable transition guidance. Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a
newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the
accounting policy hithertoin use.

Thedirectors confirmthat:

. In preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2021, the applicable accounting standards
(exceptInd AS-110) have beenfollowed.

They have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year
and of the profitand loss of the Company for that period.

They have taken proper and sufficient care towards the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities.

They have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis.
They have laid down internal financial controls, which are adequate and are operating effectively.

They have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and such systems are
adequate and operating effectively.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

All related party transactions that were entered into during the financial year under review were on arm's length basis and were in
the ordinary course of the business. In compliance with the terms of the 'Policy on Related Party Transactions, no contracts,
arrangements or transactions were entered into by the Company with the Promoters, Key Managerial Personnel or other designated
persons which would be considered materially significant and which may have potential conflict of interest with the company at
large. The Policy on materiality of related party transactions and dealing with related party transactions as approved by the Board
may be accessed on the Company's website www.mangroup.com.

Particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties referred to in Section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, in the
prescribed Form AOC-2, is appended as Annexure 'F'to the Board's report.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES ORINVESTENTS UNDER SECTION 186 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(3)(g) read with Section 186(4) of the Companies Act, 2013, the particulars of loans
given,investments made, guarantees given and securities provided, if any, have been disclosed in the financial statements.

VIGIL MECHANISM

In accordance with the provisions of Section 177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Meetings of
Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 and erstwhile Listing Agreement, the Company has adopted a Whistle Blower Policy to provide a
mechanism to its directors, employees and other stakeholders to raise concerns about any violation of legal or regulatory
requirements, misrepresentation of any financial statement and to report actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Code of
Conduct of the Company.

The Policy allows the whistleblowers to have direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee in exceptional circumstances
and also protects them from any kind of discrimination or harassment. The Whistle Blower Policy of the’ Company can be accessed
onthe Companys website www.mangroup.com.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

Management Discussion and Analysis Report containing the details as required under Schedule V to the Listing Regulations, 2015 is
annexed hereto and forms anintegral part of this Report.

BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY REPORT

Business Responsibility Report as required under Regulation 34(2)(f) of the Listing Regulations, 2015 is annexed hereto and forms an
integral part of this Report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ASeparate Report on Corporate Governance along with a certificate from Practicing Company Secretary confirming the compliance
of the conditions of corporate governance by the Company as required under Para E of ScheduleV to the Listing Regulations, 2015 is
annexed hereto and forms anintegral part of this Report.

FIXED DEPOSITS

The Company has not accepted any deposits from public and as such, no amount on account of principal or interests on deposits
from public was outstanding as on the date of the balance sheet.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

As part of its initiatives under “Corporate Social Responsibility” (CSR), the company has contributed funds for the scheme of
promoting health care, education, women empowerment, environmental sustainability and rural welfare programs. CSR activities
were undertaken by the Company in and around plant locations that is Anjar, Gujarat; Pithampur, Madhya Pradesh and Mumbai
where the Head office of the company is located. The company focuses on educating the local inhabitants (villagers) about
preventive health care & hygiene management.This year the Company has supported the COVID-19 relief measures and donated RT
PCR Machine and testing kit imported from USA to TATA Memorial Hospital for COVID-19 testing of the patients free of cost; donated
to ISKON for their food distribution program to badly impacted sections of the society in various part of Mumbai and migrant
workers; Contributed to Ration Kits distribution program in villages in Anjar, Gujarat and Pithampur, Madhya Pradesh; Contributed
towards Ambulance facility for benefit of people living in villages nearby Anjar Plant; Distribution of Computer Systems to Schools
around Khedoi village for Schools' labs; contributed towards construction and development of a Rural Medical College, Hospital &
Research Centre' at Kumbhari Village, in Solapur District, Maharashtra. In addition, the company has also continued with the
vocational employability training program for the women around Anjar, Gujarat. The training included skill development courses
like sewing, artificial jewellery making, toy making, basic computer education, cooking, beauty parlour, mehendi courses etc. this
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will not only educate them but will also make them independent by making them capable of earning. Also, the Company thrusts to
ensure environmental sustainability by conserving rain water through traditional ways of water conversation. For this the company
undertook the task of pond deepening in Khedoi, Kutch, Gujarat. Company is also running a rigorous tree plantation programin the
area of Kutch. Further at its Mumbai location, Company is helping needy patients for their ailments through funding to different
hospitals and education of needy children specially girls.

Abrief outline of the CSR policy of the Company and the details of activities/initiatives taken by the Company on CSR during the year
as perannexure attached to the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 have been appended as Annexure'A’
tothis Report. The said policy is available on the website of the Company at ‘www.mangroup.com!

RISKMANAGEMENT

The Company has a risk management framework for the identification and management of risks. The Company has been following
the processes and procedures for assessment and mitigation of various business risks associated with the nature of it's operations
and such adaptation has helped the Company to a very large extent. In line with the requirement under the SEBI Listing Regulations,
the Company has constituted a Risk Management Committee (RMC) comprising of members of the Board and Senior Management
personnel. Composition of RMC is provided in the Corporate Governance Report, which forms part of this Report. RMC s entrusted
with the responsibility of overseeing strategic, operational and financial risks that the organisation faces, along with the adequacy of
mitigation plans to address such risks. The ultimate responsibility for framing, implementing and monitoring the risk management
planforthe Company lies on the Board of Directors.

INTERNALFINANCIALCONTROL SYSTEMS ANDTHEIRADEQUACY

The Board of Directors has laid down standards, processes and procedures for implementing the internal financial controls across
the organization. After considering the framework of existing internal financial controls and compliance systems; work performed
by the Internal, Statutory and Secretarial Auditors and External Consultants; reviews performed by the Management and relevant
Board Committees including the Audit Committee, the Board of Directors are of the opinion that the Company's internal financial
controls with reference to the financial statements were adequate and effective during the financial year 2020-21.

AUDITORS AND AUDITORS' REPORT
Statutory Auditors

M/s M. H. Dalal & Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm registration number: 112449W) were appointed as Auditors of the
Company, for a term of 5 (five) consecutive years, at the Annual General Meeting held on 27th September, 2017. They have
confirmed thatthey are not disqualified from continuing as Auditors of the Company.

The observations of the Auditors and the Notes on financial statement referred to in the Auditors' Report are self-explanatory and do
not call for any further comment. Further, no frauds have been reported by the Statutory Auditors during the financial year 2020-21
pursuantto the provisions of Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Cost Auditors

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 14(a) of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors, has on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, appointed M/s. M.P. Turakhia &
Associates, Cost Accountants as Cost Auditors of the Company for the financial year 2020-21 at a remuneration of ¥1,00,000/-
(Rupees One Lac Only) plus applicable taxes and reimbursement of out of pocket expenses for conducting the Cost Audit subject to
ratification of such remuneration by the Members in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. Accordingly, a resolution seeking
Members' ratification for the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors forms part of the Notice convening the ensuing Annual
General Meeting.

Secretarial Auditors

In accordance with the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors have appointed J. Suthar & Associates, Company
Secretaries as Secretarial Auditor of the Company for the financial year 2020-21.

The Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended March 31, 2021 is set out in Annexure 'B' to this Report. The qualifications
referred toin the Secretarial Auditors' Report are self-explanatory and do not call for any further comment.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND RELATED DISCLOSURES

Particulars of employees and related disclosures as required under the provisions of Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013
read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are set outin Annexure
'D'tothis Report.
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Particulars of employees pursuant to Rules 5(2) & (3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Rules, 2014 are set outin Annexure 'D'to this Report.

DETAILS WITH RESPECT TO CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS
AND OUTGO

Details with respect to conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo as required under
Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are set outin Annexure 'E'to
this Report.

DISCLOSURE AS PER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL)
ACT, 2013

The Company is committed to provide a healthy environment to all its employees and has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at
workplace. In order to prohibit, prevent and redress complaints of sexual harassment at workplace, it has constituted a Complaint
Committee in line with the provisions of Section 4(1) of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act,2013.

The Company has not received any complaint of Sexual harassment during the financial year 20120-21.
RESIDUARY DISCLOSURES

i During the financial year 2020-21, the Company has not issued equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or
otherwise. Hence, disclosure under Rule 4(3) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 is not applicable;

During the financial year 2020-21, the Company has not issued sweat equity shares to its employees. Hence, disclosure under
Rule 8(13) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 is not applicable;

During the financial year 2020-21, the Company has notissued shares under Employees Stock Option Scheme.

During the financial year 2020-21, no significant or material orders have been passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals
which impact the going concern status of the Company and its operations in future. Hence, disclosure under Rule 8(5)(vii) of
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is not applicable;

During the financial year 2020-21, there have been no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of
the Company between the end of the financial year and the date of this Report. Hence, disclosure under the provisions of
Section 134(3)(l) of the Companies Act, 2013 is notapplicable;

During the financial year 2020-21, there has been no change in the nature of business of the Company. Hence, disclosure
under Rule 8(5)(ii) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is not applicable;

During the financial year 2020-21, no Whole-Time Directors of the Company has received any commission from the Company
nor have they received any remuneration or commission from the subsidiary of the Company.

viii. ~ The Scheme of arrangement for merger-demerger between Man Industries (India) Ltd. and Man Infraprojects Ltd. is yet not
fullyimplemented for want of disposal of Record Date issue, which is presently sub-judice in the Hon'ble Bombay High Court.

GENERAL
Safety, Health and Environment

During the year, the Company continued to focus on resource conservation and reduction in generation of hazardous wastes and
enhanced its efforts to positively impact the environment in which it operates. All the manufacturing facilities and processes are
subject to regular inspections and a Safety Audit is carried out meticulously at Anjar plant and preventive measures are taken to
ensure high standards of safety. There have been regular trainings right from the employee induction stage and further on continual
basis to reinforce safety habits by it's employees. Your Company has taken adequate insurance cover for all its plants as well as for
third party liabilities and continues to work towards the improvement of our environment, healthy and safe management system.
The company has also been organizing the camps for Blood donation and also yoga trainings for its employees.

Human Resources and Industrial Relations

In your Company, employees continue to be the key driving force of the organization and remain a strong source of our competitive
advantage. We believe in aligning business priorities with the aspirations of employees leading to the development of an
empowered and responsive human capital.

Attracting, retaining and motivating employees and creating an environment that nurtures them to deliver their best have been a
constant practice followed by your Company. Your Company continues to invest in training, refining its goal setting and
performance evaluation processes through which employees can share best practices and seek support to drive change and
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improvement. Further, the company remains committed for the employee engagement activities such as employee Sports events
and Festival celebrations etc. to keep its employeesinterested to achieve higher milestones.

Listing & Demat of Shares

The equity shares of the Company are listed with BSE Limited (BSE) and National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE). As on March
31, 2021 out of total 5,71,03,055 equity shares of the Company, 5,63,15,829 equity shares representing 98.69% were held in
dematerialized form and the balance 7,87,226 shares representing 1.31% were held in physical form.

Insurance

All the insurable interests of your Company including inventories, buildings, plant and machinery and liabilities under legislative
enactmentsare adequatelyinsured.

Transfer of unpaid/unclaimed dividend to Investor Education and Protection Fund

During the year under review, the Company has transferred ¥1809434/- to Investor Education and Protection Fund in relation to
unclaimed and unpaid dividend amount pertaining to financial year 2012-13.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Directors wish to acknowledge and place on record their sincere appreciation for the assistance and co-operation received from
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For and on behalf of the Board
Place: Mumbai R. C. Mansukhani
Dates: August9,2021 Chairman
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Annexure ‘A’ to the Directors’ Report
Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Activities for the financial year ended 31st March 2021

[Pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Rule 9 of the Companies (Accounts)Rules, 2014]

A brief outline of the Company’s CSR policy, including overview of projects or programs proposed to be undertaken
and areference to the web-link to the CSR policy and projects or programs.
The Company has framed a CSR Policy in compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made

thereunder. The CSR Policy provides for carrying out CSR activities in respect of those areas as provided in Schedule VIl of the
Companies Act,2013.

The CSR Policy, composition and CSR project approved by the Board is placed on the Company’s website:
WWWw.mangroup.com

The Composition of the CSR Committee Designationin No. of meeting of No. of meeting of
the Committee CSR committee held CSR committee
during theyear attended during theyear

Mr.R.C. Mansukhani Chairman 3 3

Mr.PramodTandon Member

3 3
Mr.Nikhil Mansukhani Member 3 3
Mrs. HeenaVinay Kalantri* Member 3 1

*w.e.f.January 21,2021.

Average net profit of the Company for last three financial years
Average Net Profit: Rs.5,807.53 lakhs

Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two percentof theamountasinitem 3 above)
The Company isrequired tospend Rs.116.15 lakhs towards CSR

Details of CSR spent during the financial year

(a) CSRamountspentorunspentforthefinancial year:
Spent-Rs. 176.73 lakhs
Unspent-Nil
(b) Details of CSRamount spentagainst ongoing projects for the financial year :Nil
(c) Details of CSRamount spentagainst other than ongoing projects for the financial year :Rs.176.73 lakhs
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(d) Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below :

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

Sr.
No.

CSR project
or activity
identified

Sector in

which the
project is
covered

Project of
program
1) Local area, or
i) Specify the
state and
district where
the projects
and programs
was undertaken

Amount
outlay
(Inx)

Amount
Spent on
the project
(Inx)

Cumulative
expenditure
up-to the
reporting
period
(In )

Amount spent:
Direct or
through

implementing
agency

Promoting
Healthcare
including
preventive
health care
& Disaster
Management
Health

Eradicating
Hunger

Health

Mumbai

2,000,000.00

2,000,000.00

2,000,000.00

Helping Hand
Foundation

Mumbai

700,000.00

700,000.00

700,000.00

T.M.C.(Thane
Municipal
Corporation)

Mumbai

31,000.00

31,000.00

31,000.00

Madhavi
Manoj
Goenka

Mumbai

49,342.00

49,342.00

49,342.00

Mg Global
Pvt. Ltd.

Mumbai

118,000.00

118,000.00

118,000.00

Twenty First
Century Iron
& Steels Ltd

Mumbai

70,000.00

70,000.00

70,000.00

Direct-bapalal
Narpatsinh
Jadeja

Gujrat

500,000.00

500,000.00

500,000.00

"Akhil
Gujarat Truck
Transport
Association”

Gujrat

285,000.00

285,000.00

285,000.00

Direct - Navin
Gopalji
Thacker

Medical
Treatment

Construction & Develo-
pment of College

Promoting
Education

Education

Mumbai

300,000.00

300,000.00

300,000.00

Kohinoor
Hospitals
Pvt Ltd

Mumbai

25,000.00

25,000.00

25,000.00

The Dean,
J.J. Hospital

Mumbai

2,500,000.00

2,500,000.00

2,500,000.00

M M Patel
Charity Trust

Mumbai

41,552.50

41,552.50

41,552.50

Shree L.r.
Tiwari College
Of Engineering

Mumbai

37,200.00

37,200.00

37,200.00

St. Joseph's
Convent High
School

Gujrat

2,500,000.00

2,500,000.00

2,500,000.00

Sevanidhi Trust

Gujrat

2,500,000.00

2,500,000.00

2,500,000.00

Sevanidhi Trust

Gujrat

2,500,000.00

2,500,000.00

2,500,000.00

Sevanidhi Trust

Gujrat

2,500,000.00

2,500,000.00

2,500,000.00

Sevanidhi Trust

Rular
Development
Project

Promoting
Rular
Development

Gujrat

13,499.02

13,499.02

13,499.02

Direct -
Computex
Informatics

Gujrat

2,400.00

2,400.00

2,400.00

Direct -
Chandan
Electric Store

Food
Distribution

Eradicating
Hunger &
Malnutrition

Mumbai

1,000,000.00

1,000,000.00

1,000,000.00

Iskcon

Total

17,672,993.52

17,672,993.52

17,672,993.52
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d) Excess amount for set-off, if any

Sr.No | Particulars (Rs.inlakhs)

Two percent of average net profit of the company as per Section 135(5) Rs.116.15

Totalamount spentfor the Financial Year Rs.176.73

1
2
3 Excessamount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(1)] Rs.60.58
4

Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the

previous financial years, if any Nil

Amountavailablefor set-offin succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)] Rs.60.58

(a) Details of Unspent CSRamount for the preceding three financial years: Nil

(b) Details of CSRamount spentin the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial year(s): Nil

In case the Company has failed to spend the two percent of the average net profit of the last three financial years or
any part thereof, the Company shall provide thereason for not spending theamountinits Board Report:

The company has fully metits CSR obligation for the financial year.

In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or acquired
through CSRspentin thefinancial year (asset-wise details):

No amount has been spent on creation or acquisition of capital assets after the notification of the Companies (Corporate
Social Responsibility Policy) Amendment Rules, 2021 on January 22,2021.

A responsibility statement of the CSR Committee that the implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy, is in
compliance with the CSR objectives and Policy of the Company:

The CSR Committee confirms that the implementation and monitoring of the CSR Policy of the Company is in compliance
with the CSR objectives and CSR Policy of the Company.

For Man Industries (India) Limited For & on behalf of the CSR Committee of the Company

Nikhil Mansukhani R.C.Mansukhani

Director Chairman of CSR Committee
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ANNEXURE 'B' TO DIRECTOR REPORT

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FORTHE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

[Pursuant to Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration

To,

Personnel) Rules, 2014]

The Members,

MAN INDUSTRIES (INDIA) LIMITED
Man House, Opp. Pawan Hans,

101, S. V. Road, Vile Parle (West),
Mumbai - 400056.

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate
practices by Man Industries (India) Limited (hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that
provided us reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by
the company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorised representatives during the
conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has during the audit period covering the financial
yearended on March 31,2021 complied with the Statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board
processes and compliance mechanismin place to the extent, in the mannerand subject to the reporting made hereinafter.

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company for the
financial yearended on March 31,2021 according to the provisions of;

1.

The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;
We would like to state that:

(a)  AsperAccounting Standard 110 as issued by ICAl, The Company has not Consolidated the Financial Statement of one of its
subsidiary namely Merino Shelters Private Limited in the light of pendency ofimplementation of the scheme of arrangement
specified herein below.

The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (SCRA) and the rules made there under;
The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-law framed thereunder;

Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the extent of Foreign Direct
Investmentand External Commercial Borrowings;

The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Act 1992 ('SEBI Act');

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations,
2011;

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992;
(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018;
We have also examined compliance with the Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the erstwhile Listing Agreements entered into by the
Company with the National Stock Exchange of India Limited and BSE Limited and, regulations of The Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015;

The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under The Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 were, in our
opinion, not attracted during the financial year under report;

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008;
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The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993
regarding the Actand dealing with client;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; and
The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998.
The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards,
etc, mentioned above.

We further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-
Executive Directors and Independent Directors as on March 31,2021.

We would further like to state that, the composition of the Board of Directors fell below the minimum required by Reg. 17(1) of the Listing
Regulations during the year due to the sad demise of one Independent Director, Mr. Kirit N. Damania, on August 21, 2020. However, the
Composition of the Board of Directors and the aforesaid Committees is now in conformity with the requirement of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as on March 31,2021.

Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least
seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarification on the agenda items
before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried out by majority as recorded in the minutes of the Meetings of
the Board of Directors or Committee of the Board, as the case may be.

During the period under review, we have not undertaken the factory visit of the Company. Hence, we cannot report in respect
thereof.

We have relied on the representation made by the Company and its officers for the compliance of various applicable laws, rules,
regulations and guidelines and after examining the system and mechanism followed by the Company for compliances. We report
that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to
monitorand ensure the compliance of applicable laws, rules, requlations and guidelines as mentioned hereunder;

a) The BonusAct, 1965

b) The Minimum Wages Act, 1948

d) The Gratuity Act, 1972
Contract Labour (Regulationand Abolition) Act, 1970
Maternity Benefit Act, 1961
Employment Exchange Act, 1959
The Employee's Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952
Land Revenue Laws of respective States
Employees State Insurance Act, 1948
Shop &Establishments Act, 1948

We further report that during the audit period of the Company:

1) The Company is generally regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues. The Company has
not paid disputed statutory dues.

2)  There are disputes between the promoter groups pending adjudication before various judicial authorities regarding the
title/ownership of the shares. Further, the said dispute, regarding the right to receive dividend on such shares between the
promoter shareholders group has also been observed by NCLT and NCLAT recently. In view of the same, the Company has
deposited and keptin abeyance the final dividend payable to one of the groups for the FY 2014-15,2015-16,2016-17,2018-19
and interim dividend for FY 2019-20 & 2020-21 (interim dividend) in the unpaid dividend account with ICICI Bank and for the
FY 2017-18 with IndusInd Bank.
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The application filed by the Company for modification of the scheme of arrangement between the Company and Man
Infraprojects Limited (MIPL) to provide for swapping of shares between two promoter groups has since been withdrawn from
the Hon'ble Bombay High Court. Further, in view of frivolous and bogus claims made by Man Infraprojects Limited (MIPL)
having been rejected by the Ld Arbitrator in his Final award, the Company has during the year called the Record Date as
contemplated in the Scheme of arrangement. However, till date, MIPL has not issued and allotted the aforesaid Shares to the
Shareholders of the Company and has disputed the record date the Hon'ble Bombay High Court. The Company has
approached the Hon'ble Bombay High Court with list of eligible shareholders, requesting the Court to give suitable directions
to Man Infraprojects Limited (MIPL) in relation to the issue and allot free Equity Shares to the shareholders of the Company
pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement (Demerger) between the Company and MIPL. The matter is sub-judice in the Hon'ble
Bombay High Court.

The SEBI vide its order dated 21.12.2018 had imposed a penalty of Rs. 10 Crores, payable jointly and severally, on viz, Mr. Nikhil
Mansukhani (belonging to RCM Group) and Mrs. Anita Mansukhani and M/s JPA Holdings Pvt. Ltd (both belonging to JCM
Group) in respect alleged violation of the provisions of Regulation 11(1) read with 2nd proviso to Regulation 11(2) the SAST
Regulations, 1997 resulting in the shareholding of the promoters exceeding the threshold limit of 55% in the year 2010
without complying with provisions of the SAST Regulations.

Mr. Nikhil Mansukhani, promoter (belonging to RCM Group) had preferred an appeal before Securities Appellate Tribunal
(SAT) against the aforesaid SEBI Order. The Hon'ble SAT has vide its order dated 26.07.2021 quashed the impugned SEBI Order.

ForJ.Suthar & Associates
Company Secretaries

Jayantilal Suthar
(Proprietor)
FCS No.: 8779

Place: Mumbai CP No.: 21651
Date: August 9, 2021 UDIN : F0O08779C000736099

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure “a” and forms an integral part if this report.
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ANNEXURE “a"”
To,
The Members,
MAN INDUSTRIES (INDIA) LIMITED
Man House, Opp.Pawan Hans,
101,S.V.Road, Vile Parle (West),
Mumbai Mumbai-400056.

Our report of even dateis to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of Secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express
anopinion onthese secretarial records based on our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the
correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on the test basis to ensure that correct facts
are reflected in Secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for
ouropinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of accounts of the Company.

Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about compliance of laws, rules and regulations and
happenings of events etc.

The compliance of provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of the
management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of efficacy or effectiveness
with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For J. Suthar & Associates
Company Secretaries

Jayantilal Suthar
(Proprietor)

FCS No.: 8779
Place: Mumbai CP No.: 21651

Date: August 9, 2021 UDIN : F008779C000736099
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Annexure 'C' to the Directors' Report

[Statement of Disclosure of Remuneration pursuant to Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of
the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

(i) The ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the employees of the Company for
the financial year 2020-21 and the percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer,
Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the financial year 2020-21:

Sr.| Name Designation Ratio of remuneration Percentage

No of each Director to increase in

median remuneration remuneration
of Employees

Mr. R.C. Mansukhani Chairman 252:1 11.85

Mr. Nikhil Mansukhani Executive Director 11 9.11

Mrs. Heena Vinay Kalantri Non-Executive Director

Mr. Kirit N. Damania A Independent Director

Mr. Pramod Tandon Independent Director

Mrs. Renu Purshottam Jalan Independent Director

Mr. Narendra Mairpady * Independent Director

Mr. Ashok Gupta Chief Financial Officer

O (OINIO 1A W=

Mr. Shashank Belkhede # Company Secretary

d
°

Mr. Jatin Shah @ Company Secretary

A Deceasedon August21,2020;

* Appointedon February 23,2021;
#Retiredon May 31,2020;
@Appointedw.e.f. October27,2021.

Non-Executive Director and Independent Directors were paid only sitting fees during the financial year 2020-21.
(ii)  Thepercentageincreaseinthe medianremuneration of employeesin thefinancial year:

The median remuneration of employees in the financial year 2020-21 has increased by 2% as compared to the previous
year.

The number of permanent employees on therolls of Company:
AsonMarch 31,2021,832 permanent employees were on the rolls of the Company.

Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in the
last financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial remuneration and justification
thereof and point out if there are any exceptional circumstances forincrease in the managerial remuneration:

During the financial year 2020-21, the average increase in salaries other than KMPs was 0.5 %, whereas remuneration of
KMPs was increased by 1%.

Affirmation thattheremunerationis as per the remuneration policy of the Company:

Itis hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid during the financial year 2020-21 is as per the Remuneration Policy of the
Company.

Forand on behalf of the Board of Directors

Place: Mumbai Rameshchandra Mansukhani
Date: August9,2021 Chairman
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Annexure 'E' to the Directors' Report

[Pursuant to Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014]
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

Energy conservation measures taken during the year:

(@)  Energy conservation devices have been installed and the equipments are maintained properly to reduce energy
consumption.

(b)  The new systems are being devised to reduce electric power, fuel, and water Consumption. Industrial lighting in the
plantareahas been optimized.

Impact of above measures:

Theimpact of above measures taken results in lower energy consumption per to no production.
Steps for utilization of alternate sources of energy: NIL

Capitalinvestment on energy conservation equipments: NIL

Total energy consumption and energy consumption per unit production

Yearended Yearended
31" March 2021 31" March 2020

POWER AND FUEL CONSUMPTION :

(i)

Electricity Purchased (Units) 3,26,43,813 2,52,38,520

Total Amount (Rs.) 28,72,74,883 23,90,36,688

Rate per Unit (Rs.) 8,80 9.47

Generation through Windmill:

Generation Unit 73,03,269 1,07,83,702

Rate per Unit (Rs.) 7.15 7.49

Own Generation through D.G.Set:

Generation Unit -

Unit per liter of Oil -

Cost per Unit (Rs.) -

CONSUMPTION PER UNIT OF PRODUCTION (In kgs)

Production in kgs 24,16,44,620 21,75,78,820

Consumption per unit of Production (per kg) Units 0.14 0.12

(B)
)]

TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION
SPECIFICAREAS INWHICH RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT CARRIED OUT BY THE COMPANY

R & D was carried in product development, process development, energy conservation, environment protection, cost
reduction and automation.

BENEFITS DERIVED

With the installation of various additional equipments it was possible to achieve consistency in production and quality of
finished product.

EXPENDITUREONR&D

Development and improvement of products is an inbuilt and ongoing activity within existing manufacturing facilities.
Expenditure onR&Dis not separately allocated and identified.
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Technology Absorption, Adaptation & Innovation

Effort made towards Technology Absorption, Adaptation and innovation:
Benefit derived as a result of the above efforts: NIL

Imported Technology: NIL

a)  Technology imported

b)  Year of import

¢)  Hastechnology been fully absorbed?

d)  If not fully absorbed, reasons and future course of action

(C) FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUTGO
(T in Lakhs)

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS &OUTGO Fortheyear Fortheyear
2020-21 2019-20
a) Foreign Exchange Earnings (FOB Value of Exports) 1,44,750 41,027
b) Other Receipts - -

¢) Foreign Exchange Outgo 1,18,458 91,935

Forand on behalf of the Board of directors

Place : Mumbai R.C. Mansukhani
Date:August9,2021 Chairman
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BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY REPORT

Sl.

No.

Particulars

Details

1

Corporate Identity Number (CIN) of the
Company

L99999MH1988PLC047408

Name of the Company

Man Industries (India) Limited

Registered address

MANHOUSE, 101,S.V.Road, Opp.Pawan Hans,
Vile Parle (West), Mumbai 400 056.

Website

www.mangroup.org

E-mailid

investor.relations@maninds.org

Financial Year reported

2020-21

Sector(s) thatthe Company isengagedin
(industrial activity code-wise)

Casting of Ironand Steel (NICCode-24311)

List three key products/services that the
Company manufactures/provides (asin
balance sheet)

LSAW Pipes, HSAW Pipes&Coating Systems.

Total number of locations where business
activity is undertaken by the Company

4locations

- Mumbai, Maharashtra,

+ Anjar, Gujarat,

« Pithampur, Madhya Pradesh,
+ Dubai

a) Number of International Locations (Provide
details of major 5)

Dubai

b) Number of National Locations

Our Registered and Corporate officeislocated in
Mumbaiand we have 2 plantsin India at Anjar (Gujrat)
and Pithampur (Madhya Pradesh).

Markets served by the Company -
Local/State/National/International

National and International

SECTION B: FINANCIAL DETAILS

Particulars

Details

Paid up Capitalason 31.03.2021

Rs.28.55 Crores

TotalIncomeason31.03.2021

Rs.2075.18 Crores

Total Profit after Tax

Rs.100.63 Crores

TotalSpending on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
as percentage of profit after tax (%)

2% of average net profits of the Company made during
the threeimmediately preceding financial years.
Please refer Annexure’A'to the Directors'Report.

List of activities in which expenditurein4
above hasbeenincurred

Please refer Annexure’A’to the Directors’Report.

Annual Report 2020-21 | 41




AMAN

Industries (India) Ltd

the line pipe people

SECTION C: OTHERDETAILS

Sl.

No.

Particulars

Details

1

Does the Company have any Subsidiary Company
/Companies?

Yes, we have 3 subsidiaries:
a.Merino Shelters Private Limited
b.Man Overseas Metals DMCC
c.ManUSAInc.

Do the Subsidiary Company/Companies participatein the
BRInitiatives of the parent company? If yes, then indicate
the number of such subsidiary company(s)

The subsidiaries manage and carry out theirown BR
initiatives, which arein line with the Company.

Do any otherentity/entities (e.g. suppliers, distributors etc.)
thatthe Company does business with, participate in the BR
initiatives of the Company? If yes, then indicate the
percentage of such entity/entities? [Less than 30%, 30-60%,

More than 60%]

Currently, the suppliers/ vendors and distributors do
notparticipatein our BRinitiatives. However, we
have shared our relevant policies with all our
business partners,and they are expected to adhere
tothem.

SECTION D:BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY INFORMATION

1.

Details of Director/Directors responsible for Business Responsibility

Sl.

No.

Particulars

Details

Details of the Director/ Directors responsible forimplementation of the BR policy/policies

DIN Number

00012033

Name

R.C.Mansukhani

Designation

Chairman

Details of BRHead

DIN Number

00012033

Name

R.C.Mansukhani

Designation

Chairman

Telephone Number

022-66477500

Email ID

rcmansukhani@maninds.org

The National Voluntary Guidelines on Social, Environment and Economic Responsibilities of Business (NVGs), released by the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs, is composed of following nine principles of Business Responsibility:

P1

Businesses should conduct and govern themselves with ethics, transparency and accountability.

P2

Businesses should provide goods and services that are safe and contribute to sustainability throughout

theirlife cycle.

P3

Businesses should promote the wellbeing of all employees.

P4

Businesses should respect theinterests of, and be responsive towards all stakeholders, especially those

who are disadvantaged, vulnerable and marginalized.

P5

Businesses should respect and promote humanrights.

P6

Businesses should respect, protect, and make efforts to restore the environment.

P7

Businesses, when engaged ininfluencing publicand regulatory policy, should do soinaresponsible

manner.

P8

Businesses should supportinclusive growth and equitable development.

P9

Businesses should engage with and provide value to their customersand consumersin aresponsible

manner.
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Questions

Ethics and
Transparency
Responsibility
Wellbeing of

Employees

Responsiveness
to Stakeholders
Respect Human
Environmental
Responsibility
Public Policy
Advocacy
Inclusive growht
and equitable
development
Engage customers
and consumerina
responsible manner

Doyou have a policy/ policiesfor....

Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y

Has the policy being formulatedin consulta-
tion with the relevant stakeholders? (Note

Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y

all the policies have been developed in consultation  with the

Management of the Company.

Does the policy conform to any national /
international standards? If yes, specify? (50

v v [y vy [y [y [vy]

The policies arein line with the principles of words) Voluntary
Guidelines (NVG) issued by MCA.

Has the policy being approved by the Board?
Ifyes, has it been signed by MD/ owner/ CEQ/
appropriate Board Director?

Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y

Does the company have a specified committee
of the Board/ Director/ Official to oversee the
implementation of the policy?

Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y

The company has appointed Business Responsibility head to
oversee theimplementation of the policies.

Indicate the link for the policy to be viewed
online?

L N 2 A A B A A

http://www.mangroup.com/policy.html

Has the policy been formally communicated
toallrelevantinternal and external stakeholders?

vy v ]y [y [y [y [Y |

The Policies are uploaded on our website for communicating it to
theinternal and external stakeholders at the link
http://www.mangroup.com/policy.html

Does the company havein-house structure to
implementthe policy/ policies.

Y Y Y Y Y

Does the Company have agrievance redressal mechanism
related to the policy/ policies to address stakeholders’
grievancesrelated to the policy / policies?

Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y

Grievancesrelated to any of the policies could be reported at the
feedback section of our website at
- http://www.mangroup.com/contactus.html

Has the company carried outindependentaudit/evaluation
of the working of this policy by aninternal or external
agency?

N N N N N N

If answer to the question at serial number 1 againstany principle, is‘'No; please explain why:

(Tickup to 2 options)

P1| P2| P3| Pa| P5| P6| P7| P8 | P9

The company has notunderstood the Principles

The companyis notata stage whereit finds itself
inaposition toformulate and implement the policies
on specified principles

The company does not have financial or manpower
resources available for the task

Itis planned to be done within next 6 months

Itis planned to be done within the next 1 year

Any other reason (please specify)
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GovernancerelatedtoBR

Indicate the frequency with which the Board of Directors, Committee of the Board or CEO to assess the BR
performance of the Company.Within 3 months, 3-6 months, Annually, More than 1 year.

The Business Responsibility Performance is reviewed annually.

Does the Company publish a BR or a Sustainability Report? What is the hyperlink for viewing this report? How
frequentlyitis published?

The Company is publishing its first Business Responsibility Report as a part of its annual report which will be published
annually.The Annual Reportis available at:- www.mangroup.com under the section Investor Relations.

SECTION E: PRINCIPLE-WISE PERFORMANCE
Principle 1: Business should conduct and govern themselves with Ethics, Transparency and Accountability

1. Does the policy relating to ethics, bribery and corruption cover only the company? Yes/ No. Does it extend to the
Group/JointVentures/ Suppliers/Contractors/NGOs /Others?

Yes, the Policy relating to ethics, bribery and corruption covers the group/joint ventures/suppliers/contractors/others.

How many stakeholder complaints have been received in the past financial year and what percentage was
satisfactorily resolved by the management? If so, provide details thereof, in about 50 words or so.

The Company has not received any complaintinvolvingissues relating to Principle-1.

Principle 2: Business should provide goods and services that are safe and contribute to sustainability throughout their life
cycle

List up to 3 of your products or services whose design has incorporated social or environmental concerns, risks
and/or opportunities:

The company is manufacturer of Large diameter carbon and steel pipe and do not use any raw materials in the form of natural
resources all our products are made from externally procured plates and coils. There are strict guidelines given by client on
product and type of raw material to be used which leaves us with limited scope for an alternative approach. However, at Man
Industries we strongly believe that sustainable development integrates economic progress and comes with multiple
strategic advantages that can be realized by exploring initiatives to improve operational efficiency through several energy
conservation measures. With that thought in mind, ccompany has installed 7 MW windmill plant in Gujarat for captive
consumption. We also conduct periodic audits and proactive maintenance of equipment to ensure that our operations
maximize efficiency and minimize waste.

For each such product, provide the following details in respect of resource use (energy, water, raw material etc.) per
unit of product(optional):

Reduction during sourcing/production/distribution achieved since the previous year throughout the value chain?
The company continuously monitors and tracks the use of its natural resources.
(b)  Reductionduringusageby consumers (energy, water) has been achieved since the previous year?

We are manufacturers of large diameter carbon and steel pipes. Our product does not consume any energy at end user level
astheyareinfrastructure product used for laying Pipeline for transportation of Oil & Gas and Water.

Does the company have proceduresin place for sustainable sourcing (including transportation)?
If yes, what percentage of your inputs was sourced sustainably? Also, provide details thereof, in about 50 words or so.

The Company has a structured procedure which is followed before collaborating with any business partner/vendor or
associate. Quality, health, safety and environment are the most significant aspects checked by us during vendor approval.
We procure raw materials from trusted vendors as per required quality and commercial standards in line with applicable laws
and regulations. Moreover, periodic reviews and audits of our vendor operations is conducted to ensure and enable the right
quality standards in the materials purchased.

44 | Man Industries (India) Ltd.




v v v
Corporate Overview Statutory Reports Financial Statement

Has the company taken any steps to procure goods and services from local & small producers, including communities
surrounding their place of work? If yes, what steps have been taken to improve their capacity and capability of local
and small vendors?

The company support local business and always tries to procure raw material from local producers. Only in case the required
product is not available then we opt for importing the same as there are strict guidelines from Clients on the type and grade
of raw material to be used.

Does the company have a mechanism to recycle products and waste? If yes what is the percentage of recycling of
products and waste (separately as <5%, 5-10%, >10%). Also, provide details thereof, in about 50 words or so.

The residue and scrap is disposed off as per the policy of the company. Waste water generated out of production is recycled
and used for gardening and sanitation.

Principle 3: Business should promote the wellbeing of allemployees

Pleaseindicate the Total number of employees.

Please indicate the Total number of employees
hired ontemporary/ contractual/ casual basis.

Please indicate the Number of permanent
women employees.

Please indicate the Number of permanent
employees with disabilities.

Doyouhave anemployee association thatis
recognized by management.

Whatpercentage of your permanentemployees
is members of this recognized employee
association?

Please indicate the Number of complaints
relating to child labour, forced labour,
involuntary labour, sexual harassment in the
last financial year and pending, as on the end
of the financial year.

Category

No. of
Complaints
filed
during the
Financial
Year

No. of
Complaints
pending as

on end of
the

Financial
Year

Child labour /
forced labour /
involuntary labour

NIL

NIL

Sexual Harassment

NIL

NIL

Discriminatory
employment

NIL

NIL

What percentage of your under mentioned
employees were given safety & skill up
-gradation training in the last year ?

Category

% of
Employees
given skill

upgradation
training

% of
Employees
given
safety
training

Permanent Employees

85%

98%

Permanent Women
Employees

90%

90%

Casual /Temporary
/ Contractual
Employees

49%

100%

Employees with
Disabilities

54%

65%

Annual Report 2020-21 | 45




QO
AMAN, ..

the line pipe people

Principle 4: Business should respect the interest of, and be responsive towards all stakeholders, especially those who are
disadvantaged, vulnerable and marginalized.

Has the company mapped itsinternal and external stakeholders? Yes/No

Yes, the company has mapped itsinternal as well as external stakeholders which are as follows: -
«  Employees

«  Customers

« BusinessPartners/Associates

+  Shareholders

« Localcommunitiesinareas of our operation

+  Governmentand regulatory bodies

Outoftheabove, has the companyidentified the disadvantaged, vulnerable & marginalized stakeholders.
Yes

Are there any special initiatives taken by the company to engage with the disadvantaged, vulnerable and
marginalized stakeholders? If so, provide details thereof, in about 50 words or so.

Yes, the company as part of its CSR initiatives has engaged with disadvantaged, vulnerable and marginalized stakeholders
and works for the betterment of their lives. We have worked extensively in the areas of education, women empowerment,
healthcare, environment etc.

Refer Annexure‘A'to the Directors report for details on Company’s CSRinitiative during the year.
Principle 5:Businesses should respect and promote humanrights

1. Does the policy of the company on human rights cover only the company or extend to the Group/ Joint Ventures/
Suppliers/ Contractors/ NGOs/Others?

The Company has a Code of Conduct for business and ethics, a policy & guidelines on sexual harassment of employees and
vigil mechanism/whistle blower policy which covers aspects ensuring human rights of its employees. Adherence to these
policies are expected from everyone dealing with the Company.

How many stakeholder complaints have been received in the past financial year and what percent was satisfactorily
resolved by the management?

During the financial year 2020-21, the Company has not received any complaints from stakeholdersin this respect.
Principle 6: Business should respect, protect and make efforts to restore the environment

1. Does the policy related to Principle 6 cover only the company or extends to the Group/ Joint Ventures/ Suppliers/
Contractors/ NGOs/ others.

Yes, the company expects all its stakeholders like employees, partners, customers, vendors to follow the policy and should
respectand protectand make efforts to restore environment.

Does the company have strategies/ initiatives to address global environmental issues such as climate change, global
warming, etc?Y/N. If yes, please give hyperlink for webpage etc.

No, however being in the manufacturing business, the Company has mechanisms in place to ensure compliance with the
applicable environmental laws. The Company is committed to be an environmentally friendly organization.

Does the companyidentify and assess potential environmental risks? Y/N

Yes, the company identifies and assess potential environment risks related to environment from its operations and takes all
efforts to mitigate them.

Does the company have any project related to Clean Development Mechanism? If so, provide details thereof, in
about 50 words or so. Also, if Yes, whether any environmental compliance report s filed?

No, we do not have any project related to clean development mechanism.

Has the company undertaken any other initiatives on - clean technology, energy efficiency, renewable energy, etc.
Y/N.Ifyes, please give hyperlinkfor web page etc.

Yes, we have 7 MW windmill for captive consumption to encourage use of renewable sources of energy.
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Are the Emissions/Waste generated by the company within the permissible limits given by CPCB/SPCB for the
financial year beingreported?

Yes, the emissions and waste generated were within permissible limits given by CPCB/SPCB.

Number of show cause/ legal notices received from CPCB/SPCB which are pending (i.e. not resolved to satisfaction)
ason end of Financial Year.

There are no show cause/ legal notices received from CPCB/SPCB as on end of FY.
Principle 7: Business, when engaged in influencing publicand regulatory policy, should do so in aresponsible manner.

1. Is your company a member of any trade and chamber or association? If Yes, Name only those major ones that your
business deals with:

The Company is the member of following associations and represent through them for improvement in various matters and
legitimate trade practices:-

o  ConfederationofIndianIndustry
Federation of Kutch Industrial Association
Bombay Chamber of Commerce and Industry
AllIndia Association of Industry
Engineering Export Promotion Council of India

Have you advocated/lobbied through above associations for the advancement or improvement of public good?
Yes/No; if yes specify the broad areas (drop box: Governance and Administration, Economic Reforms, Inclusive
DevelopmentPolicies, Energy security, Water,Food Security, Sustainable Business Principles, Others)

The Company understands the improvement and advancements of the industry in interest of public good. Our endeavor is
to co-operate with all Government bodies and policy makers in this regard.

Principle 8:Business should supportinclusive growth and equitable development.

1. Does the company have specified programmes/ initiatives/ projects in pursuit of the policy related to Principle 8? If
yes, details thereof.

Yes, the Company has a fair and standardized culture of equitable growth and development of employees,society, and
partners. The company has corporate social responsibility policy through which company participates actively for the
betterment of society specially for the upliftment of needy and weaker section of society. The details of CSR initiatives taken
by the Company during the year are given in the annual report on CSR Activities as set out in Annexure ‘A’ to the Directors
Report.

Are the programmes/ projects undertaken through in-house team/own foundation/external NGO/ government
structures/any other organization?

The projects are undertaken both directly by the company and also through NGO, government bodies, local authorities etc.
Haveyoudoneanyimpactassessmentof your initiative?
Thereisaninternal systemto assess theimpactat regularintervals for effectiveness of the initiative.

What is your company’s direct contribution to community development projects- Amount in INR and the details of
the projects undertaken.

During the financial year 2020-21 company has spent Rs. 176.73 lakh on various CSR Initiatives undertaken by the company.
The detail of the CSRinitiatives taken by the Company are given in Annexure‘A’'to the Directors report.

Have you taken steps to ensure that this community development initiative is successfully adopted by the
community? Please explain in 50 words, or so.

Yes, Initiatives undertaken under CSR are tracked to determine the outcomes achieved and the benefit it offered to the
community. Company staff remains in touch with the developments either directly or through the agency and keep on
taking time to time updates through mails, video conference or site visits wherever possible.
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Principle 9: Business should engage with and provide value to their customersand consumersin aresponsible manner.
1. What percentage of customer complaints/consumer cases are pending as on the end of financial year.
NIL

Does the company display product information on the product label, over and above what is mandated as per local
laws?Yes/No/N.A./Remarks(additional information)

The nature of our product is such that there is no one particular design and label that could be common to all our customers.
Each project or order is exclusive and are made strictly tailor made as per the directions of the clients. All the local laws are
strictly followed by us.

Is there any case filed by any stakeholder against the company regarding unfair trade practices, irresponsible
advertising and/or anti-competitive behaviour during the last five years and pending as on end of financial year. If so,
provide details thereof, in about 50 words or so.

No, there have been no cases filed against the company regarding unfair trade practices irresponsible advertising and/or
anti-competitive behavior.

Did your company carry out any consumer survey/ consumer satisfaction trends?

Our engagement with customers begins from front end engineering stages and extends well beyond the execution and
post-commissioning stages. We also religiously seek feedback from customers post completion of the project and carry out
analysis for assessment of Customer Satisfaction Index.

48 | Man Industries (India) Ltd.




v v v
Corporate Overview Statutory Reports Financial Statement

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Global economy outlook

Global growth is projected at 6% in 2021, moderating to 4.4% in 2022. The projections for 2021 and 2022 are stronger than in the
October 2020 WEO. The upward revision reflects additional fiscal support in a few large economies, the anticipated vaccine-
powered recovery in the second half of 2021, and continued adaptation of economic activity to subdued mobility. High uncertainty
surrounds this outlook, related to the path of the pandemic, the effectiveness of policy support to provide a bridge to vaccine-
powered normalization, and the evolution of financial conditions.

Theglobal gasand oil industry

The oil and gasindustry is used to the highs and lows of economic cycles. The downturn caused by COVID-19, however, is unlike any
other.With the survival of many companies at risk, coupled with a longer-term decline in petroleum demand, the next decade could
look very different for the oil and gas market.

Facing the challenge of transformation for the oil and gas industry

The global economy and capital markets have rebounded faster than expected in the third quarter of 2020. However, the pace of
recovery in the coming months remains highly uncertain as mounting COVID-19 cases amid winter conditions, especially in Europe
and the United States, may trigger another round of shutdowns and restrictions. Any further normalization of economic activity
largely depends on how the pandemic evolves during the winter and, mostimportantly, when COVID-19 vaccines reach the general
public. Even when the virusis controlled, economies are expected to continue dealing with the adverse impact of deteriorated fiscal
balances and the effect of muted business investment on the labour market and consumer spendingin 2021.

Global oil demand fell by 25% in April, but it has rebounded sharply since then, cutting its losses to just 8%. Looking ahead, 2021 oil
demand is expected to recover strongly but remain lower than it was at pre-COVID-19 levels—about 4% lower in the base case, and
about 7% lower in Rystad Energy's second-wave scenario.

Although the oil and gas sector is used to the highs and lows of economic and price cycles, this downturn seems unlike any other. In
fact, it's the “great compression” of the O&G industry. With the survival of many companies at risk, and the longer-term decline in
petroleum demand, the next decade could look very different for the entire O&G value chain.

Indian economy overview

India has emerged as the fastest growing major economy in the world and is expected to be one of the top three economic powers
inthe world over the next 10-15 years, backed by its robust democracy and strong partnerships.

India's real gross domestic product (GDP) at current prices stood at Rs. 135.13 lakh crore (US$ 1.82 trillion) in FY21, as per the
provisional estimates of annual nationalincome for 2020-21.

India needs to increase its rate of employment growth and create 90 million non-farm jobs between 2023 and 2030's, for
productivity and economic growth according to McKinsey Global Institute. Net employment rate needs to grow by 1.5% per year
from 2023 to0 2030 to achieve 8-8.5% GDP growth between 2023 and 2030.

According to data from the RBI, as of the week ended on June 04,2021, the foreign exchange reserves in India increased by US$ 6.842
billiontoreach US$ 605 billion.

RecentDevelopments

With animprovementin the economic scenario, there have been investments across various sectors of the economy. Private Equity -
Venture Capital (PE-VC) sector recorded investments worth US$ 20 billion in the first five months of 2021, registering a 2x growth in
value compared with the same period in 2020. Some of theimportant recent developmentsin Indian economy are as follows:

Merchandise exports stood at US$ 62.89 billion between April 2021 and May 2021, while imports touched US$ 84.27 billion. The
estimated value of service exports and imports between April 2021 and May 2021 stood at US$ 35.39 billion and US$ 19.86 billion,
respectively.

In May 2021, the Manufacturing Purchasing Managers' Index (PMI) in India stood at 50.8.
Gross GST collections stood atRs. 141,384 crore (US$ 19.41 billion) in April 2021.

Cumulative FDI equity inflows in India stood at US$ 763.58 billion between April 2000 and March 2021. Foreign Direct Investment
(FDI)inflows in India stood at US$ 6.24 billionin April 2021, registering an increase of 38% YoY.
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India's Index of Industrial Production (IIP) for April 2021 stood at 126.6 against 143.4 for March 2021.

In June 2021, foreign portfolio investors (FPIs) turned net buyers by investing Rs. 12,714 crore (US$ 1.71 billion) into the Indian
markets. According to depositories data, between June 1,2021 and June 25,2021, FPIs invested Rs. 15,282 crore (US$ 2.06 billion) in
equities.

GovernmentInitiatives

The first Union Budget of the third decade of 21st century was presented by Minister for Finance & Corporate Affairs, Ms. Nirmala
Sitharaman in the Parliament on February 1, 2020. The budget aimed at energising the Indian economy through a combination of
short-term, medium-term and long-term measures.

In the Union Budget 2021-22, capital expenditure for FY22 is likely to increase to increase by 34.5% at Rs. 5.5 lakh crore (US$ 75.81
billion) over FY21 (BE) to boost the economy.

Increased government expenditure is expected to attract private investments, with production-linked incentive scheme providing
excellentopportunities. Consistently proactive, graded and measured policy supportis anticipated to boost the Indian economy.

In November 2020, the Government of India announced Rs. 2.65 lakh crore (US$ 36 billion) stimulus package to generate job
opportunities and provide liquidity support to various sectors such as tourism, aviation, construction and housing. Also, India's
cabinet approved the production-linked incentives (PLI) scheme to provide ~Rs. 2 trillion (US$ 27 billion) over five years to create
jobsandboost productioninthe country.

The Government of India, under its Make in India initiative, is trying to boost the contribution made by the manufacturing sector
with an aim to take it to 25% of the GDP from the current 17%. Besides, the Government has also come up with Digital India initiative,
which focuses on three core components: creation of digital infrastructure, delivering services digitally and to increase the digital
literacy.

Some oftherecentinitiatives and developments undertaken by the Governmentarelisted below:

In June 2021, RBI Governor, Mr. Shaktikanta Das announced the policy repo rate unchanged at 4%. He also announced various
measuresincluding Rs. 15,000 crore (US$ 2.05 billion) liquidity support to contact-intensive sectors such as tourism and hospitality.

In June 2021, Finance Ministers of G-7 countries, including the US, the UK, Japan, Italy, Germany, France and Canada, attained a
historic contract on taxing multinational firms as per which the minimum global tax rate would be at least 15%. The move is
expected to benefit India toincrease foreign direct investmentsin the country.

According to an official source, as of June 2021, 29 companies including global electronics manufacturing organisations, such as
companies Foxconn, Sanmina SCI, Flex, Jabil Circuit, have registered under the Rs. 12,195 crore (US$ 1.64 billion) production linked
incentive scheme for the telecom sector.

In April 2021, Minister for Railways and Commerce & Industry and Consumer Affairs, Food & Public Distribution, Mr. Piyush Goyal,
launched 'DGFT Trade Facilitation'app to provide instant access to exporters/importers anytime and anywhere.

Indiais expected to attractinvestment of around US$ 100 billion in developing the oil and gas infrastructure during 2019-23.
Road Ahead

As indicated by provisional estimates released by the National Statistical Office (NSO), India posted a V-shaped recovery in the
second half of FY21. As per these estimates, India registered an increase of 1.1% in the second half of FY21; this was driven by the
gradual and phased unlocking of industrial activities, increased investments and growth in government expenditure.

As per the Reserve Bank of India's (RBI) estimates, India's real GDP growth is projected at 9.5% in FY22; thisincludes 18.5% increase in
the first quarter of FY22; 7.9% growth in the second quarter of FY22; 7.2% rise in the third quarter of FY22 and 6.6% growth in the
fourth quarter of FY22.

India is focusing on renewable sources to generate energy. It is planning to achieve 40% of its energy from non-fossil sources by
2030, which is currently 30% and have plans to increase its renewable energy capacity from to 175 gigawatt (GW) by 2022. In line
with this, in May 2021, India, along with the UK, jointly launched a 'Roadmap 2030’ to collaborate and combat climate change by
2030.

India is expected to be the third largest consumer economy as its consumption may triple to US$ 4 trillion by 2025, owing to shift in
consumer behaviour and expenditure pattern, according to a Boston Consulting Group (BCG) report. It is estimated to surpass USA
to become the second largest economy in terms of purchasing power parity (PPP) by 2040 as per a report by Pricewaterhouse
Coopers.
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Thelndianoiland gasindustry
ADVANTAGE INDIA

Supportive FDI Policy

Growing
Guidelines Support

Demand

India is the world'’s
third-largest energy
consumer globally.

Diesel demand in India
is expected to double
to 163 MT by 2029-30.

India is planning to
double its refining
capacity to 450-500
million tonnes by
2030.

In February 2021, Prime
Minister Mr. Narendra Modi
announced that the
Government of India plans
to invest - Rs. 7.5 trillion (US
$ 102.49 billion) on oil and
gas infrastructure in the
nextfiveyears.

The industry is expected to
attract US $ 25 billion
investment in exploration
and production by 2022.

The Government has
allowed 100% Foreign
Direct Investment (FDI) in
upstream and private
sectorrefining projects.

The FDI limit for public
sector refining projects
has been raised to 49%
without any
disinvestment or dilution
of domestic equity in the
existing PSUs.

In Union Budget 2021. the
government allocated
funds worth Rs. 12.480
crore (US $ 1.71 billion) for
direct benefit transfer of
LPG (liquefied petroleum
gas) and Rs. 1.078 crore
(US $ 147.31 million) to
feedstock subsidy to BCPL
/ Assam Gas Cracker
Complex.

(=)

Note: OALP - Open Acreage Licensing Policy, CBM - Coal Bed Methene, * As per Directorate General of Hydrocarbons

Oil and gas sector is among the eight core industries in India and plays a major role in influencing decision making for all the other
importantsections of the economy.

India's economic growth is closely related to its energy demand, therefore, the need for oil and gas is projected to grow more,
thereby making the sector quite conducive for investment.

The Government has adopted several policies to fulfil the increasing demand. It has allowed 100% Foreign Direct Investment (FDI) in
many segments of the sector, including natural gas, petroleum products and refineries among others. Today, it attracts both
domesticand foreign investment as attested by the presence of Reliance Industries Ltd (RIL) and Cairn India.

According to IEA (India Energy Outlook 2021), primary energy demand is expected to nearly double to 1,123 million tonnes of oil
equivalent, as the country's gross domestic product (GDP) is expected to increase to USD 8.6 trillion by 2040.

Market Size

India is expected to be one of the largest contributors to non-OECD petroleum consumption growth globally. Crude Oil import rose
sharply toUS$ 101.4 billionin 2019-20 from US$ 70.72 billion in 2016-17.

As of May 01, 2021, the sector's total installed provisional refinery capacity stood at 249.9 MMT; and I0C emerged as the largest
domestic refiner, with a capacity of 69.7 MMT.

As of December 01, 2020, India's oil refining capacity stood at 259.3 million metric tonnes (MMT), making it the second-largest
refinerin Asia. Private companies own about 35.29% of the total refining capacity in FY20.

In FY20, crude oil production in India stood at 32.2 MMT. In April 2021, the crude oil production stood at 2.5 MMT, while for FY21 it
was 30.5 MMT. In FY20, crude oil import increased to 4.54 mbpd from 4.53 mbpd in FY19. Natural Gas consumption is forecast to
reach 143.08 million tonnes (MT) by 2040.India's LNG import stood at 33.68 bcm during FY20.

India's consumption of petroleum products grew 4.5% to 213.69 MMT during FY20 from 213.22 MMT in FY19. The total value of
petroleum products exported from the country increased to US$ 35.8 billion in FY20 from US$ 34.9 billion in FY19. Export of
petroleum products from Indiaincreased from 60.54 MMT in FY16 to 65.7 MMT in FY20.

Exports of petroleum products from India reached 55.9 MMTin FY21 from 60.5 MMT in FY16.

As of December 31,2020, Gas Authority of India Ltd. (GAIL) had the largest share (69.39% or 11,884 kms) of the country's natural gas
pipeline network (17,126 kms).

Investments

According to the data released by Department for Promotion of Industry and Internal Trade Policy (DPIIT), the petroleum and
natural gas sectorattracted FDI worth US$ 7.91 billion between April 2000 and December 2020.
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Following are some of the majorinvestments and developmentsin the oiland gas sector:

According to government data, India's natural gas production increased by 22.7% YoY in April 2021, as Reliance Industries Ltd.
andits partner, BP plc, increased productionin the KG-D6 block on the east coast.

In February 2021, Petronet LNG announced its plans to increase in its Dahej terminal's capacity by 29% to 22.5 million tonnes
perannum (mtpa) to meet the rising demand.

Key Indian oil retailers such as Bharat Petroleum and Hindustan Petroleum have announced plans to increase the capacity of
theiroutletsinruralareasin2021.

In February 2021, ONGC announced that by May 2021, it would increase natural gas output from a KG basin block to 2.5-3
million standard cubic meters per day.

In February 2021, the government launched key oil & gas projects in Assam, such as INDMAX Unit at Indian Oil's Bongaigaon
Refinery, Oil India Limited's secondary tank farm at Madhuban, Dibrugarh and a 'Gas Compressor Station' at Hebeda Village,
Makum andTinsukia remotely from Dhemajiin Assam.

In February 2021, the government launched key oil and gas projects such as the Ramanathapuram - Thoothukudi natural gas
pipeline and Gasoline Desulphurisation Unitat Chennai Petroleum Corporation Limited, Manali.

Foreign investors will have opportunities to invest in projects worth US$ 300 billion in India as the country looks to cut reliance
on oil import by 10% by 2022 according to Mr. Dharmendra Pradhan, Minister of Petroleum and Natural Gas, Government of
India.

Government Initiatives
Some of the majorinitiatives taken by the Government of India to promote oil and gas sector are:

In February 2021, Prime Minister Mr. Narendra Modi announced that the Government of India plans to invest ~Rs. 7.5 trillion
(US$ 102.49 billion) on oil and gas infrastructure in the next five years.

In Union Budget 2021, the government allocated funds worth Rs. 12,480 crore (US$ 1.71 billion) for direct benefit transfer of
LPG (liquefied petroleum gas) and Rs. 1,078 crore (US$ 147.31 million) to feedstock subsidy to BCPL/Assam Gas Cracker
Complex.

In Union Budget 2021, the Finance Ministerannounced to provide 1 crore more LPG connections under Pradhan Mantri Ujjwala
Yojana (PMUY) scheme.

The Ministry of Petroleum and Natural Gas released a draft LNG policy that aims to increase the country's LNG re-gasification
capacity from42.5 million tonnes perannum (mtpa) to 70 mtpa by 2030 and 100 mtpa by 2040.

State run energy firms, Bharat Petroleum, Hindustan Petroleum and Indian Oil Corporation, plan to spend US$ 20 billion on
refinery expansions to add units by 2022.

The Governmentis planning to set up around 5,000 compressed biogas (CBG) plants by 2023.

The Government is planning to invest US$ 2.86 billion in the upstream oil and gas production to double natural gas production
to 60 bcm and drill more than 120 exploration wells by 2022.

Road Ahead

Energy demand of India is anticipated to grow faster than energy demand of all major economies on the back of continuous robust
economic growth. India's energy demand is expected to double to 1,516 Mtoe by 2035 from 753.7 Mtoe in 2017. Moreover, the
country'ssharein global primary energy consumptionis projected to increase by two-fold by 2035.

Crude oil consumptionis expected to grow ata CAGR of 3.60% to 500 million tonnes by 2040 from 221.56 million tonnesin 2017.

India's oil demand is projected to rise at the fastest pace in the world to reach 10 million barrels per day by 2030, from 5.05 million
barrel perdayin 2020.

Natural Gas consumption is forecast to increase at a CAGR of 4.18% to 143.08 million tonnes by 2040 from 58.10 million tonnes in
2018.
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Gas Grid and CGD sector

India s set to expand India's natural gas grid to 34,500 kms by adding another 17,000 km gas pipeline. The regasification capacity of
the existing42 MMT perannum will be expanded to 61 MMT peryear by the year 2022.

CGD sector has relatively high affordability and has the capacity to absorb prices of gas higher than power and fertilizer sectors.

Natural gas demand for CGD sector is expected to rise steadily due to the addition of gas networks in new cities, price advantage of
CNG and increased use of PNG in domestic, industrial and commercial sectors. Environmental concerns will further push the use of
natural gas especially in the automotive and industrial segment (coal replacement).

US$16.4bn industry capex on CGD infrastructure expansion to aid seamless CNG corridor The CGD business is likely to lead future
growth in India's gas demand based on the massive nationwide investment in new CGD networks awarded to sponsors in the 9th
and 10 rounds. This covers 132 GAs and entails an aggregate capex of Rs1.2trn (US$16.4bn) by various successful CGD entities who
have won these licenses.

Ratingagency CRISIL estimates CGD growth of 12% between FY22E and FY25E, based on the nationwide CGD network expansion.
Water sector

In India, 7% of the population, or 9.1 crore people, are without basic water supply, as per a 2019 joint report by the World Health
Organization and the United Nations Children's Fund. Despite a 14-percentage point jump in basic access to water supply over 17
yearsto 2017, nearly 60 crore Indians face“high to extreme water stress”.

As the Centre readies the annual Budget, expected to focus on reviving India's pandemic-hit economy, experts emphasise the need
to ensure basic access to water and sanitation. The water budget is even more crucial this year — access to clean water, handwashing
and sanitation is vital to control the spread of Covid-19, butis a key challenge for India, as IndiaSpend reported in June 2020.

In five years to 2020-'21, the government allocated an annual average of Rs 27,413 crore ($3.8 billion), or 1.1% of the budget, to the
departments of water resources, river development and Ganga rejuvenation, and drinking water and sanitation, all merged to form
the Ministry of Jal Shaktiin 2019.

Major water projectsinindia
JalJeevan Mission - Rural
Scope

Provide Functional Household Tap Connections (FHTC) to every rural household by 2024 with a service level of 55 litres per capita
perday (Ipcd).The schemeis also known as Har Ghar Nal Se Jal (HGNSJ). It also includes source sustainability — Rain water harvesting,
groundwater recharge, and other water conservation measures along with grey water management. The following programmes of
Gol have been subsumedin JJM:

Rural Water Supply and Sanitation Project for low income States (RWSSP-LIS)
National Water Quality Sub-Mission (NWQSM)

Water quality earmarked allocation (JE-AES)

Swajal Water Quality Monitoring & Surveillance (WQM&S)

Budget:INR 3.5 lakh crore for2019-2024

Duration:2019-2024

JalJeevan Mission - Urban

Scope

Universal coverage of water supply to all households in 500 AMRUT cities
Aim to provide tap water connection to 28.6 million urban households, as well as liquid waste management in 500 AMRUT cities.
Budget:INR 2,87,000 crore for2021-2026

Duration:2021-2026
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National River Linking Project (NRLP)
Scope

Large-scale civil engineering project that aims to effectively manage water resources by linking Indian rivers by a network of
reservoirs and canals to enhance irrigation and groundwater recharge, reduce persistent floods in some parts and water shortages
inother parts of India.

Components:

Northern Himalayanriversinter-link component

Southern Peninsularcomponent

Intrastate rivers linking component

Budget:INR22,495.62 Crore

Atal Mission for Rejuvenation and Urban Transformation (AMRUT)

Scope

In specificthe scoperelated to water supply, sewage and storm water drainage are:

Water supply systems including augmentation of existing water supply, water treatment plants and universal metering.
Rehabilitation of old water supply systems, including treatment plants.

Rejuvenation of water bodies specifically for drinking water supply and recharging of ground water.

Special water supply arrangement for difficult areas, hill and coastal cities, including those having water quality problems (e.g.
arsenic, fluoride)

Decentralised, networked underground sewerage systems, including augmentation of existing sewerage systems and sewage
treatmentplants.

Rehabilitation of old sewerage system and treatment plants.

Recycling of water for beneficial purposes and reuse of wastewater.

Construction and improvement of drains and storm water drains in order to reduce and eliminate flooding
Budget:INR 50,000 crore for 2015-2020, INR 7,300 crore for 2021-22

Pradhan MantriKrishi SinchayiYojana (PMKSY) - Accelerated Irrigation Benefit Project (AIBP)

The major objective of PMKSY is to achieve convergence of investments in irrigation at the field level, expand cultivable area under
assured irrigation, improve on-farm water use efficiency to reduce wastage of water, enhance the adoption of precision-irrigation
and other water saving technologies (More crop per drop), enhance recharge of aquifers and introduce sustainable water
conservation practices by exploring the feasibility of reusing treated municipal waste water for peri-urban agriculture and attract
greater private investmentin precision irrigation system. PMKSY has been conceived amalgamating ongoing schemes viz.

Accelerated Irrigation Benefit Programme (AIBP) of the Ministry of Water Resources, River Development & Ganga Rejuvenation
(MoWR,RD&GR)

Integrated Watershed Management Programme (IWMP) of Department of Land Resources (DoLR).
On Farm Water Management (OFWM) of Department of Agriculture and Cooperation (DAC)
Budget:

INR 5,300 crore-2015-16

INR 11,506 crore-2020-21

INR 11,588 crore-2021-22

Duration: 2015 onwards
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Shiftfrom Swachh campaign to drinking water

Nearly half (48.3%) of the households (in urban and rural India) did not have exclusive access to drinking water and one-fourth of
households accessed it through a public, unrestricted source (23.6%), IndiaSpend reported in June 2020 based on National Sample
Survey data.

In the 2020-'21 budget, the government allocated Rs 11,500 crore to the department of drinking water and sanitation as part of the
Rs 3.6-lakh-crore ($49 billion) Jal Jeevan Mission to provide a functional tap water connection in every rural household by 2024 and
supply atleast 55 litres per capita per day.

Ason January 27,2020, two in three of 191 million rural households did not have a functional household tap connection, even after
the number of households with connections doubled from August 2019, according to the Jal Jeevan Mission dashboard.

The Sustainable Development Goal-6 aims to ensure countries achieve universal access to safe drinking water as well as sanitation
and hygiene for all by 2030. Securing water for communities across the world by 2030 could cost just over 1% of global GDP, the
World Resources Institute estimated in this January 2020 analysis:“In the United States, France, China, and India, water scarcity is the
primary driver of costs, from a cost perspective, limiting sustainable water management”

It would take India 3.2% of the GDP it is estimated to have by 2030 to deliver sustainable water management, the World Resources
Institute noted.

Company overview

Man Industries (India) Limited is one of the largest Manufacturers and Exporters of LSAW and HSAW pipes in India with a total
installed capacity of 1 million tonnes. MIL has two plants: one plant in Anjar, Kutch District of Gujarat and other in Pithampur,
Madhya Pradesh. Anjar plant facilitates easy transportation to two major ports Kandla and Mundra as well as provides good
connectivity to the road network. Both facilities put together spread across ~150 acres of land. The Company's facilities hold
internationally accepted quality standards laid down by the American Petroleum Institute (API) which is a mandatory requirement
to produce high pressure line pipes for hydrocarbon applications.

In the year 2020-21, your Company's operations were impacted due to the COVID-19 Pandemic. As per the directives of
Government, both our manufacturing plants were shut down as India went into lockdown on 25th March. Subsequently, after
restrictions were lifted, we started our operations from 15th April in a phased manner and have been following mandatory social
distancing/ sanitization guidelines.

Products

Longitudinal Submerged Arc Welded Pipes (LSAW): Diameters ranging from 16”to 56”; maximum Pipe Length12.20 meters, and a
total capacity of 500,000 tonnes p.a.

Helically Submerged Arc Welded Pipes (HSAW): Diameter ranging from 18” to 130", maximum Pipe Length-18 meters, and a total
capacity of 500,000 tonnes p.a.

New product offerings include ERW Pipes and Steel bends

Coating:Singlelayer FBE, Internal blasting & painting, Coal tar Enamel

Clients

Domestic Clients: GAIL, IOCL, HPCL, BPCL, ONGC, Reliance, Adani, EIL, BHEL, L&T, Petronet India Ltd. and many more.

International Clients: SHELL, Kinder Morgan, Energy Transfer USA, Kuwait Oil Company, Hyundai Engineering & Construction Ltd.,
Petro Bangla - Bangladesh, NPCC-Abu Dhabi, PETROBRAS-Brazil and many more.

Riskand mitigation

The Company continuously works towards de-risking its business by adopting preventive measures. Your Company has well
established Business Risk Management System which enables detection and monitoring of the business risks on a continuous basis.
However, there are certain potential risks being more industry oriented and the management strongly feels the same could be
mitigated by having systematic decisions and measures.These industry-oriented risks are as listed below:

Foreign Exchange Rate Fluctuation: The Company being engaged in exports, derives approximately 50%-60% of its revenue from
exports. An appreciation of the Indian Rupee can adversely impact the Company's exports.
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Mitigation: The Company manages this financial risk through booking of forward contracts in the range of approximately 50% of
our projected sales and also the company enjoys natural hedge in the form of raw materialimports.

Variation in Raw Material Prices: Raw Material is a very crucial cost for the Company's products. Any increase in the prices of core
raw materials, would adversely affect the Company's operating results.

Mitigation: The Company maintains a back to back Raw Material arrangement with the supplier and quotations are taken at the
time of tendering for the order.

Liquidity Risk: The Company needs working capital for successful execution of projects. Inability of the Company to source low cost
funds and control debt levels may impact profitability.

Mitigation: With efficient financial planning, focus on debt equity ratio, and good track record, the company is able to source funds
from banks and financial institutions ata reasonable cost.

Receivables Risk: The Company by virtue of supplying turnkey contractors and Government Bodies is exposed to receivables risks.

Mitigation:The effective credit risk management practices of the Company, strong internal control measures, frequent reviews, will
minimize therisk of receivables to a greater extent.

Internal control systems and theiradequacy

The internal control framework is designed to ensure proper safeguarding of assets, maintaining proper accounting records and
providing reliable financial information and other data. This system is supplemented by internal audit, reviews by the management
and documented policies, guidelines and procedures. The Company has a well-defined organizational structure, authority levels,
internal rules and guidelines for conducting the business transactions. The Company intends to undertake further measures as
necessary in line with its intent to adhere to procedures, guidelines and regulations as applicable in a transparent manner. Internal
audit department of the Company carries out the internal audit of the Company operations and reports its finding to the audit
committee. In this process the internal audit also evaluates the functioning and quality of internal controls and provides assurance
of its adequacy and effectiveness through periodic reporting. Internal audit is carried out as per risk based internal audit plan which
is reviewed by the audit committee of the Company. The committee periodically reviews the findings and suggestions for the
improvementandisapprised on theimplementation statusin respect of the actionable items.

Humanresource

Man Industries (India) Limited is extremely focused on people development along with its organisational growth journey. With this
positive business and people driven mind-set, the company's HR team has started their new initiatives and HR Change
management practices. HR Team is conducting research and revisiting its HR practices to enhance productivity and employee
motivation and believes that its inherent strength lies in its dedicated workforce. The Company created a holistic working
environment that encouraged employees to extend beyond their work scope towards innovative interventions.

Disclaimer

Statements in management discussion and analysis describing the Company's objectives, projections, estimates, expectations or
predictions may be forward looking statements within the meaning of applicable securities laws and regulations. Actual results
could differ materially from those either expressed or implied. Important factors that could make a difference to the Company's
operation include among others, economic conditions affecting demand/supply and price conditions, variation in prices of raw
materials, changes in governmental regulations, tax regimes, economic developmentsand

56 | Man Industries (India) Ltd.




v v v
Corporate Overview Statutory Reports Financial Statement

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
1. COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company believes that good Corporate Governance is essential to achieve long term corporate goals and enhance
stakeholder's value. The Philosophy on Corporate Governance is aimed at attainment of highest level of transparency,
accountability and compliance with laws in all facets of operations, leading to best standards of Corporate Governance.

The Company believes that good ethics make good business sense and our business practices are in keeping with this spirit of
maintaining the highest level of ethical standards.

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Composition, Category of Directorship, Number of Board or Committees in which aDirectorisa Member or Chairman:

The Composition of the Board of Directors got disturbed during the year due to the sad demise of Mr. Kirit N. Damania, one of the
Independent Directors of the Company, on August 21, 2020. However, the Composition of the Board of Directors stood in
conformity with the requirement of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as on March 31,
2021.

The composition and category of directors and relevant details relating to them as on 31st March 2021 are given below:

** *% No. of
Name of the Directors Category *Directorship | Membership Chairmanship | Sharesheld
onBoard of of inthe

including Committees Committees Company
this Company including including ason
this Company this Company 31.03.2021

Mr.R.C.Mansukhani Promoter & Executive
Chairman 1,37,54,992

Mr.Nikhil Mansukhani Promoter & Executive
Director 35,86,285

Mr.Pramod KumarTandon Independent Director

Mrs.RenuP.Jalan Independent Director

Mrs.HeenaVinay Kalantri Non-Executive Director
Non-Independent
Director 23,61,511

Mr.Narendra Mairpady Independent Director

* Private limited companies (Other than subsidiary of public company), foreign companies and companies under Section 8 of the
Companies Act, 2013 are excluded for the above purpose.

** Chairmanship / membership of the Audit Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee alone are considered.
Mr.R.C.Mansukhaniis the father of Mr. Nikhil Mansukhaniand Mrs. Heena Vinay Kalantri.

None of the Directors is a member of more than ten Board-level Committees or Chairman of more than five such Committees, as
required under SEBI LODR, across all public limited Companies in which they are directors. All the Directors have complied with the
limit of maximum number of Directorships permitted underthe 2013 Act.

Save and except as disclosed in the financial statements, none of the Directors or Non-Executive Directors had any pecuniary
relationships or transactions vis-a-vis the Company during the year.

Itis also confirmed that in the opinion of the board, the independent directors fulfill the conditions specified in SEBI LODR and are
independent of the management.
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All Directors and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct approved and adopted by the
Board of Directors and the declarationin this regard by the Chairman is forming part of this Report.

Attendance of Directors at Board Meetings and last Annual General Meeting (AGM):

During the Financial Year 2020-21 under review, 7 Board Meetings of the Company were held on June 23, 2020, August 12, 2020,
September 5, 2020, September 15, 2020, October 27,2020, January 21,2021 March 31,2021. The last Annual General Meeting of
the Company was held on September 30, 2020. The details of attendance of the Directors at the said Board Meetings and the last
Annual General Meeting of the Company are as follows:

Directors Board Meetings Board Meetings Attendance at
held during the year attended lastAGM

Mr.R.C.Mansukhani 7 7 Yes

Mr. Nikhil Mansukhani Yes

Mr. Kirit N.Damania A NA

Mr.Pramod KumarTandon Yes

Mrs.RenuP. Jalan Yes

Mrs.HeenaVinay Kalantri Yes

Mr.Narendra Mairpady * NA

A Deceased on August21,2020.
* Appointed w.e.f. February 23,2021.

The time gap between any two Meetings did not exceed one hundred twenty days. The information as prescribed under Listing
Regulations, 2015 were placed before the Board from time to time, as required.

Familiarization program for Independent Directors

Pursuant to Regulation 25 of SEBI LODR Listing Regulations, the Company is required to conduct various program for the
Independent Directors of the Company to familiarize them with their roles, rights, responsibilities in the Company, nature of the
industry in which the Company operates, business model of the Company, etc.

The details of programmes for familiarisation for Directors is available on the website of the Company at the
link:http://mangroup.com/pdf/Familiarisation%20Programme%20for%20Independent%20Directors.pdf

Chart/Matrixrelating to skills / expertise / competence of the Board of Directors

Name of the Director Skills / Expertise/ Competence

Mr.R.C.Mansukhani Knowledge of the industry in which the Company operates. Rich experiencein manufacturing
of H-Saw and L-Saw Pipes (including all types of anti-corrosion coatings), leadership quality,
business strategy, decision making, marketing, operations, excellent managerial skills,
Corporate Governance.

Mr. Nikhil Mansukhani Knowledge on Company’s businesses and policies; Business Strategy, Financial and
Management Skills, Decision making skills.

Mrs.HeenaVinay Kalantri Varied experience in the field of marketing, finance and specialization in Human Resource
Management.

Mr. Kirit N. Damania A Advocate & Solicitor having more than 55 years of vast experience in legal consultancy,
conveyancing, real estate mattersand finance areas.

Mr.Pramod KumarTandon Knowledge on Company’s businesses and policies; Business Strategy, Financial and
Management Skills, Stakeholder Relationship.

Mrs.RenuP.Jalan Knowledge on Company’s businesses and policies; Experience in the field of Art, Marketing
and Finance.

Mr.Narendra Mairpady * Knowledge of General business management, Accounting, Banking and finance, Integrity and
ethical standards, Decision making, Problem solving skills.

A Deceased on August 21,2020.
* Appointed w.e.fFebruary 23,2021.
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3. AUDITCOMMITTEE

The Audit Committee is constituted in accordance with the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 18
of the Listing Regulation 2015 including 2/3rd Independent Directors.

Chief Financial Officer and Statutory Auditors are permanent invitees to the Audit Committee meetings. Company Secretary, is the
Secretary to the Committee.

The Audit Committee met 5 times during the financial year 2020-21 on June 23,2020, August 12,2020, October 27,2020, January 21,
2021 and March 31,2021 and the intervening period between the two meetings did not exceed 120 days.

The composition of the Audit Committee as on 31st March 2021 and attendance of the Committee Members at the Audit
Committee Meetings held during the financial year 2020-21 are as follows:

Name of the Member Designation No. of Meetings attended
Mr.KiritN.Damania A Chairman 1

Mr.Pramod KumarTandon# Member 5
Mr.Nikhil Mansukhani Member 5
Mrs.RenuP.Jalan Member 5

A Deceased on August 21,2020
#Mr.PramodTandon has been appointed as Chairman of the Audit Committee w.e.f. September 5, 2020.
Theterms of reference of the Committee are as follows:

i.  Overseeing the Company's financial reporting process and the disclosure of financial information to ensure presentation of
correct, sufficientand credible financial statements;

recommending to the Board, the appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the Company;

reviewing with the management, the annual financial statements and auditor's report thereon before submission to the Board
forapproval, with particular reference to:

(@)  mattersrequired to be included in the Director's Responsibility Statement to be included in the Board's report in terms
of clause (c) of Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013;

(b)  changes,ifany,inaccounting policies and practices and reasons for the same;

()  majoraccounting entriesinvolving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management;

(d) significantadjustments madein the financial statements arising out of audit findings, if any;

(e)  compliance withlisting and other legal requirements relating to financial statements;

(f)  disclosureof any related party transactions;and

(9) qualificationsinthe draftaudit report, ifany;

reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the Board for approval;

reviewing, with the management, the statement of use/application of funds raised through anissue (publicissue, rights issue,
preferentialissue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer document/ prospectus
/ notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the utilisation of proceeds of a public or rights issue,
and making appropriate recommendations to the Board to take up stepsin this regard;

reviewing and monitoring the auditor'sindependence and performance, and effectiveness of audit process;
approval orany subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with related parties;

Scrutinizing inter-corporate loans and investments;

valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, whereveritis necessary;

evaluating the internal financial controls and risk management systems;

reviewing, with the management, performance of Statutory and Internal Auditors and adequacy of the internal control
systems;

reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function including the structure of the internal audit department, if any, staffing and
seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage and frequency of internal audit;

discussing with Internal Auditor of any significant findings and follow up thereon;
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xiv. reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the Internal Auditor into matters where there is suspected fraud or
irregularity or afailure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the matter to the Board;

discussion with Statutory Auditors before the commencement of audit about the nature and scope of audit as well as post-
auditdiscussion to ascertain any area of concern;

looking into the reasons for substantial defaults, if any, in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, shareholders (in
case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors;

reviewing the functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism;

approving the appointment of CFO (i.e., the whole-time Finance Director or any other person heading the finance function or
discharging that function) after assessing the qualifications, experience and background, etc. of the candidate;

reviewing the following information:
(@)  managementdiscussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations;

(b) statement of significant related party transactions (as defined by the Audit Committee), submitted by
management;

(0 management letters / letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors; and Internal audit reports
relating tointernal control weaknesses;

XX. reviewing he appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the Chief Internal Auditor(s), ifany; and
xxi. carryingoutsuch otherfunctionsas may be assigned by the Board from time to time.
The Committeeis vested with necessary powers to discharge the abovementioned roles and responsibilities.
4. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Composition of Committee, Meetings and Attendance:

The Composition of the 'Nomination & Remuneration Committee' as on 31st March 2021 was in accordance with provisions of
Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of the Listing Regulations, 2015.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee met Four times during the financial year 2020-21 on 23.06.2021, 05.09.2021,
27.10.2021and 21.01.2021.

The composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and attendance of the Committee Members at the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee Meetings held during the financial year 2020-21 are as follows:

Name of the Member Designation No. of Meetings attended
Mr. Kirit N. Damania A Chairman 1

Mr. Pramod KumarTandon# Member/Chairman 4
Ms.HeenaVinay Kalantri Member 4
Mrs.RenuP.Jalan Member 4

The Company Secretary of the Company acts as Secretary to the Committee.

*w.e.f.May 28,2019

A Deceased on August 21,2020

"Mr.PramodTandon has been appointed as Chairman of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee w.e.f. September 5,2020.
The terms and reference of nomination and remuneration committee broadly includes the following:

1. Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director and
recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and other senior
managementemployees;

Formulation of criterion for evaluation Directors performance on the Board and also the performance of the Board as a
whole;

Devising a policy on Board diversity;

Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior management in accordance
with the criteria laid down, by the committee and recommend their appointment and removal to the Board.
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Nomination and Remuneration Policy:

The Company’s policy inter-alia, on Directors’ appointment and remuneration, including criteria for determining qualifications,
positive attributes, independence of a Director and other matters provided under the Act is available on the website of Company at
www.mangroup.com.

Criteria of selection and performance evaluation of Independent Directors:

The NRC considers, inter alia, key qualifications, skills, expertise and competencies, whilst recommending to the Board appointment
ofanyIndependent Director.

In case of appointment of Independent Directors, NRC satisfies itself about the independence of the Directors vis-a-vis the Company
toenablethe Board to dischargeits functions and duties effectively.

The NRC ensures that the candidates identified for appointment as Directors are not disqualified for appointment under Section 164
and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. In case of re-appointment of Independent Directors, the Board takes
into consideration the performance evaluation of the Independent Directors and their engagement level.

As required under Rule 6 of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, all the Independent Directors
have completed the registration with the Independent Directors Data bank.

5. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS::
A. Remuneration of Whole-Time /Executive Directors and their Shareholding

The remuneration of the Whole-time Director/Executive Director is based on the Company’s size, its economic and financial
position, industrial trends and compensation paid by peer Companies. Compensation reflects each Board member’s
responsibility and performance. The remuneration to the Whole-time/Executive Directors are paid as per the terms
recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, approved by the Board of Directors and Members of the
Company.

Remuneration to the Executive Directors shall majorly comprise of:
(@)  Fixed Componentlike basicsalary,
(b)  Allowances &Perquisitesand

(c)  Variable Component like Commission, depending on the profit of the Company in that particular financial year,
which put together with the salary and perquisites shall be subject to overall ceiling laid down in Sec. 197 of the
CompaniesAct, 2013.

The remuneration paid to the Whole-time /Executive Director and their shareholding are as follows :

Name of the Directors Remuneration paid for the Number of shares held
year2020-21(Rs.) ason March 31,2021
Mr.R.C. Mansukhani 7,98,95,898 1,37,54,992
Mr.Nikhil Mansukhani 2,53,66,288 35,86,285

Details of all elements of remuneration package of the above Whole-time / Executive Directors are given in the Annual
Return.

Remuneration of Non-Executive Directors and their Shareholding:

Except the sitting fees for attending the Board and other Committee Meetings, Non-Executives Directors do not receive any
other pecuniary benefit from the Company. The Non-Executive Directors are paid sitting fees of Rs. 30,000/ for every Board
Meeting and Rs. 10,000/- for every Audit Committee Meeting attended by them. The Chairman of the Committee, on the
recommendation of the Committee Members, can increase the limit of sitting fees for attending each Board meeting or
Committee meeting up toany amount not exceeding Rs. 100,000/- per meeting. Any increase beyond Rs. 100,000/- has to be
priorly approved by the members at the general meeting.
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The remuneration paid to the Non-Executive Directors and their shareholding are as follows :

Name of the Directors Sitting Fees for theyear2020-21 (Rs.) No.of Sharesheld as
Board Meeting Committee Meeting onMarch 31,2021
Mr.Kirit N. Damania A 30,000 10,000 NIL
Mr.Pramod KumarTandon 2,10,000 50,000 NIL
Mrs.RenuP.Jalan* 2,10,000 50,000 NIL
Mrs.HeenaVinay Kalantri 2,10,000 N.A. 23,61,511
Mr.Narendra Mairpady * 30,000 N.A. NIL

* Appointed w.e.f.February 23,2021.
A Deceased on August 21,2020

Apart from the sitting fees that are paid to the Non-Executive Directors for attending the Board/Committee meetings, no
other fees/commission were paid during the year. No significant material transactions have been made with the Non-
Executive/Independent Directors vis-a-vis the Company.The company does not have any Employee Stock Option Scheme.

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee has been constituted in accordance with the provisions of Section 178 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Regulation 20 of the Listing Regulations, 2015.

The composition of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee as on 31st March 2021 is as follows:

Name of the Member Designation
Mr.Pramod KumarTandon Chairman
Mr. Kirit N. Damania A Member
Mr.Nikhil Mansukhani Member
Mrs.RenuP.Jalan Member

Mr. Shashank Belkhede, Company Secretary acted as Compliance Officer and Secretary to the Committee till May 31,2020. He has
retired from the Company on May 31, 2020. Thereafter, Mr. Jatin Shah, New Company Secretary have been acting as Compliance
Officer and Secretary to the Committee since October 27,2020.

A Deceased on August 21,2020

Statement of Shareholders Complaints received during the year 2020-21:

No.of Complaints atthe No. of complaints received No.of resolved No.of pending
beginning of the year duringtheyear complaints complaints
0 6 6 0

7. RISKMANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

SEBI, through SEBI (LODR) Second Amendment Regulation, 2021 has w.e.f. 05.05.2021, mandated that the Board of Directors of the
top 1000 listed Companies (by Market Capitalisation as at the end of the immediate previous financial year) to constitute a Risk
Management Committee (RMC). The Board of Directors of the Company has constituted the Risk Management Committee at their
meeting held on 31st May, 2021.

The composition of the Risk Management Committeeis as under:

Name of the Member Category Designationin the Committee
Mr.R.C. Mansukhani Executive Chairman Chairman

Mr. Nikhil Mansukhani Executive Director Member

Mr.PramodTandon Independent Non-Executive Director Member

Mr. Ashok Gupta Chief Financial Officer Member

Mr. Jatin Shah Group Head - Legal & Secretarial Member
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Terms of Reference of the Risk Management Committee, inter alia, includes the following:

Toadvise the Board inidentification and managing the full range of risks the enterprise faces;

Provide oversight during the design and implementation of a comprehensive risk management framework and common-
sense approach to managerisks across the entire organisation;

Establish and communicaterisk vision and philosophy, approverisk strategy and establish risk appetite;

Review and approve the Enterprise Risk Management framework of company on a periodic basis. The Committee shall review
and approve the risk management culture, processes and practices of the company;

Monitor and review the exposures of the material risks and assess management preparedness to deal with the risk and
associated events. f) Review and approve the enterprise risk management (ERM) working plan and utilise risk for the
enterprise's competitive advantage;

Overseeing key risks, including strategic, financial, operational, cyber and compliancerisks;

ii. Overseeand guidethedevelopmentandimplementation of ERM policies, procedures, guidelines.

Xi.

8.

. Advice the Board on all matters related to ERM. Engage other stakeholders in the risk management process when the need is

identified. Facilitate communication of ERM information;

Disseminate to the enterprise the upside of risk and the opportunities it can present, rather than the traditional perspective of
“risk as hazard".

Risk Management Committee may form and delegate authority to a sub-committee, which shall assist the Committee to
project manage the ERM.

To carry outany other functions as prescribed under the Listing Regulations and other Applicable Laws.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (CSR Committee), constituted in accordance with the provisions of Section 135 of
the Companies Act,2013.

The CSR Committee metThrice during the financial year 2020-21 on June 23,2020, January 21,2021 and March 31, 2021.

The composition of the CSR Committee and attendance of the Committee Members at the CSR Committee Meetings held during
thefinancial year2020-21 are as follows:

Name of the Member Designation No. of Meetings attended

Mr.R.C. Mansukhani Chairman 3

Mr.PramodTandon Member

3
Mr.Nikhil Mansukhani Member 3
Mrs.HeenaVinay Kalantri * Member 1

*w.e.f.January 21,2021.

The Company Secretary is the Secretary to the Committee.

Theterms of reference of the CSR Committeeinter-aliaare as follows:

(i)

(ii)

To formulate and recommend to the Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy (CSR Policy) which shall indicate, inter-alia,
the CSR activities to be undertaken by the Company as specified in Schedule VIl of the Companies Act, 2013 as amended from
timetotime;

Torecommend and obtain approval of the Board for the amount of expenditure that can be incurred on the activities referred to
in clause (i);

(iii) Toensurethattheactivitiesasareincludedin CSR Policy of the Company are undertaken by the Company;

(iv) To prepare a transparent monitoring mechanism for ensuring implementation of the CSR projects/programs/ activities being

undertaken/proposed to be undertaken by the Company; and
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(v) Todischarge such otherfunctions as may be assigned by the Board from time to time.
CSRPolicy:

The Committee has been entrusted with necessary powers to discharge the abovementioned roles and responsibilities. The
Company has uploaded the CSR Policy and the Annual Report on CSR Activities for the financial year 2020-21 on its website,
www.mangroup.com

9. GENERALBODY MEETINGS

Details of last 3 Annual General Meetings held along with Special Resolutions passed thereat, if any are as under:

Financial Day, Date & Time Venue Particulars of
Year Special Resolutions passed

2019-20 Friday, Through Video Conferencing Approval for payment of managerial
30th September, 2020 / Other Audio Visual Means remuneration made during the year in

03:00 p.m. excess of overall limits prescribed under
Companies Act and waiver of recovery of
excess managerial remuneration paid to
Mr. R.C. Mansukhani for the financial year
ended March 31,2020.

Issue of Warrants on Preferential basis.

2018-19 Friday, Juhu Vile Parle Gymkhana Re-appointment of Mr. Pramod Tondon as
27th September, 2019 Club, Plot No U/13, JV.PD. anIndependent Director.

04:30 p.m. Scheme, 13th Road, Juhu,
Opposite Juhu Bus Depot, Continuation of Directorship of Mr. Kirit

Juhu, Mumbai - 400049. Damania, aged above 75 years.

Waiver of recovery of excess remuneration
paid to Mr.R.C. Mansukhanifor the financial
yearended March 31,2019.

Continuation of payment of remuneration
to Executive Directors who are Promoter in
excess of limit prescribed under Regulation
17(6)(e) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment)
Regulations, 2018.

2017-18 Friday, Juhu Vile Parle Gymkhana Re-Appointment of Mr. Kirit Navnitlal
28th September, 2018 Club, Plot No U/13, J.V.PD. Damania as an Independent Director of the
430 p.m. Scheme, 13th Road, Juhu, Company.

Opposite JUhU.BUS Depot, Re-appointment of Mr. R.C. Mansukhani as
Juhu Mumbai - 400049 Chairman & Whole-Time Director of the
Company.

Re-appointment of Mr. Nikhil Mansukhani
as Executive Director of the Company.

The Company has not passed any Special Resolution through Postal Ballot during the year 2020-21.
1. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION
I. Quarterly/HalfYearly/Annual Results

Quarterly/Half Yearly/Annual Results of the Company are regularly submitted to the Stock Exchanges through NSE Electronic
Application Processing System (NEAPS) and BSE Corporate Compliance & Listing Centre (the “Listing Centre”). The same are also
publishedin the 'Business Standard'/'Free Press Journal' and 'Tarun Bharat'/'Navshakti'/'Mumbai Lakshdeep'
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ii. Website

The Company posts its Quarterly/Half Yearly/Annual Results, Annual Report, official news releases, presentations made to investors
and transcripts of the meetings with institutional investors/analysts on its website i.e. www.mangroup.com. The website contains
the basic information about the Company e.g. details of its business, financial information, shareholding pattern, compliance with
corporate governance, contact information of the designated official of the Company who are responsible for assisting and
handling investor grievances and such other details prescribed under Regulation 46 of the Listing Regulations, 2015. The Company
ensuresthatthe contents of its website are updated at all times.

iii. Designated e-mail id

The Company has designated an e-mail id viz. investor.relations@maninds.org to enable the Members to register their complaints,
if any, for expeditious redressal.

11. GENERAL SHAREHOLDERINFORMATION

33rd Annual General The 33rd Annual General Meeting (AGM) for the year ended March 31,2021 is scheduled
Meeting Day, Date, Time and | to be held on Wednesday, September 29, 2021 at 03.00 PM. (IST) through Video
Venue Conferencing/Other AudioVisual Means.

Financial Calendar 1st Aprilto 31stMarch
Financial Year

Financial reporting of Within 45 days from the end of quarter
Quarterly unaudited results

(other than last quarter)

Annual audited results Within 60 days from the end of the last quarter

Book Closure Date September 23,2021 to September 29,2021 (both days inclusive)

Registrar and Share Transfer | For share related matters, Members are requested to correspond with the Company's
Agents Registrar and Transfer Agents - Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd quoting their Folio No./DP ID &

ClientID atthefollowing address:

C-101, 247 Park, L.B.S.Marg,

Vikhroli (West), Mumbai-400083

Ph:022-49186000; Fax: 022 -49186060;

Email: rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in

Dematerialization of Shares | Trading in equity shares of the Company is permitted only in dematerialized form. The
and Share Transfer System | Company's shares are held in dematerialized form to the extent of 98.69% of the total
issued and paid up shares as on March 31, 2021. The promoters hold their entire
shareholding in dematerialized form.

It may be noted that w.e.f. 1st April 2019 as per SEBI mandate, requests for effecting
transfer of securities (except in case of transmission or transposition of securities) shall
not be processed, unless the securities are held in the dematerialized form with the
depositories. Hence, members are requested to dematerialize their physical securities at
the earliest.

Members can contact the Company's RTA for assistance in this regard.

Corporate Identification L99999MH1988PLC047408
Number (CIN)
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Listing on Stock Exchanges | BSELimited (Scrip Code:513269)

Phiroze JeejeebhoyTowers, Dalal Street,
Kala Ghoda, Mumbai-400001
Tel:912222721233; Fax:912222721919

National Stock Exchange of India Limited
(Trading Symbol: MANINDS)

Exchange Plaza, Bandra Kurla Complex,
Bandra (E), Mumbai-400 051

The Company has paid the annual listing fees for the financial year 2020-21 to BSE and
NSEin the prescribed timelines.

Demat ISIN For Equity Shares | INE993A01026

Outstanding GDRs / ADRs | 30,00,000 Equity warrants issued during the year to promoter group entity are
/Warrants / Convertible outstanding for conversion ason March 31,2021.
Instruments and their impact
on equity

Plant Locations 1. Plot No. 257/258 B, Sector No.1, Pithampur Industrial Area, Pithampur (Near Indore),
District: Dhar (MP);
Ph:07292-253666

2.Village: Khedoi, Taluka: Anjar, District: Kutch (Gujarat)
Ph: 02836 - 249160

Registered Office and MAN HOUSE, 101, S. V. Road,
Address for Correspondence | Opp. Pawan Hans, Vile Parle (W),
Mumbai - 400056

DISCLOSURES

Disclosure on materially significant related party transactions having potential conflict with the interest of
the Company at large

The Company has not entered into any materially significant transaction with related parties having potential conflict
with its interest at large during the financial year 2020-21 or which was not in the normal course of business or not on
an arm's length basis. The statements containing the transactions entered by the Company with related parties are
reviewed by the Audit Committee on quarterly basis.

In accordance with the provisions of the erstwhile Listing Agreement, the Board has, upon the recommendations
made by the Audit Committee, formulated a Policy on materiality of related party transactions and also on dealing
with related party transactions. The Company has uploaded the Policy on Related Party Transactions on its website
WWWw.mangroup.com.

Details of non-compliance by the Company, penalties, strictures imposed on the Company by Stock
Exchanges or SEBI or any Statutory Authority, on any matter related to Capital Markets, during the last three
years.

The Company has complied with all the requirements of the Listing Regulations and guidelines except that, in March
2021, the National Stock Exchange of India Limited and BSE Limited have imposed penalty of Rs. 2,41,900/- each
for delay in compliance of Reg 17(1) SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
regarding composition of Board of Directors. In this regard, it may be noted that, the delay in compliance occurred
due to the sudden death of Mr. Kirit Damania, one of the Independent Directors of the Company, which was beyond
control of the Company and the prevailing lockdown restrictions due to COVID-19 delayed the Company's efforts to
fill the casual vacancy in time. However, the Company has complied with the provisions of Reg. 17(1) and the the
Composition of the Board of Directors and the aforesaid Committees was in conformity with the requirement of the
Listing Regulations, as on March 31, 2021. Further, the Company has made applications to both the Stock
Exchanges for waiver of fine/penalty as per the Stock Exchanges' policy for the same.
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Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy

In accordance with the provisions of Section 177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 and the erstwhile Listing Agreement, the Company has adopted a
Whistle Blower Policy to provide a mechanism to its Directors, Employees and other stakeholders to raise concerns
about any violation of legal or regulatory requirements, misrepresentation of any financial statement and to report
actual or suspected fraud or violation of Code of Conduct of the Company.

The Policy allows the whistle-blowers to have direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee in exceptional
circumstances and also protects them from any kind of discrimination or harassment. During the financial year2020-
21, no employee was denied access to the Audit Committee. The Company has uploaded the Whistle Blower Policy
on its website www.mangroup.com.

Compliance with mandatory and non-mandatory requirements

The Company has complied with all the applicable mandatory requirements as prescribed under the Listing
Regulations, 2015 during the year. Details of these compliances have been disclosed in the relevant sections of this
Report. The status of compliance with the non-mandatory requirements as prescribed in Schedule Il to the Listing
Regulations, 2015 is provided herein below:

The Board
This Clause is not applicable to the Company as the Chairman of the Board is not a Non-Executive Director.
Shareholder Rights

The Company publishes its quarterly/half yearly and annual financial results in English and Marathi newspapers
having wide circulation. The financial results and significant events, if any, are communicated by the Company to the
Stock Exchanges and are also uploaded on its website i.e. www.mangroup.com. The same are not sent to the
Members individually.

Reporting of Internal Auditor
Internal Auditor of the Company reports to the Audit Committee of the Company.
Material Subsidiaries

The Company has three subsidiary companies and none of them falls under the definition of “material subsidiary”.
The Audit Committee reviews the financial statements and,in particular, the investments made by the subsidiary
companies. The Board is periodically informed about all significant transactions and arrangements entered into by
these subsidiary Companies.

Company's policy for determining 'material' subsidiaries' is envisaged in the Related Party Transactions Policy of the
Company and is available Company's website, www.mangroup.com.

Risk Management

The Company has laid down procedures to inform the members of the Board about the risk assessment and
minimization procedures. The Company has framed the risk assessment and minimization procedure which is
periodically reviewed by the Board.

Credit Rating :

The Company is rated 'A-' by Crisil Limited (outlook positive), as at March 31, 2021. There has been no change in
ratings during the year, however, the outlook has been revised from stable to positive.

Details of total fees paid to the Statutory Auditors of the Company

The details of the total fees for all services paid by the Company and its subsidiaries, on a consolidated basis, to the
Statutory Auditor and all entities in the network firm/network entity of which the statutory auditor is a part are as below.

Sl. No. Description Amount (inRs. Lakhs)
1 Audit Fees 17.50
2 Fees towards Other Services (Certifications) 3.63
3 Reimbursement of expenses -

Total 21.13
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Details of Sexual Harassment complaints received and redressed

Opening Balance Received during the year Resolved during the year Closing Balance
NIL NIL NIL NIL

Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit

Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit Report pursuant to Regulation 76 of SEBI (Depositories and Participants)
Regulations, 2018 submitted by J. Suthar & Associates, Company Secretaries, confirms that as on March 31, 2021,
the aggregate number of equity shares of the Company held in demat form with NSDL, CDSL and in physical form
were reconciled with the total number of issued/paid-up shares of the Company.

Disclosure by Senior Management Personnel

No material financial and commercial transactions were entered into by the Company with the Senior Management
Personnel, where they could have had personal interest conflicting with its interest at large.

CEOI/CFO Certification

A certificate given by the Chairman and Chief Financial Officer of the Company to the Board, in accordance with the
provisions of Regulation 17(8) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015, on the
accuracy of the financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2021 and adequacy of internal controls is
annexed hereto and forms an integral part of this Report.

Certificate from Company Secretary in practice

A certificate from the Company Secretary in practice that none of the directors on the board of the Company have
been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors of companies by the Board / Ministry of
Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority is attached with this Annual Report.

Quarterly Compliance Reports / Auditor’s Certificate on Corporate Governance

During the financial year 2020-21, quarterly compliance reports on corporate governance have been submitted by
the Company to the stock exchanges within the time limit prescribed under Regulation 27 of the Listing Regulations,
2015 and the same are also uploaded on its website. A certificate from Practicing Company Secretary regarding
compliance of the conditions of corporate governance by the Company as required under Schedule V of the Listing
Regulations, 2015 is annexed hereto and forms an integral part of this Report.
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MARKET PRICE DATA:

The high and low prices and volumes of your Company’s (MIIL) shares at BSE for the financial year 2020-21are as under:

Period BSE SENSEX

High | Low | Volume High Low
Apr-20 | 45.65 | 37.00 | 315442 | 33887.25 | 27500.79 55000.00
May-20 | 41.10 | 35.00 | 151384 | 32845.48 | 29968.45 5000000
Jun-20 | 56.20 | 37.90 | 811410 | 35706.55 | 32348.10
Jul-20 | 52.80 | 44.30 | 649203 | 38617.03 | 34927.2
Aug-20 | 68.50 | 44.60 | 1856312 | 40010.17 | 36911.23 40000.00
Sep-20 | 75.90 | 53.45 | 1713472| 39359.51 | 36495.98
Oct-20 | 75.80 | 57.95 | 1504801 | 41048.05 | 38410.20
Nov-20 | 78.45 | 64.00 | 942165 | 44825.37 | 39334.92 30000.00
Dec-20 | 92.70 | 68.15 | 1645365 | 47896.97 | 44118.10
Jan-21 | 89.75 | 77.55 | 919660 | 50184.01 | 46160.46
Feb-21| 82.55| 71.30 | 673371 | 52516.76 | 46433.65 e SF Semson s M| Share Price
Mar-21 | 88.50 | 74.45 | 1129350| 51821.84 | 48236.35

45000.00

35000.00

MIIL Share Price Movement Chart - BSE

The high and low prices and volumes of your Company's (MIIL) shares at NSE for the financial year 2020-21are as under:

Period NSE SENSEX

High | Low | Volume High Low
Apr-20 | 45.30 | 37.20 | 3833700 9889.05 | 8055.80 16000.00 10000
May-20 | 41.70 | 34.90 | 1197494 | 9598.85 | 8806.75 15000.00 9000
Jun-20 | 56.20 | 37.45 | 7255590| 10553.15 | 9544.35 14000.00 8000
Jul-20 | 52.80 | 44.15 | 4476576 | 11341.40 | 10299.60 | 1300 7000
Aug-20 | 68.90 | 45.45 | 20570228 11794.25 | 1088225 |  :mom s000
Sep-20 | 76.00 | 53.90 | 18386048 11618.10 | 10790.20
Oct-20 | 75.45 | 57.50 | 8778756 | 12025.45 | 11347.05
Nov-20 | 78.50 | 64.50 | 7331017 13145.85 | 11557.40 o -
Dec-20 | 92.65 | 68.10 | 14339439 14024.85 | 12962.80 5 B . I

Jan-21 | 90.00 | 77.55 | 7758874 | 14753.55 | 13596.75 & @ ¢

Feb-21 | 82.50 | 71.10 | 4446915 15431.75 | 13661.75
Mar-21 | 88.75 | 74.50 | 10876342 15336.30 | 14264.40

11000.00 5000

10000.00 4000

s N SE iy s M 1| Shiir e Price

MIIL Share Price Movement Chart — NSE
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SHAREHOLDING PATTERN OF THE COMPANY AS ON 31.03.2021 :

Category of Shareholders

No. of Shares

% of Total Shares

PROMOTERS

24307569

42.57

PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING

Mutual Fund

200

0.00

Foreign Institutional Investor/Foreign Portfolio Investors

31,63,948

5.54

Financial Institutions / Banks

5,000

0.01

Insurance Companies

1,112,139

0.20

Individuals

2,05,96,765

36.07

Hindu Undivided Family

16,14,848

2.83

Directors/Directors Relatives

23,61,511

414

Non-Resident Indians

9,03,464

1.58

NBFCs registered with RBI

1,100

0.00

Employees Trust (The Court Receiver)

9,69,063

1.70

IEPF

4,98,012

0.87

Clearing Member

1,83,154

0.32

Bodies Corporate

23,86,282

4.18

Total (A + B)

5,71,03,055

100.00

Distribution of Shareholding

Distribution of Shares

Shareholders

Number

% of Total

Shares Allotted

% of Total Share
Capital

001-500 28105

83.96

3896014

6.82

501-1000 2541

7.59

2088081

3.66

1001-2000 1276

3.81

1964365

3.44

2001-3000 490

1.46

1275555

2.23

3001-4000 209

0.62

757250

1.33

4001-5000 212

0.63

1008773

1.77

5001-10000 322

0.96

2351297

4.12

10001 and above 321

0.96

43761720

76.64

Total 33,476

100.00

5,71,03,055

100.00
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NATIONALELECTRONICCLEARING SCHEME (NECS) FORDIVIDEND

The Reserve Bank of India (RBI) has provided National Electronic Clearance Scheme (NECS) to the investors as an option to receive
dividend directly through their bank accounts rather than receiving the same in the form of Dividend Warrants / Demand Drafts.
Under this option, the bank account of the investor is directly credited and the intimation thereof is sent by the Company to the
Shareholder.

This service provides instantaneous credit to the shareholders account and protects against fraudulent interception and
encashment of dividend warrant but also eliminates dependence on the postal system, loss/ damage of dividend warrants in transit
and correspondencerelating to revalidation/issue of duplicate warrants/Demand Drafts.

REGISTRATION OF BANK DETAILS FORSHAREHOLDERS HOLDING SHARE INPHYSICAL FORM

The shareholders holding shares in physical form who wish to avail the electronic credit facility for dividend, if any declared by the
Company, may send their Bank Details along with other KYC details to the Company's Registrar and Transfer Agent, Link Intime India
Pvt. Ltd, C -101, 247 Park, L.B.S. Marg, Vikhroli (West), Mumbai - 400 083, Tel (022) 4918 6270 Toll Free 1800 1020 878. The
Shareholders are requested to send the filled in 'KYC Form' given in the Annual Report along with their specimen signature which
should match with the records with the Company. In addition, they can also register their email address and/or update their Bank
Account detail by clicking on the link https://linkintime.co.in/emailreg/email_register.ntml provided by Registrar and Share Transfer
Agent of the Company.

SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING SHARE IN ELECTRONIC/DEMAT FORM

Shareholders holding shares in demat or electronic form may send in their Bank Mandate to the concerned Depository Participant
(DP) directly in the format prescribed by the DP. Pursuant to the depository regulations, the Company is obliged to pay dividend, if
any, declared by the Company, on dematerialized shares as per the details furnished by the concerned DP. The Company or the
Registrar &Transfer Agent cannot make any change in the records received from the Depository.

TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED /UNPAID AMOUNTSTOTHE INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND (IEPF):

Pursuant to Sections 124 and 125 of the Act and the Investor Education and Protection Fund (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and
Refund) Rules, 2016 (“IEPF Rules”), all unclaimed/unpaid dividend, application money, debenture interest and interest on deposits
aswell as principal amount of debentures and deposits, sale proceeds of fractional shares, redemption amount of preference shares,
etc. pertaining to the Company remaining unpaid or unclaimed for a period of 7 years from the date they became due for payment,
areliable to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) Authority, established by the Central Government.

Furthermore, the IEPF Rules mandate companies to transfer shares of shareholders whose dividends remain unpaid / unclaimed for
aperiod of 7 consecutive years to the demat account of the IEPF Authority. The said requirement does not apply to shares in respect
of which thereisa specific order of the Court, Tribunal or Statutory Authority, restraining any transfer of the shares.

Accordingly, the Company has during the year transferred the amount of dividends remained unclaimed and unpaid related to the
Year upto 2012-13. Further, shares of the Company, in respect of which dividend has not been claimed for 7 consecutive years or
more, have also been transferred to the demataccount of the [EPF Authority.

The members who have a claim on the above dividends or shares may claim the same from the IEPF Authority by submitting an
online application in Form No. IEPF-5 as per the procedure prescribed in the IEPF Rules. No claims shall lie against the Company in
respect of the dividend/shares so transferred. The Company strongly recommends shareholders to write to the Company's RTA to
encash/claim their dividends before the respective due dates in respect of the financial years as mentioned in the table below.

Financial Year Due date for transfer to IEPF
2013-14 01.11.2021
2014-15 02.02.2023
2015-16 29.10.2023
2016-17 02.11.2024
2017-18 03.11.2025
2018-19 29.10.2026
2019-20 17.04.2027
2020-21 02.12.2027
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CEO/CFO CERTIFICATION
[ Pursuant to Regulation 17(8) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015 ]
To,
The Board of Directors

Man Industries (India) Limited

We have reviewed financial statement and cash flow statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021 and that to the best of our
knowledge and belief:

1. Thesefinancial statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contains statements that
mightbe misleading.

These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs and are in compliance with existing Accounting
Standard, applicable laws and regulations.

There are to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transaction entered into by the company during the year during the yearended
31stMarch, 2021 which arefraudulent, illegal or violation of the Company's code of conduct.

We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that we have evaluated the
effectiveness on internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting and we have disclosed to the auditors
and the Audit Committee, deficiency in the design or operation of internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the step we
have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit Committee:
1. Significantchangesininternal control overfinancial reporting during the year.
2. Significantchangesinaccounting policies, if any, during the year and that same have been disclosed in the financial statements.

3. instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the management or an
employee having asignificantrole in the listed entity's internal control system over financial reporting.

Place: Mumbai R.C.Mansukhani Ashok Gupta
Date:May 31,2021 Chairman Chief Financial Officer

DECLARATION REGARDING CODE OF CONDUCT
[Pursuant to Para D of Schedule V to the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015]

I, R.C. Mansukhani, Chairman of Man Industries (India) Limited, declare that all the Board members and senior management
personnel have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct for Board and Senior Management Personnel for the year ended 31st
March, 2021.

Place: Mumbai Forand on behalf of the Board of Directors
Date:August9,2021
R.C.Mansukhani

Chairman
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS
[Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) read with clause (10)(i) of Para C of Schedule V to the SEBI

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015]

To,
The Members,

Man Industries (India) Limited

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of Man Industries
(India) Limited bearing CIN L99999MH1988PLC047408 and having registered office at MAN House, 101, S.V. Road, Opp. Pawan
Hans, Vile Parle (West), Mumbai 400056 Maharashtra (hereinafter referred to as 'the Company'), produced before us by the
Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with clause (10)(i) of Para C of
ScheduleV of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including Directors Identification Number
(DIN) status at the portal of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs at “www.mca.gov.in”) as considered necessary and explanations
furnished to us by the Company and its officers, we hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated
below for the Financial Year ending on March 31,2021 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as
Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or any such other Statutory
Authority

Sr.No. | Name of Director DIN Date of appointmentin Company
Mr.Rameshchandra Mansukhani 00012033 26/09/2008
Mr. Nikhil Rameshchandra Mansukhani 02257522 23/11/2011
Ms.Heena Vinay Kalantri 00149407 30/03/2015
Mr.Pramodkumar Awadh BehariTandon 00364652 14/02/2011
Mr. Kirit Navnitlal Damania A 01435190 30/03/2018
Ms.Renu Purshottam Jalan 08076758 08/03/2018
Mr.Narendra Mairpady 00536905 23/02/2021

A Deceased on August21,2020

Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment/ continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the management
of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. This certificate is neither an
assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has
conducted the affairs of the Company.

For J. Suthar & Associates
Company Secretaries

Jayantilal Suthar

(Proprietor)

FCSNo.:8779

Place: Mumbai CPNo.:21651
Date: August 9, 2021 UDIN : F008779C000736165
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CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To,
The Members of

Man Industries (India) Limited

We have examined the compliance of conditions of corporate governance by Man Industries (India) Limited ('The Company') for the
financial year ended 31st March, 2021, as stipulated in regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of regulation 46
and para C and D of Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ('SEBI Listing
Regulations').

The compliance of conditions of corporate governance is the responsibility of the Management. Our examination was limited to
procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of the corporate
governance, itis neitheran audit notan expression of opinion of the financial statement of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of the information and according to the explanations given to us and the representation made by the
Directors and the Management and considering the relaxations granted by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs and Securities and
Exchange Board of India warranted due to the spread of the COVID-19 pandemic, we hereby certify that the Company has complied
with conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above mentioned provisions of SEBI Listing Regulations for the year
ended 31st March, 2021. However, during the year due to the sad demise of Mr. Kirit Damania, one of the Independent Directors of
the Company, the composition of the Board of Directors got disturbed. However, the same is in conformity with the requirement of
the SEBI Listing Regulations as on March 31,2021.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

ForJ.Suthar & Associates
Company Secretaries

Jayantilal Suthar
(Proprietor)

Place: Mumbai FCSNo.:8779
Date:August9,2021 CPNo.:21651
UDIN : FO08779C000752601
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To,
The Members of
MAN INDUSTRIES (INDIA) LIMITED
Reportonthe Audit of the Standalone Financial Statement
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of MAN INDUSTRIES (INDIA) LIMITED (the 'Company'), which
comprise the Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2021, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), Standalone Statement of Cash Flows, and the Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity for the year
then ended, and notes to the Standalone Financial Statements including a summary of the significant accounting policies and
otherexplanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the“standalone financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone financial
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the 'Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair
view in conformity with the accounting principles generally acceptedinIndia, including the Indian Accounting Standards ('Ind AS')
prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended (“Ind
AS"), of the state of affairs (financial position) of the Company as at 31 March 2021, and its profit (financial performance including
the comprehensiveincome), its cash flows and the changes in equity forthe yearended onthatdate.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified
under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
forthe Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI') together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
ouraudit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the
standalonefinancial statements.

Key Audit Matter

Key audit matters ('KAM') are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report:

Description of Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Assessment of the carrying value of investment in and loans granted to its subsidiary Merino Shelters Private Limited
(Refertonote 6 and note 15 to the financial statements)

Asat 31 March 2021, the carrying amount of (a) investmentis | Our Audit procedures include the following substantive
¥ 10,229.83 lakhs and (b) loan given is ¥ 846.59 lakhs to its | procedures:

wholly owned subsidiary Merino Shelters Private Limited || Optained an understanding of the matter with the
(MSPL).The aggregate exposure of the Company in respect of management.

(a)and (b) aboveis ¥ 11,076.42 lakhs which is significant to the

. i h i f ith th
standalone financial statements of the Company. Considered the business forecasts with the current

market position relating to the demand and supply of the
Merino Shelters Private Limited is developing residential/ IT/ product.

Commercial real estate project at Nerul, Navi Mumbai. | i considered the work of the external independent
Considering current situation of the Real Estate industry there valuation expert engagement by the Company and
are indicators of the potential impairment of the Investments assessed their methods and objectivity

insubsidiary and loans given as set outon (a) and (b) above.
y g (@) (b) Examined terminal value of the subsidiary used in the

The Management has assessed the impairment by reviewing valuation report and tested mathematical accuracy of
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the business forecasts using the “DCF” valuation method the underlying calculations.
which involves the use of management estimates that are
dependent on future economic circumstances and noted
that no provision for impairment is required to be made in
respect of the investment in subsidiary and loans given and
the sameare considered good.

Based on the above procedures, the Management's
assessment of impairment in the carrying value of
investments in the subsidiary and loan given is
reasonable.

Considering the materiality of the amounts and due to the
management judgment required in estimating the value of
investment and such estimates being subjective, this matter
has beenidentified as a key audit matter.

Description of Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Assessment of the carrying value of investment in its subsidiary MAN Overseas Metal DMCC (Refer to note 6 to the financial
statements)

As at 31 March 2021, the carrying amount of investmentis¥ [ Our Audit procedures include the following substantive
2,985.75 lakhs, to its wholly owned subsidiary MAN Overseas | procedures:
Metal, DMCC, which is significant to the standalone financial

i. Obtained an understanding of the matter with the
statements of the Company.

management.
The Management has assessed the impairment by reviewing

the business forecasts using the “DCF” valuation method
which involves the use of management estimates that are
dependent on future economic circumstances and noted that
no provision forimpairment is required to be made inrespect |iii. Examined terminalvalue of the businessforecast.
of theseinvestmentin subsidiary and are considered good.

Considered the business forecasts with the current
market position relating to the demand and supply of the
product.

Based on the above procedures, the Management's
Considered the materiality of the amounts due to the |assessment of impairment in the carrying value of

management judgment required in estimating the quantum [ jnvestmentsin the subsidiary is reasonable.
of diminution in the value of investment and such estimates
being subjective, this matter has been identified as a key audit
matter.

Other Matter

We did not audit the financial statements/information of Dubai Branch included in the standalone financial statements of the
Company whose financial statements/financial information reflects total assets of ¥ 9,454.13 lakhs (previous year: 9,929.34 lakhs)
as at 31 March, 2021 and total operating revenues of ¥ 1549.95 lakhs (previous year: 21,789.12 lakhs) for the year ended on that
date, as considered in the standalone financial statements. The financial statements/financial information of this branch have been
audited by the branch auditor whose report has been furnished to us, and our opinion in so far as it relates to the amounts and
disclosuresincluded in respect of this branch, is solely on report of such branch auditor.

Our opinionis not qualifiedin respect of these matters.
Information other than the financial statements and Auditor's Report thereon

The Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Company's annual report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report
thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this otherinformation, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to reportin this regard.

Responsibilities of Managementand Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act, with respect to the preparation of
these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs (financial position), profit or loss (financial
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performance including other comprehensive income), of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India including the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to
the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whetherduetofraud orerror.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management and Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
buttodoso.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually orin the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone
financial statements.

As part of an auditin accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit. Wealso:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for explaining our opinion on whether the Company
hasadequate internal financial controls systemin place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by managementand Board of Directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and eventsin a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
andsignificantauditfindings, including any significant deficienciesininternal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bearonourindependence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance
inthe audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these mattersin our
auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the publicinterest benefits of such communication.
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Reporton OtherLegal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (‘the Order'), issued by the Central Government of India in terms of
Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the“Annexure A", a statement on the matters specified in paragraph 3 and 4 of the order, to the
extentapplicable.

Furtherto ourcommentsin Annexure A, as required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as appears from our
examination of those books;

¢) Thestandalone financial statements dealt with by this reportare in agreement with the books of account;

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014;

On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on 31 March, 2021 taken on record by the Board of
Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March, 2021, from being appointed as a director in terms of section
164(2) of the Act.;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in“Annexure B”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the
adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Reportin accordance with the requirements of Section 197 (16)
ofthe Act:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us, the remuneration paid by the
Companytoits directors during the currentyearisin accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Auditors)
Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of ourinformation and according to the explanations given to us:

i. ~ TheCompanyhasdisclosed theimpact, of pendinglitigationsasat 31 March, 2021 onits financial positioninits standalone
financial statements; (Refer note no 42)

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material
foreseeablelosses;

There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund
by the Company during the yearended 31 March, 2021.

The disclosures in the standalone financial statements regarding holdings as well as dealings in specified bank notes
during the period from 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016 have not been made in these standalone financial
statements since they do not pertain to the financial yearended 31 March 2021.

For MH Dalal & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 112994W

DevangDalal

Partner

Membership No. 109049
UDIN:21109049AAAARM1806
Place: Mumbai

Date:May 31,2021
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ANNEXURE A TO INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Annexure referred to in Independent Auditor's Report to the members of the Company on the Standalone Financial
Statement for the year ended 31 March, 2021

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the standalone financial statements of
the Company and taking into consideration the information and explanations given to us and the books of account and other
records examined by usin the normal course of audit, and to the best of our knowledge ad belief, we report that:

1. (a) The Company is in the process of updating records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of
property, plantand equipment.

(b) According to the information and explanation provided to us, all property, plant and equipment have been physically
verified by the management during the year and we are further informed that no material discrepancy has been noticed by
the managementon such verification. In our opinion, the frequency of physical verification of property, plantand equipment
isreasonable having regards to the size of the company and nature of its fixed assets.

(c) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of the record of the Company,
the title deeds of all the immovable properties as disclosed in property, plant and equipment are held in the name of the
Company.

In respect of immovable properties taken on lease and disclosed as right-of-use-assets in the standalone financial
statements, the lease agreements are in the name of the Company.

In our opinion, the management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals during the year. The
discrepancies noticed on physical verification of inventory as compared to book records were not material and have been
appropriately dealt with the books of account.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has granted unsecured loans to one (1) body
corporate, covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act; the closing year-end balance is ¥ 846.59 lakhs.

There are no written terms & conditions or written stipulation for the receipt of the principal amount, hence we are unable to
commenton paragraph 3 (iii) (a), (b) and (c) of the Order

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the provisions
of Sections 185 and 186 of the Act in respect of grant of loans, making investments and providing guarantees and securities,
as applicable except Section 186 (7) of the Act, wherein interest has not been provided for the loan given to Merino Shelters Private
Limited. Theyear-end balance ofthe loan is Rs. 846.59 lakhs.

In our opinion and information provided to us, the company has not accepted deposits within the meaning of Section 73 to
76 of the Act and the rules framed thereunder. Therefore, the provisions of the clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable to
the Company.

Pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government of India, the Company is required to maintain cost records under
Section 148 (1) of the Actin respect of its products.

We have broadly reviewed the same and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been
made and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of the records with a view to determine whether
theyare accurate of complete.

According to the information and explanation given to us and the records examined by us, the Company is regular in
depositing with the appropriate authorities, the undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employee's state
insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, goods and service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax and wherever
material, statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities. Further, no undisputed amounts payable in respect
thereof were outstanding at year-end for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

According to the information and explanation given to us and the records of the company examined by us, there are no
dues outstanding of income tax, sales tax including value added tax, employees state insurance, provident fund, duty of
customs or wealth tax or service tax or value added tax or cess on account of any dispute other than:
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the Statute theamountrelates is pending (In¥ lakhs)
Central Excise| Excise Duty 2009-2010 CESTAT Ahmedabad 27.45
Act, 1944 2006-2015 Comm.GST Gandhidham 686.18
ExciseDutyand | 2002,2009 Asst.Comm.GST 79.98
Penalty Gandhidham
Central Excise Act, 1944 Total 793.61
Goodsand GSTInterest& | 2019 Dy.Comm.SGSTAGRA 3.26
ServiceTax | Penalty

2017-2019 Dy.Comm.SGSTRAJKOT 138.40
Goods and ServiceTaxTotal 141.66
IncomeTax IncomeTaxand | A.Y.2009-2014 Appeals before the ITAT 2,014.37
Act, 1961 Interest AY.2012-2017 Appeals beforethe CIT 423.70
IncomeTaxAct, 1961 Total 2,438.07
M. P.Entry Tax 2003-2005 Tribunal, Bhopal 42.96
2005-2010 High Court, Indore 276.43
M. P.Entry TaxTotal 319.39
M.P.VAT | salesTax | 2002-2006 Supreme Court, Delhi 47.39
M. P.VAT Total 47.39
ServiceTax | ServiceTax& 2011-2012 Dy.Comm.GST 489.07
Penalty Gandhidham, Joint Comm.
GSTIndore, Comm GST
Gandhidham

2011-2016 CESTAT Ahmedabad 416.87
2006-2007 Comm. LTU Mumbai 425.89
ServiceTaxTotal 1,331.83
Grand Total 5,071.95

8.  Accordingtotherecords of the Company examined by us and the information and explanation given to us, the Company has
not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to any financial institution or a bank as at the balance sheet date. The
Company did not have any outstanding debentures during the year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the company did not raise moneys by way of
initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments). In our opinion, the term loans were applied for the
purpose for which the loans were obtained.

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the financial statements
and as per the information and explanations given by the management, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the
company by its officers oremployees has been noticed or reported during the period covered by our audit.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on examination of the records of the
Company, the Company has paid/provided managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated
by the provisions of Section 197 read with ScheduleV to the Act.

In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company,
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of
such transactions have been disclosed in the standalone financial statements as required under Ind AS 24 - Related Party
Disclosures specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Account) Rules, 2015.
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During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly
convertible debentures. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xiv) of the Order are not applicable.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered into any non-
cash transactions with directors or persons connected with them covered under Section 192 of the Act.

In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.
Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xvi) of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable to the Company.

For MH Dalal & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 122449W

Devang Dalal

Partner

Membership No. 109409
UDIN::21109049AAAARM1806
Place:Mumbai

Date:May 31,2021
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ANNEXURE B TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Independent Auditors' Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of section 143 of the
CompaniesAct, 2013 (the“Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of MAN INDUSTRIES (INDIA) LIMITED ("the Company") as
of March 31,2021 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAl). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
"Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and both issued by the ICAIl. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained
andif such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether duetofraud orerror.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
Company'sinternal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or
improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that
the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and
such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

For MHDalal & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 122449W

Devang Dalal

Partner

Membership No. 109409
UDIN::21109049AAAARM1806
Place: Mumbai

Date:May 31,2021
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STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH 2021
Z in lakhs

31st-March-2021 31st-March-2020

ASSETS
Non-currentassets
a) Property, plantand equipment 32,636.74 35,400.27
b) Right-of-use assets 1,030.78 1,427.48
c) Capital workin progress 101.17 356.04
d) Financial assets
i) Investments 13,216.31 13,320.59
ii) Tradereceivables 2,518.52 5,113.31
iii) Otherfinancial assets 456.70 1,556.75
Other non current assets 10,401.34 10,379.25
Total non currentassets 60,361.56 67,553.69

Currentassets

Inventories 33,156.08 37,960.16
Financial assets

i)  Investments 62.56 2.07
ii) Tradereceivables 63,528.43 42,707.31
iii) Cashand cashequivalent 1,700.21 13,592.43
iv) Bankbalance otherthan (iii) above 8,487.22 8,557.32
v) Loans 960.96 1,139.44
vi) Otherfinancialassets 505.36 832.89
Other currentassets 10,317.84 10,744.79
Total Current Assets 1,18,718.66 1,15,536.41
TOTALASSETS 1,79,080.22 -1,83,090.10

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

Equity share capital 2,855.15 2,855.15
Otherequity 80,438.50 71,604.18
Total equity 83,293.65 74,459.33

Liabilities
Non-current liabiliti
a)  Financial liabilities
i) Borrowings 203.13 1,533.33
ii)  Trade payable 84.44 11.00
iii) Lease liabilities 760.08 1,173.83
b)  Provisions 128.25 117.09
¢)  Deferred taxliabilities (net) 2,545.30 2,660.84
d) Othernon-currentliabilities 364.53 364.53
Total Non current liabilities 4,085.73 5,860.62

rrentliabiliti

a)  Financial liabilities
i) Borrowings 28,457.15 23,236.65

ii) Trade payable
-Dues of micro and small enterprises 821.58 468.53
-Dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 50,930.87 55,484.55
iii) Leaseliabilities 409.42 360.58
iv) Otherfinancial liabilities 3,182.98 6,552.94
Other current liabilities 6,444.09 15,353.61
Provisions 489.35 378.86
Current tax liability (net) 965.40 934.43
Total Current Liabilities 91,700.84 1,02,770.15
TOTALLIABILITIES 95,786.57 1,08,630.77
TOTALEQUITY AND LIABILITIES 1,79,080.22 1,83,090.10

Theaccompanying notes are an integral part of these standalone financial statements.

Thisis the Balance Sheetreferred toin ourreport of even date.

For MHDalal & Associates Forand behalf of Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants RCMansukhani Nikhil Mansukhani PKTandon RenuPJalan

Firmregistration number: 112449W Chairman Executive Director Director Director
DIN-00012033 DIN-02257522 DIN-00364652 DIN-08076758

DevangDalal HeenaKalantri NarendraS.Mairpady AshokGupta JatinShah

Partner Director Director ChiefFinancial Company Secretary
Membership No.: 109049 DIN-00149407 DIN-00536905 Officer

Place: Mumbai

Date: May31,2021
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STANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2021
(% in lakhs)

Particulars Note Year ended Yearended

No 2020-2021 2019-2020
INCOME
Revenue from operations 32 2,07,518.17 1,75,909.13
Otherincome 33 3,075.80 1,651.42
TOTALINCOME 2,10,593.97 1,77,560.55
EXPENSES
Cost of materials consumed 1,28,268.97 1,16,641.41
Purchases of stock-in-trade 17,691.17 10,033.03
Changesininventories of finished goods,
stock-in-trade and work-in-progress (5,994.39) (360.84)
Employee benefits expense 541233 5,396.17
Finance costs 5,274.07 6,441.50
Depreciation expenses 4,637.11 5,231.17
Other expenses 41,657.67 27,554.34
TOTALEXPENSES 1,96,946.93 1,70,936.78
Profit/(loss) before exceptional item and tax 13,647.04 6,623.77
Exceptionalitem (loss by fire) - 250.41
Profit/(loss) before tax 13,647.04 6,373.36
TAXEXPENSES
(1) Current tax 3,701.54 2,259.43
(2) Deferred tax (Credit) / charge. (117.06) (1,284.09)

Profit/(loss) for the period 10,062.56 5,398.02

Other Comprehensive Income
A(l) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (260.28) 645.12
(i) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (1.53) 23.53
B (i) ltems that will be reclassified to profit orloss - =
(ii) Income taxrelating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss =
Total Other Comprehensive Income (net of tax) (261.81) 668.65

Total Comprehensive Income for the period (Comprising Profit/(Loss)
and Other Comprehensive Income for the period) 9,800.75 6,066.67

Earnings per equity share of face value of Rs.5/- each
Basic earning per share
Dilluted earning per share

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these standalone financial statements.

Thisis the Profit & Lossreferred toin our report of even date.

For MHDalal & Associates Forand behalf of Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants RCMansukhani Nikhil Mansukhani PKTandon RenuPJalan

Firmregistration number: 112449W Chairman Executive Director Director Director
DIN-00012033 DIN-02257522 DIN-00364652 DIN-08076758

DevangDalal HeenaKalantri NarendraS. Mairpady Ashok Gupta Jatin Shah
Partner Director Director ChiefFinancial Company Secretary
Membership No.: 109049 DIN-00149407 DIN-00536905 Officer

Place: Mumbai
Date: May31,2021
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2021

A. Equité Share Capital (% In Lakhs)

Asat 1stApril, 2019

Changesin equity share capital during the year

18A

2,855.15

Asat31st March, 2020

Changesin equity share capital during the year

18A

2,855.15

Asat31st March, 2021

18A

2,855.15

B.OtherEquity (18 B)
Particulars

Reserve

General
Reserve

Reserves and Surplus

Securities
Premium

Retained

Foreign
currency

(ZInLakhs)

Money
received

Total

Balanceasat 1stApril, 2019

9,433.32

9,733.52

47,803.96

357.61

67,328.41

Profit/ (Loss) for the year

5,398.02

5,398.02

Other comprehensive gains/ (loss) for the year

- Remeasurements gains/ (loss) on defined
benefitplans

93.49

93.49

- Foreign currency translation differences

551.63

- DeferredTax

(19.57)

23.53

Dividend

Dividend on Equity Shares

(1,427.57)

(1,427.57)

Corporate Dividend Distribution Tax

(293.44)

(293.44)

Transfer to General Reserve

539.80

(539.80)

TransitionimpactofInd-AS116

(69.90)

(69.90)

Balanceasat31st March, 2020

9,433.32

10,273.32

50,945.19

71,604.18

Profit/ (Loss) for the year

10,062.56

10,062.56

Other comprehensiveincome/ (loss) for the year

- Remeasurements gains/ (loss) on defined

benefitplans

6.10

6.10

- Foreign currency translation differences

(257.45)

(257.45)

- Deferred Tax

(1.53)

(1.53)

Dividend on Equity Shares

(1,142.06)

(1,142.06)

Transfer to General Reserve

1,006.26

(1,006.26)

Adjustment of IncomeTax (earlier year)

(320.79)

(320.79)

Issue of share warrants

487.50 487.50

Balanceasat31stMarch, 2021

9,433.32

11,279.58

58,543.21

694.89

487.50 80,438.50

* Refer note 18A (d)

Theaccompanying notes are anintegral part of these standalone financial statements.

Thisis the Statement of Changes in Equity referred to in our report of even date.

For MHDalal & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration number: 112449W

DevangDalal
Partner
Membership No.: 109049

Place: Mumbai
Date: May31,2021
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RCMansukhani
Chairman
DIN-00012033

HeenaKalantri
Director
DIN-00149407

Forand behalf of Board of Directors

Nikhil Mansukhani
Executive Director
DIN-02257522
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Director
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Director
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Ashok Gupta
ChiefFinancial
Officer
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Zin Lakhs
2020-21 2019-20
[A]CASHFLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before tax from continuing operations 13,647.04 6,373.36
Adjustmentsfor:
Depreciation and amortisation expense 4,637.11 5,231.17
Finance costs 5,274.07 6,441.50
Interestincome (428.23) (730.59)
Bad debts 6,979.34 893.28
Provision for dobutful debts 213.81 -
Profit on sale of investments (net) (118.36) -
Fair valuation of investments through profitandloss (8.10) 3.04
Dividendincome (0.12) -
Loss by fire - 250.41
Foreign exchange (gain)/loss (net) (1,635.57) 41.02
Other compressiveincome (Net) (251.35) 668.65
Operating profit before working capital changes 28,309.64 19,171.84
Adjustments for:
(Increase)/ Decrease intrade and other receivables (24,318.31) 6,544.27
(Increase)/ Decrease ininventories 4,804.08 (16,297.25)
Increase/ (Decrease) intrade and other payables (11,231.64) 15,014.46
Increase/ (Decrease) in provisions 121.65 (419.74)
(30,624.22) 4,841.74
Cash (usedin)/from operations (2,314.59) 24,013.58
Direct taxes paid (net of refunds) (3,663.83) (2,679.35)
Net cash (usedin)/from continuing operations[A] (5,978.42) 21,334.23

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2021

[B] CASHFLOWS FROMINVESTING ACTIVITIES
Add:Inflows frominvesting activities
Interest received 428.23
Dividendreceived 0.12 -
Matuirty of Fixed Deposits 1,150.98 -
Proceedsfrom sale of investment 65.98

1,645.31 730.59

Less: Outflows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plantand equipment 1,222.12 1,067.54
Investmentin Fixed Deposits = 4,294.90

1,222.12 5,362.44

Net Cash (usedin)/frominvesting activities [B] 423.19 (4,631.85)

[C] CASHFLOWS FROMFINANCINGACTIVITIES

Add:Inflows from financing activities

Proceedsfrom short-term borrowings (net) 5,220.50 8,135.24

Proceedsfromissue of share warrants 487.50 -
5,708.00 8,135.24

Less: Outflows from financing activities
Repayments of long-term borrowings (net) 4,710.43 3,383.14
Repayment of lease liabilities 524.97 346.78
Dividend paid 1,135.80 1,398.40
Dividend Distribution Tax - 293.44
Interest paid 5,673.79 6,312.57
12,044.99 11,734.33
Cash (usedin) /from financing activities [C] (6,336.99) (3,599.09)
NETINCREASE /(DECREASE) INCASH AND BANKBALANCES (A+B+C) (11,892.22) 13,103.29
Cash and cash equivalents atbeginning of the year 13,592.43 489.14
Cash and cash equivalents atend of the year 1,700.21 13,592.43
Notes:
The standalone cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting
Stardard (Ind AS) 7- Statement of Cash Flows.

Thisis the Statementof Cash Flow referred to in our report of even date.

For MHDalal & Associates Forand behalf of Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants R CMansukhani Nikhil Mansukhani PKTandon RenuPJalan

Firm registration number: 112449W Chairman Executive Director Director Director
DIN-00012033 DIN-02257522 DIN-00364652 DIN-08076758

DevangDalal HeenaKalantri NarendraS.Mairpady  AshokGupta JatinShah
Partner Director Director ChiefFinancial Company Secretary
Membership No.: 109049 DIN-00149407 DIN-00536905 Officer

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 31,2021
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Noteson Financial Statements for the yearended 31st March 2021.

1 CORPORATE INFORMATION

Man Industries (India) Limited (hereinafter referred to as " MIIL " or " the company*“) is a public limited company incorporated
and domiciled in India and has its registered office at 101, Man House, S.V. Road, Vile Parle (West), Mumbai - 400056,
Maharashtra, India. The Company has its primary listings on the BSE Ltd. and National Stock Exchange of India Limited. The
company is engaged in the business of manufacturing, processing and trading of submerged arc welded pipes & steel
products.

Thefinancial statements are approved forissue by the Company’s Board of Directors on May 31,2021.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards ('Ind AS') under the historical cost
convention on the accrual basis except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values, the provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013(“the Act”) (to the extent notified) and guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of
India (SEBI). The Ind AS are prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 and relevantamendment rules issued there after.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a
revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hithertoin use.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the Management to make estimates,
judgments and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the period. Application of accounting policies that require critical accounting estimates
involving complexand subjective judgments and the use of assumptions in these financial statements have been disclosed in
note no 46, 48 and 49. Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as the Management becomes aware of changes in circumstances
surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in the financial statements in the period in which changes are
made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Estimation of uncertainties relating to the global health pandemic from COVID-19

The Company has considered the possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating to COVID-19 on the carrying
amounts of receivables, execution of orders and investment in subsidiaries. In developing the assumptions relating to the
possible future uncertainties in the global economic conditions because of this pandemic, the Company, as at the date of
approval of these financial statements has used internal and external sources of information including credit reports and
related information, economic forecasts. The Company has performed sensitivity analysis on the assumptions used and
based on current estimates expects the carrying amount of these assets will be recovered. The impact of COVID-19 on the
Company’s financial statements may differ from that estimated as at the date of approval of these financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
a IncomeRecognition

1) Revenue in respect of sale of goods is recognised on dispatch of goods from the factory on the basis of tax invoice.
The sales are net of Goods and Service Tax. Further the materials returned/rejected are accounted for in the year of
return/rejections.

ii) Fortheservice rendered the Company recognised revenue on the basis of Stage of Completion Method.

iii) Otherincome is comprised primarily of interest income, export incentives, exchange gain/loss on forward contracts and
on translation of other assets and liabilities. Other income is recognized on accrual basis except dividend income which is
recognized when the right to receive payment is established.
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Noteson Financial Statements for the yearended 31st March 2021.

b Property, Plantand Equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. The
cost directly attritubale to acquisition are capitalised until the property, plant & equipment are ready for use, as intended
by the Management.
Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each Balance Sheet date is
classified as capital advances under other non-current assets and the cost of assets not ready to use before such date are
disclosed under “Capital work-in-progress”. Subsequent expenditures relating to property, plant and equipment is
capitalized only when itis probable that future economic benefits associated with these will flow to the Company and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. Repairs and maintenance costs are recognized in the Statement of Profit and
Loss when incurred. The cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the financial statements upon
sale orretirement of the asset and the resultant gains or losses are recognized in the Statement of Profitand Loss.
The assets' residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate.

Leases:

Ind AS 116 requires lessees to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease adjusted with any option
to extend or terminate the lease, if the use of such option is reasonably certain. The Company makes an assessment on the
expected lease term on a lease-by-lease basis and thereby assesses whether it is reasonably certain that any options to
extend or terminate the contract will be exercised. In evaluating the lease term, the Company considers factors such as
any significant leasehold improvements undertaken over the lease term, costs relating to the termination of the lease and
the importance of the underlying asset to the Company's operations taking into account the location of the underlying
asset and the availability of suitable alternatives. The lease term in future periods is reassessed to ensure that the lease
term reflects the current economic circumstances. After considering current and future economic conditions, the
Company has concluded that no changes are required to lease period relating to the existing lease contracts (Refer to
Note41).

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses. Cost of a non-monetary asset acquired in exchange of another non-monetary asset is measured at fair value.
Intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in the
Standalone Statement of Profitand Loss.

Depreciation
Property, Plant & Equipment

The Company depreciates property, plantand equipment over their estimated useful lives using the straight-line method.
The estimated useful lives of assets are as follows:

Office Building 60years FactoryBuilding 30years
Plant&Machinery 15years Wind Mill 22years
Office Equipment’s 05years Furniture & Fixtures 10years
Vehicles 10years ComputerHardware 03 years
Depreciation methods, useful lifes and residual values are review periodically, including at each financial year end.
Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are amortized by straight line method over the estimated useful life of such assets. The useful life is
estimated based on the evaluation of future economic benefits expected of such assets. The amortisation period and
amortisation method are reviewed at least at each financial year. If the expected useful life of assets is significantly
different from previous estimates, the amortisation period is changed accordingly.
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Noteson Financial Statements for the yearended 31st March 2021.

f

Valuation of Inventories

Raw materials are valued at cost or net realizable value whichever is lower. Cost is computed using first in first out
(FIFO) method.

Work -in -progress include the cost of purchase, appropriate share of cost of conversion and other overhead incurred
in bringing the inventory toits presentlocation and condition.

Finished goods are valued at cost or net realisable value whichever is less. Cost includes cost of purchase, cost of
conversion and other overhead incurred in bringing the inventory to its present location and condition.
Obsolete/slow moving inventories are adequately provided for.

Other stores and spares/consumable are valued at cost after providing for cost of obsolescence, if any.

Foreign Exchange Fluctuation

i)

ii))

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the
transaction or thatapproximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies at the year end are restated at year end rates.

In respect of forward exchange contract entered for speculation purpose and expired during the year, the difference
in forward exchange booking rate and spot rate on the date of expiry of contract is dealt in the profit and loss
account. In respect of forward exchange contract entered for speculative purpose and carried forward in next
accounting period, the difference between the forward exchange booking rate and closing interbank rate including
premium upto maturity prevailing at the close of the year are dealtin the profitand loss account.

In respect of branches, which are non-integral foreign operations, all transactions are translated at rates prevailing on
the date of transaction or that approximates the actual rate at the date of transaction. Branch monetary assets and
liabilities are restated at the year-end rates. The exchange difference arising on translation are recognised in other
comprehensiveincome (OCl).

Any income or expense on account of exchange difference either on settlement or on translation is recognised in the
statement of profitand loss.

Employee Benefits

i)

ShortTerm Employee Benefits

All Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-term
employee benefits and they are recognized in the period in which employee renders the related service except leave
encashment.

Long Term Employee Benefits
Defined Contribution Plans
Defined contribution fund are government administered provident fund scheme, employee state insurance scheme

for all employees. The Company’s contribution to defined contribution plans are recognized in the profit & loss
accountinthefinancial yearto which they relate.

Defined Benefit Gratuity Plan

The Company'’s gratuity benefit scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company’s net obligation in respect of the
gratuity benefit scheme is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in
return for their service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present value and
thefairvalue of any plan assetsis deducted.

The presentvalue of the obligation under such defined benefit planis determined based on actuarial valuation using
the Projected Unit Credit Method.

The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount rates used for
determining the present value of the obligation under defined benefit plan, are based on the market yields on
Government Securities as at the balance sheet date.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to
retained earnings through other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Past service cost is
recognised in the statement of profitand loss in the period of plan amendment.
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Noteson Financial Statements for the yearended 31st March 2021.

iii) OtherLong-Term Employee Benefits
Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which
the employee renders the related services are recognised as a liability at the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the balance sheet date, determined based on actuarial valuation using Projected Unit Credit Method.
The discount rates used for determining the present value of the obligation under defined benefit plan, are based on
the marketyields on Government Securities as at the balance sheet date.

Taxation

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred income tax. Income tax expense is recognized in net profit in the
statement of profit and loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity, in which case it is
recognized in other comprehensive income. Currentincome tax for current and prior periods is recognized at the amount
expected to be paid to or recovered from the tax authorities, using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

The company offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognized amounts and where it intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The income tax provision for the interim period is made based on the best estimate of the annual average
tax rate expected to be applicable for the full financial year.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for all temporary differences arising between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each
reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those
temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect of changes in tax rates on deferred income tax
assets and liabilities is recognized as income or expense in the period that includes the enactment or the substantive
enactment date. A deferred income tax asset is recognized to the extent thatit is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences and tax losses can be utilized.

Provisions, ContingentLiabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisionis recognised in the accounts when there is a present obligation as a result of past event(s) and it is probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are not
discounted to their present value and are determined based on the best estimate required to settle the obligation at the
reporting date.These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Contingentliabilities are disclosed unless the possibility of outflow of resources is remote.
Contingentassets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial statements.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalised as part of the
cost of such assets. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for its intended
use.All other borrowing costs are charged to profitand loss account.

Earning Per Share

In determining earning per share, the Company considers the net profit after tax and includes the post-tax effect of any
extraordinary / exceptional item. The number of shares used in computing Basic Earning per Share is the weighted
average number of shares outstanding during the period. The number of shares used in computing Diluted Earnings per
Share comprises the weighted average shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and also the weighted
average number of shares that could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares unless the
results would be anti - dilutive. Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period,
unlessissued atalater date.
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m Exceptional ltems

Certain occasions, the size, type or incidence of an item of income or expense, pertaining to the ordinary activities of the
company is such that its disclosure improves the understanding of the performance of the company, such income or
expense is classified as an exceptional item and accordingly, disclosed in the notes accompanying to the financial
statements.

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets and are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the
recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual
asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In such
cases, the recoverable amountis determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized in the statement of profit and loss is
measured by the amount by which the carrying value of the assets exceeds the estimated recoverable amount of the
asset. Animpairment loss is reversed in the statement of profit and loss if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. The carrying amount of the asset is increased to its revised recoverable amount,
provided that this amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of any
accumulated amortization or depreciation) had noimpairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years.

Government Grants

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received, and all attached
conditions will be complied with.

Where the grant relates to an asset the cost of the asset is shown at gross value and grant thereon is treated as capital grant
which is recognised as income in the statement of profit and loss over the period and in proportion in which depreciation
ischarged.

Revenue grants are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the same period as the related cost which they are
intended to compensate are accounted for.

Where the company receives non-monetary grants, the asset and the grant are recorded gross at nominal amounts and
released to the statement of profit and loss over the expected useful life and pattern of consumption of the benefit of the
underlying asset by equal annualinstalments.

Financial Instruments

Initial recognition

The Company recognizes financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. All financial assets and liabilities are recognized at fair value on initial recognition, except for trade
receivables which are initially measured at transaction price. transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities, that are not at fair value through profit or loss, are added to
thefairvalue oninitial recognition.

Subsequent measurement
a. Non-derivative financial instruments
i) Financial assets carried atamortised cost

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial
asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amountoutstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Afinancial assetis subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive incomeifitis held withina
business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. The Company has made anirrevocable
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election for its investments which are classified as equity instruments to present the subsequent changes in fair
value in other comprehensive income based on its business model. Further, in cases where the Company has
made an irrevocable election based on its business model, for its investments which are classified as equity
instruments, the subsequent changes in fair value are recognized in other comprehensive income.

Financial assets at fair value through profitorloss

Afinancial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently fair valued through profit
orloss.

-Impairment

The Company recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets
which are not fair valued through profit or loss. Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant financing
component is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. For all other financial assets, expected credit losses
are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk
from initial recognition in which case those are measured at lifetime ECL. The amount of expected credit losses
(orreversal) thatis required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date to the amount that is required to be
recognised is recognized asanimpairmentgain or lossin profit or loss.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method, except for
contingent consideration recognized in a business combination which is subsequently measured at fair value
through profit and loss. For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the Balance Sheet date, the
carryingamounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

Investmentin subsidiaries

Investmentin subsidiaries is carried at costin the separate financial statements.

Derivative financial instruments

The Company holds derivative financial instruments such as foreign exchange forward and option contracts to
mitigate the risk of changes in exchange rates on foreign currency exposures. The counterparty for these contracts is
generally abank.

Share capital

Ordinary Shares

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issuance of new ordinary shares
and share options are recognized as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects.

Derecognition of financial instruments

The company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset
expire or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition under Ind AS 109. A financial
liability (or a part of a financial liability) is derecognized from the Company's balance sheet when the obligation
specified in the contractis discharged or cancelled or expires.

q FairValue Measurement:
In determining the fair value of its financial instruments, the Company uses a variety of methods and assumptions
that are based on market conditions and risks existing at each reporting date. The methods used to determine fair value
include discounted cash flow analysis, available quoted market prices and dealer quotes. All methods of assessing fair
valueresultin general approximation of value, and such value may never actually be realized.
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(% In Lakhs)
Asat

Asat
31st-March-2021 31st-March-2020

Non CurrentInvestment
Unquotedinvestments

Investment carried at cost

Investment in equity instrument of subsidiaries
Man Overseas Metal DMCC*

2,985.75 3,090.00

15,000 (31 March 2020: 15,000) Equity Shares of AED 1,000/- each

Merino Shelters Private Limited A

18,789 (31 March 2020: 18,789) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each
Man USAInc.*

1,000 (31 March 2020: 1,000) Equity Shares of USD 1/-each

10,229.83 10,229.83

0.73
13,216.31

0.76
13,320.59

These investments has been considered as monetary items as per IND AS 21, hence cost has been revalued at year end rate.

Refer note no.55

Non Current Trade Receivables

Unsecured, Considered goods unless otherwise stated
Non current*

Less:Allowance for expected creditloss

Total

2,732.33
(213.81)

2,518.52

5,113.31

5,113.31

of above Rs.1,882.95 Lakhs (31 March 2020: Rs. 4,287.16 Lakhs) outstanding on account of mattersin litigation.

Non-CurrentFinancial Assets-Others
Security deposit

Leasedeposit *

Bank deposit maturing overoneyear A

Total

includes payment torelated parties (Refer Note 44)

78.01
247.72
130.97

456.70

78.55
272.60
1,205.60
1,556.75

held aslien by bank against bank guarantee and letter of creditamounting to Rs.124.11 Lakhs (31 March 2020:Rs. 1,205.60

Lakhs)

Non-Current Assets-Others

Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated
Advanceto suppliers

Capitaladvance*

Advancefor property”

Others

Total

Under litigation

51.18
3,100.00
7,026.18

223.98
10,401.34

29.09
3,100.00
7,026.18

223.98
10,379.25

Advance given for purchase of under-construction property and considering the current situation of real estate industry,

management believes to get the possession of the property soon.

Inventories

Raw material

Raw material in transit
Work-in-progress
Finished goods
Storesand spares
Total

Investment

Investmentsin equity instruments Quoted
Investmentsin equity instruments Unquoted
Investmentsin mutual Fund

16,110.51
1,639.60
4,208.11
7,311.41
3,886.45

33,156.08

28,589.04
77.80
881.78
4,643.34
3,768.20
37,960.16

62.16 2.06
0.01 0.01
0.39 >

62.56 2.07

Annual Report 2020-21 | 95




O
A M'ﬁ (INndia) Ltd

the line pipe people

Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2021.
(% In Lakhs)

Asat Asat
31st-March-2021 31st-March-2020

Quoted Investments

Investments in equity instruments Carried at fair value through profitandloss
Everest Kant Cylinder Limited

18763 (31 March 2020: 18763) Equity shares of Rs. 2/-each 14.69
Sirpur Paper Mills Limited

18519 (31 March 2020:18519) equity shares of Rs. 10/-each
GlaxoSmithKline Pharmaceuticals Limited

850 (31 March 2020: NIL) equity shares of Rs. 10/- each
HeidelbergcementIndiaLimited

5000 (31 March 2020: NIL) equity shares of Rs. 10/- each
Indraprastha Gas Limited

2850 (31 March 2020: NIL) equity shares of Rs. 2/- each

Minda Corporation Limited

9700 (31 March 2020: NIL) equity shares of Rs. 2/- each

Total CurrentInvestments

Aggregate amount of quoted investments and market
valuethereof

Total

Unquoted Investments

DombivaliNagari Sahakari Bank Limited

30(31 March 2020:30) equity shares of Rs. 50/-each

Total

Investmentin Mutual Fund

Nippon India money market fund - Growth plan growth option
(LQGPG) 12.294 units (31 March 2020: NIL) units of Rs. 1,000 /-each
Total

Trade Receivables

Considered good, unless otherwise stated

Unsecured 25,803.56 36,452.60
Secured 37,724.87 6,254.71
Total 63,528.43 42,707.31

Cash And Cash Equivalents
Balances with banks:
-in currentaccounts 1,694.15 12,402.13
-indepositaccounts - 33.00
-chequeson hand - 1,150.49
Cashonhand 6.06 6.81
Total 1,700.21 13,592.43

Bank Balances OtherThan Cash And Cash Equivalents

Margin money deposits A 7,965.80 8,042.16
Unpaid dividends - earmarked balances with banks* 521.42 515.16
Total 8,487.22 8,557.32
held aslien by bank against bank guarantee, letter of creditand term loan.

There are noamounts due and outstanding to be credited to the Investor Education and Protection Fund as at 31st March,
2021.
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(% In Lakhs)

Asat Asat
31st-March-2021 31st-March-2020

Current Financial Asstes-Loans

Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated

Advances recoverablein cash orin kind or for value to be received:

Loanstoemployees 26.47 43.96
Loanstorelated parties (Refer Note 44) 846.59 856.11
Interest receivable 87.90 239.37

Total 960.96 1,139.44

CurrentFinancial Assets - Others
Advance tax less provision for tax of earlier years 505.36 832.89

Total 505.36 832.89

Other Current Assets

Capitaladvance 49.36 224.64
Advanceto suppliers 257.69 3,629.82
Prepaid expenses 1,028.90 1,075.58
Deposits 200.00 -
Statutory and otherreceivables 8,781.89 5,814.75

Total 10,317.84 10,744.79

18A Share Capital
Authorised:
80,000,000 (31 March 2020:80,000,000) equity shares of Rs.5/-each 4,000.00 4,000.00
Issued, Subscribed & Paid-Up - -
57,103,055 (31 March 2020:57,103,055) equity shares of Rs. 5/-each 2,855.15 2,855.15

Notes:
Reconciliation of the number of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year:

Issued, Subscribed and Paid up Share Capital Asat Asat
31stMarch 2021 31stMarch 2020
No. of Shares No. of Shares
Balance atthe beginning of the year 5,71,03,055 5,71,03,055
Balance atthe end of the year 5,71,03,055 5,71,03,055
Terms/rights attached to equity shares:
The Company has one class of share capital, i.e., equity shares having face value of Rs. 5/- per share. Each holder of
equity share is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to
receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their
shareholding.

Details of shareholders holding more than 5 % shares in the Company:
Particulars Asat As at
31st-March-2021 31st-March-2020
No. of Shares No. of Shares
Mr.Rameshchandra Mansukhani d 1,37,54,992 24.09 1,37,54,992

Mr. Nikhil Mansukhani b 35,86,285 6.11 34,91,285
Man Finance Private Limited d 32,43,476 5.49 31,32,834
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Asat Asat
31st-March-2021 31st-March-2020

Money received against share warrants
25% upfront payment 487.50

Total 487.50

Money received agianst Share Warrants represents amounts received towards warrants which entitles the
warrant holders the option to apply for and be allotted equivalent number of equity shares of the face value of
Rs.5/each.

During the current financial year,the Company has issued to its Promoters Group 3,000,000 warrants at a price of
Rs. 65/- each entitling them for subscription of equivalent number of Equity Shares of Rs. 5/- each (including
premium of Rs. 60/- each Share) under Regulation 28(1) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. The holder of the
warrants would need to exercise the option to subscribe to equity shares before the expiry of 18 months from the
date of allotment made on 9th November,2020 upon payment of the balance 75% of the consideration of
warrants.

The Company, in the previous five years, has not allotted any Bonus Shares, fully paid up Shares pursuant to
contract(s) without payment being received in cash and has not bought back any Shares.

18B. Other Equity (% In Lakhs)

Particulars Reserves and Surplus Foreign Money
Securities General Retained currency received
Premium Reserve Earnings transalation againstshare
Reserve reserves warrants *

Balanceasat 1stApril, 2019 9,433.32| 9,733.52|47,803.96 . 67,328.41

Profit/(Loss) fortheyear 5,398.02 5,398.02
Other comprehensive gains/ (loss) for the year
- Remeasurements gains/(loss) ondefined
benefitplans 93.49 - 93.49
- Foreign currency translation differences - 551. 551.63
- Deferred Tax (19.57) . 23.53
Dividend
Dividend on Equity Shares (1,427.57) (1,427.57)
Corporate Dividend Distribution Tax - (293.44) (293.44)
Transferto General Reserve 539.80| (539.80) -
TransitionimpactofInd-AS116 - (69.90) (69.90)

Balanceasat31st March, 2020 9,433.32| 10,273.32 | 50,945.19 . 71,604.18

Profit/(Loss) fortheyear 10,062.56 10,062.56
Othercomprehensive income/(loss) for the year =
- Remeasurements gains/ (loss) on defined
benefit plans 6.10 - 6.10

- Foreign currency translation differences - (257.45) (257.45)
- Deferred Tax (1.53) - (1.53)
Dividend on Equity Shares (1,142.06) (1,142.06)
Transfer to General Reserve 1,006.26 | (1,006.26) =
Adjustment of IncomeTax (earlier year) -1 (320.79) - (320.79)
Issue of share warrants - - . 487.50

Balanceasat31st March,2021 9,433.32| 11,279.58 | 58,543.21 . . 80,438.50
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(% In Lakhs)

Asat Asat
31st-March-2021 31st-March-2020

19 Non-CurrentFinancialLiabilities-Borrowings
Securedloans
Termloans from banks
Foreign currencyloan 5,301.13
Rupeeloan 69.17
Total 5,370.30

Non Current Borrowings

Foreign currencyloan 1,522.08
Rupeeloan 11.25
Total 1,533.33

Current Borrowings

Current maturities of long term borrowing (refer note 28)

Foreign currencyloan 3,779.05
Rupeeloan 57.92
Total 3,836.97

(a) Secured termloans from banks:
FCNR(B) Loan from State Bank of India amounting to Rs.375.25 lakhs is secured primarily against 1st pari-passu
charge on Company's entire Property, Plant & Equipmentand 2nd charge on current assets.
Repayment Schedule
Rate of interest RepaymentSchedule

2021-22 Total
6 Monthslibor +5.00% 375.25 375.25

Car Loan from Kotak Mahindra Prime Limited balance amounting to Rs. 125.00 Lakhs (Previous year March 31,
2020 Rs.47.82 Lakhs)issecured against the motor car.
Repayment Schedule of Car Loan
Rateof interest Repayment Schedule

2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 Total
9.5% perannum 38.01 41.38 45.61 125.00

Car Loan from Axis Bank balance amounting to Rs. 12.32 lakhs (Previous year March 31, 2020 Rs.21.35 Lakhs) is
secured against the motor car.
Repayment Schedule of Car Loan
Rate of interest Repayment Schedule

2021-22  2022-23 Total
8.52% perannum 9.82 2.50 12.32

Car Loan from HDFC Bank balance amounting to Rs. 147.31 lakhs (Previous year March 31,2020 Rs. NIL) is secured
againstthe motorcar.
Repayment Schedule of CarLoan
Rate of interest Repayment Schedule

2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 Total
7.40% perannum 33.66 36.24 39.01 38.40 147.31
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Asat
31st-March-2021

20 Non CurrentFinancialLiabilities-Trade Payables
Others
Total

Non Current Financial Liabilities - Lease Liabilities
Lease liabilities

Less: Current portion (refer note 27)

Total

Non-CurrentProvisons
Employee benefits
Total

Taxation

84.44

84.44

1,169.50
(409.42)

760.08

128.25

-/ 128.25

(% In Lakhs)
Asat

31st-March-2020

11.00
11.00

1,534.41
(360.58)
1,173.83

117.09
- 117.0¢

The major components of income taxitems charged or credited directly to the profit or loss during the year:

Currentincometax:

CurrentIncometaxcharge

Deferred tax expense/ (benefit):

Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences
(continuing operations)

Total taxexpense

Income Tax expense

Reconciliation

Profitbeforeincometax

Taxable Incometaxrate in India applicable to Company
Tax Amount

Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (Taxable)
in calculating taxableincome

Income not considered for tax purpose

Expense notallowed for tax purpose

Additional allowances for tax purpose

Additional allowances for capital gain

Tax paid atlowerrate

Income tax expense charged to the statement of profitand loss

Deferred tax relates to the following:

2020-21

3,701.54

(117.06)

3,584.48

13,647.04
25.168%
3,434.68

262.37
(563.53)
4,981.02
(3,375.01)
26.16
4.49

3,701.54

“ -

Recognisedin
statement of
profitor loss

2019-20
2,25943

(1,284.09)
975.34

6,373.36
25.168%
1,604.05

655.38
(12.83)
6,360.07
(3,743.22)

_2,259.43

Recognisedin
statement
of OCI

Asat Asat
31/03/21 | 31/03/20

Depreciation (Other than Right-of-
Use Assets)

Gratuity Provision

Ind AS Effect

Foreign Currency translation Reserve

2,729.17 (1
(39.82)
(28.51)

2,626.97
(41.61)
(40.06)

(11.55)

02.19)
(3.32)

(1,287.75)
17.84
(14.19)

1.53 19.57

(43.10)

2,545.30 _2,660.84

(117.06) (1,284.09)

1.53 (23.53)
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(% In Lakhs)

Asat Asat
31st-March-2021 31st-March-2020

Reconciliation of deferred tax assets / (liabilities) net:

Opening balance as of 1st April 2,660.84 3,968.46
Taxincome/ (expense) during the period recognised in profit or loss (117.06) (1,284.09)
Taxincome/ (expense) during the period recognisedin OCI 1.53 (23.53)
Closingbalance 2,545.30 2,660.84

Other Non-CurrentLiabilities
Others 364.53 364.53
Total 364.53 364.53

CurrentFinancial Liabilities -Borrowings

Securedloans

Working capital demand loan from banks

Foreign currency loan 12,623.17 =

Rupeeloan 15,102.71 22,478.32
27,725.88 22,478.32

Unsecured loans

Foreign currencyloan (From related party Refer Note 44) 731.27 758.33

731.27 758.33
Total 28,457.15 23,236.65

Working Capital facilities by banker's are secured by first pari passu charge on entire current assets and second
pari passu charges on theimmovable properties of the Company.

CurrentFinancial Liabilities-Trade Payables

Dues of microand small enterprises 821.58 468.53

Dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises

Unsecured 5,781.46 4,626.16

Secured 45,149.41 50,858.39
50,930.87 55,484.55

Total 51,752.45 55,953.08

Refer Note 51 for due to supplier registered under MSME Act.

CurrentFinancial Liabilities - Lease Liabilities
Lease liabilities
Total

Current-Other Financial Liabilities

Financial Liabilities atamortised cost:

Current maturities of long-term debt from bank (refer note 19)

Foreign currency Loan 375.25 3,779.05

Rupeeloan 81.50 57.92
456.75 3,836.97

Interestaccrued but notdue 210.62 688.28

Interest accrued and due 49.17 131.30

Outstanding expenses 1,945.02 1,381.24

Unpaid dividend 521.42 515.15

Total 3,182.98 6,552.94
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Asat Asat
31st-March-2021 31st-March-2020

29 OtherCurrentLiabilities
Advances from customers 6,274.40 14,605.22
Other payables:
Statutory dues 169.69 97.77
Others 650.61

Total 6,444.09 15,353.61

30 Short-TermProvisions
Employee benefits 489.35 378.86
Total 489.35 378.86

31 TaxAssets/Liabilities (Net)
Current tax liabilities 965.40 934.43
Total 965.40 934.43

YearEnded YearEnded
31st-March-2021 31st-March-2020
32 RevenueFrom Operations
Sale of products 2,04,504.37 1,71,222.53
Sale of services 298.84 359.80

Other operatingincome 2,714.96 4,326.80
Total 2,07,518.17 1,75,909.13

Otherincome

Interestincome* 428.23 730.59
Dividendincome 0.12 -
Gainonsale ofinvestments 118.36 -
Foreign exchange gain/(loss) 1,635.57 (41.02)
Others 893.52 961.85
Total 3,075.80 1,651.42
*includesincome from related parties (Refer note 44)

Cost Of Materials Consumed

Opening stock 28,666.84 13,594.60
Add:Purchases 1,17,352.24 1,31,713.65
Less: Closing stock 17,750.11 28,666.84
Total 1,28,268.97 1,16,641.41

Purchases Of Stock-In-Trade
Purchases of stock-in-trade 17,691.17 10,033.03
Total 17,691.17 10,033.03

ChangesInInventories Of Finished Goods, Work-In-Progress

And Stock-In-Trade

Closing stock:

Finished goods 7,311.41 4,643.35
Work-in-progress 4,208.11 881.78
Total 11,519.52 5,525.13
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YearEnded YearEnded
31st-March-2021 | 31st-March-2020
Opening stock:
Finished goods 4,643.35 1,157.11

Work-in-progress 881.78 4,007.17
Total 5,525.13 5,164.28

Total ChangesinInventories of Finished Goods, Workin Progress (5,994.39) (360.84)

Employee Benefits Expense

Salaries, wagesand bonus 4,827.62 4,799.11
Contribution to provident fund and other funds 232.96 299.82
Staff welfare expenses 351.75 297.24
Total 5,412.33 5,396.17

Finance Costs

Interestonloans 3,362.66 4,425.07
Interest on lease liabilities 160.07 128.93
Interest on others 49.17 70.01
Bank charges/loan processing fees 1,702.17 1,817.49
Total 5,274.07 6,441.50

Depreciation Expenses

Depreciation:

Property, plantand equipments 4,240.41 4,976.28
Right-of-use assets 396.70 254.89
Total 4,637.11 5,231.17

Other Expenses

Manufacturing Expenses

Consumption of stores and packing materials 4,279.86 3,576.20

Repairsto plantand machinery 194.36 166.95

Power expense 3,136.44 2,621.23

Jobwork charges 166.84 1,145.23

Labour charges 2,409.01 2,104.00

Others 529.39 431.86
10,715.90 10,045.47

Selling and Distribution Expenses
Commission on sales 4,051.65 1,313.72
Freightand forwarding charges 16,295.13 10,754.93
Bad debts 6,979.34 893.28
Allowance for expected creditloss 213.81 -
Others* 1,705.39 2,436.56
29,245.32 15,398.49
Administrative expenses
Insurance 162.82 219.98
Professional fees * 822.63 910.18
Rentalsincluding lease rentals * 12.83 12.58
Repairs to other 85.26 80.27
Repairs to building 31.94 27.10
Rates and taxes 22.25 34.26
Expenditureincurred for CSR (note No 52) 176.73 103.63
Paymentto auditor:
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YearEnded YearEnded
31st-March-2021 31st-March-2020
-Statutory audit Fees 15.00 15.00
-Otherservices 3.63 2.92

Others 363.36 704.46
1,696.45 2,110.38

Total 41,657.67 27,554.34

*includes payment to related parties (Refer note 44)

Leases

Accounting policy

Companyasalessee

The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for Office Building and Plant & Machinery. The
Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, atinception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease
if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the
Company assesses whether : (i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset (ii) the Company has
substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and (iii) the
Company hastherightto direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use (ROU) asset and a
corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of 12
months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low-value leases, the Company
recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

The Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
Commencement date of the lease. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease,
if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company uses incremental
borrowing rate. For leases with reasonably similar characteristics, the Company, on a lease by lease basis, may
adopt either the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease or the incremental borrowing rate for the
portfolioasawhole.

The lease payments shall include fixed payments, variable lease payments, residual value guarantees, exercise
price of a purchase option where the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option and payments of
penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease.
The lease liability is subsequently remeasured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease
liability, reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made and remeasuring the carrying amount
to reflect any reassessment or lease modifications or to reflect revised in-substance fixed lease payments. The
company recognises the amount of the re-measurement of lease liability due to modification as an adjustment to
the right-of-use asset and statement of profit and loss depending upon the nature of modification. Where the
carryingamount of the right-of-use assetis reduced to zero and there is a further reduction in the measurement of
the lease liability, the Company recognises any remaining amount of the re-measurement in statement of profit
and loss.

Certain lease arrangements includes the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term.
ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options whenitis reasonably certain that they will be exercised.

The ROU assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for
any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any
leaseincentives.They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

ROU assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease
term and useful life of the underlying asset. ROU assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or
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Asat Asat
31st-March-2021 31st-March-2020

changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of
impairmenttesting, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is
determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely
independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash
Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The
lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicitin the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the
incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a
corresponding adjustment to the related ROU asset if the Company changes its assessment of whether it will
exercise an extension ora termination option.

Lease liability and ROU assets have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been
classified as financing cash flows.

The weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities as at April 1,2020is 11.68%

The aggregate depreciation expense on ROU assets is included under depreciation and amortization expensein
the Statement of Profitand Loss.

The break-up of currentand non-current lease liabilities is as follows

Currentlease liabilities 409.42 360.58
Non-currentlease liabilities 760.08 1,173.83
Total 1,169.49 1,534.42

The details of the contractual maturities of lease liabilities
asatMarch 31,2021 onanundiscounted basis are as follows:

Lessthanoneyear
Onetofiveyears
Total

Contingent Liabilities & Legal Cases
Contingent Liabilities: (to the extent not provided for)

(a) Claims against the company notacknowledged as debts:

Guarantees/ Letter of Credit outstanding 38,373.85 92,698.40
(b) Entry Tax/ Sales Tax/VAT liability matters A 366.77 366.77
(c) Excise duty/Customs duty/ Service taxliability /

Goods &ServiceTax matters A 2,267.11 2,262.15
(d) Income tax matters*A 2,438.07 2,438.07
Legal Cases
-Midcontinent express pipeline LLC, USA 778.64 778.64
-Sebi 25.00 25.00

*includes matters amounting to Rs. 2014.37 lakhs, the outcome of the first level of appeal proceedingsiis in favour
of the company, which hasbeen challanged by the IncomeTax Department atthe Hon'ble Tribunal level.

AThe management including its tax advisors expect that its position will likely be upheld on ultimate resolution
and will not have material adverse effect on the Company's financial position and result of operation.
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Asat Asat
31st-March-2021 31st-March-2020

b Arbitration &Legal Cases

Arbitration & legal cases pending before the various forum
for settlement /recovery of outstanding dues 13,324.46 13,580.33

The management, based on the legal opinion received and considering various force majeure issues involved, is
ofthe view that the chances of recovery of these amounts are very high and further viewed that pending outcome
these would not be any material impact on cash flows and profitability of the company. In view of the same,
Company has not made any provisions.

43 RemunerationtoDirectors
YearEnded Year Ended
31st-March-2021 31st-March-2020
Salaries and perquisite 1,049.43 946.77

Sitting fees 7.80 9.50
Total 1,057.23 956.27

44 Disclosures As Required By Indian Accounting Standard (Ind As) 24 Related Party Disclosures

Name of the Related Party / Country of Incorporation Asat Asat
31st-March-2021 31st-March-2020

Subsidiaries:

Man Overseas Metal DMCC - UAE 100% 100%
Man USAInc-USA 100% 100%
Merino Shelters Private Limited - India 100% 100%

Key Management Personnel:
Mr.Rameshchandra Mansukhani (Chairman)
Mr. Nikhil Mansukhani (Executive Director)
Mrs.Heena Kalantri (Director)

Relative of Key Managerial Personnel
Mrs.Deepa Mansukhani

Enterprises controlled or significantly influenced by key management personnel or their relatives with
whom transaction have occurred

M ConceptsRetail LLP

Limitless Contracting Private Limited

TMW Fintech PvtLtd (formerly known as "The Mobile Wallet Private Limited")

Man Finance Private Limited

Thefollowing transactions were carried out with the related parties in the ordinary course of business:
1 Subsidiary Company

Year Ended YearEnded
31st-March-2021 31st-March-2020

Man Overseas Metal, DMCC

Loantaken (Net) (27.06) (20.66)
Service charges paid 129.35 553.17
Merino Shelters Private Limited

Loangiven (Net) (9.51) (2.04)
Interestincome - 85.75
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YearEnded YearEnded
31st-March-2021 31st-March-2020

2 Enterprisesover which Key Managerial Personnel are able to Exercise Significant Influence

M Concepts Retail LLP
Professional fees 36.00

Man Finance Private Limited
Money received towards share warrants 487.50

Limitless Contracting Private Limited
Loangiven (Net) (1,080.38)
Interestincome 49.85

TMW Fintech PvtLtd (formerly knownas
"The Mobile Wallet Private Limited")
Sundry purchases

3 KeyManagerial Personnel and Relative of Key Managerial Personnel

Salaryand bonus 1,049.43 946.77
Sitting Fees 240 245
Rental charges 265.94 265.94
Interestincome on rental deposit/ 12.11 12.67

Details of Outstanding Balance to Related Parties

Asat Asat
31st-March-2021 31st-March-2020

1 Subsidiary Company

Man Overseas Metal, DMCC*

Investmentin equity shares 2,985.75 3,090.00
Loan (Taken)/Given (731.27) (758.33)
Man USAInc.*

Investmentin equity shares 0.73 0.76
Merino SheltersPrivate Limited

Investmentin equity shares 10,229.83 10,229.83
Loangiven 846.59 856.11

2 KeyManagerial Personnel and Relative of Key Managerial Personnel

Lease deposit/ 101.09 125.14
A ThemovementisduetoIND AS Effect
*  Thesebalance have been considered as monetaryitem as per IND AS 21, hence the same have been revalued at year endrate.
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YearEnded YearEnded
31st-March-2021 31st-March-2020

45 EarningsPerShare

Earnings Per Share has been computed asunder:
Profit/(Loss) for the year 10,062.56 5,398.02

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 5,71,03,055 5,71,03,055
Basic earning per share (Face value of Rs 5/ per share) 17.62 9.45
Diluted earning per share (Face value of Rs 5/ per share) * 16.74 9.45

* Assuming full conversion of 30,00,000 convertible warrants issued on preferential basis as per SEBI (LODR)
Regulation,2015

Capital Management

Risk Management
The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximise shareholder value. The Company
monitors capital using debt-equity ratio, which is total debt divided by total capital.

For the purposes of the Company’s capital management, the Company considers the following components of its
balance sheetto be managed capital.

Total equity as shown in the balance sheet includes general reserve, retained earnings, share capital, security
premium.Total debtincludes current debt plus non-current debt.

(% In Lakhs)

Asat Asat
31st-March-2021 31st-March-2020

Total debt 29,117.02 28,606.94
Total equity 83,293.65 74,459.33
Debt-equity ratio 0.35 0.38

Our historical experience of collecting receivables is supported by low level of past default and hence the credit risk is
perceived to be low.

47 FairValue Measurement

31st-March-2021 31st-March-2020
FVTPL Amortised FVTPL Amortised
cost cost

Financial assets
Investments:
Equity instruments = =
Tradereceivables 66,046.95 47,820.62
Loans 960.96 1,139.44
Security Deposit 78.01 78.55
Lease Deposit 247.72 272.60
Bank Deposit maturing over one Year 130.97 1,205.60
Cashandbankbalances 10,187.43 22,149.75
Otherfinancial assets 505.36 832.89
Total Financial assets 78,157.40 J 73,499.45
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47 FairValue Measurement

31st-March-2021

FVTPL

Financial liabilities
Borrowings

Trade payables
Other liabilities
Lease Liabilities

31st-March-2020
FVTPL Amortised
cost

Amortised
cost

28,660.27
51,836.90
3,182.98
1,169.49

24,769.98
55,964.09
6,552.94
1,534.42

Total financial liabilities

84,849.64 88,821.43

Fairvalue hierarchy

This section explains the judgement and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial
instruments that are (a) recognised and measured at fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost and for which
fair values are disclosed in the Financial Statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs
used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its financial instruments into the three levels
prescribed under the accounting standard. An explanation of each level follows underneath the table.

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value - recurring fair value measurements at March 31 2021

Financial assets

Financialinvestmentsat FVTPL:

Quoted Equity shares & Mutual Fund 11
Unquoted Equity Shares 11
Total financial assets

62.55 - - 62.55
- 0.01 - 0.01
62.55 0.01 - 62.56

ii) Financial assets and liabilities which are measured at amortised cost for which fair values are disclosed at

March 31,2021

L Particulars | Notes __ levell | level2 | level3 _ Total |

Financial assets

Tradereceivables 7&12
Loans 15
Security Deposit 8
Lease Deposit 8
Bank Deposit maturing over one Year 8
Cashandbankbalances 13&14
Otherfinancial assets 16
Total financial assets

66,046.95

960.96

78.01

247.72

130.97

10,187.43

505.36

- 78,157.40

66,046.95
960.96
78.01
247.72
130.97
10,187.43
505.36
78,157.40

__Notes | Levell | Level2  Level3 __ Total

Financial liabilities

Borrowings

Non Current 19
Current 25
Trade payables

Non Current 20
Current 26
Otherliabilities 28
Lease Liabilities 21&27
Total financial liabilities

203.13
28,457.15

203.13
28,457.15

84.44
51,752.45
3,182.98
1,169.49
84,849.64

84.44
51,752.45
3,182.98
1,169.49
84,849.64
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iii) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value - recurring fair value measurements at March 31 2020
levell . Level2 | levels | Total _
Financial assets
Financialinvestmentsat FVTPL:
Quoted Equity shares & Mutual Fund 11 2.06 - 2.06
Unquoted Equity Shares 11 - 0.01 0.01
Total financial assets 2.06 0.01 2.07

Financial assets and liabilities which are measured at amortised cost for which fair values are disclosed at
March 312020

___Note | Levell | Level2 | lLevel3 | Total |
Financial assets

Tradereceivables 7&12 47,820.62 47,820.62
Loans 15 1,139.44 1,139.44
Security Deposit 8 78.55 78.55
Lease Deposit 8 272.60 272.60
Bank Deposit maturing over one Year 8 1,205.60 1,205.60
Cashandbankbalances 22,149.75 22,149.75
Otherfinancial assets 16 832.89 832.89
Total financial assets 73,499.45 73,499.45

Financial liabilities
Borrowings
Non Current 1,533.33 1,533.33

Current

Trade payables
Non Current
Current

Other liabilities

23,236.65

11.00
55,953.08
6,552.94

23,236.65

11.00
55,953.08
6,552.94

Lease Liabilities 1,534.42 1,534.42
Total financial liabilities 88,821.42 88,821.42

There were no transfers between anylevels during the year.

Level 1:

Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes listed equity
instruments and mutual funds that have a quoted price. The fair value of all equity instruments which are traded in
the stock exchanges is valued using the closing price as at the reporting period. The mutual funds are valued using
the closing netassets value (NAV)

Level 2:

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example over-the-counter
derivatives) is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely
as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are
observable, theinstrumentisincludedinlevel 2.

Level 3:
If one or more of the significantinputsis not based on observable market data, theinstrumentisincludedinlevel 3.

Valuation technique used to determinefair value

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instrumentsinclude:

i) the use of quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similarinstruments

ii) the fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated as the present value of the estimated future cash flows based on
observableyield curves.
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iii) the fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts are determined using forward exchange rates at the
Balance Sheetdate

iv) the fair value of foreign currency option contracts is determined using the Black Scholes valuation model.

v) thefair value of the remaining financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow analysis.

All of the resulting fair value estimates areincluded inlevel 1and 2.

Valuation processes

The finance department of the Company includes a team that performs the valuations of financial assets and
liabilities required for financial reporting purposes, including level 3 fair values. This team reports directly to the
Chief Financial Officer (CFO).

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured atamortised cost

AsatMarch 31,2021 AsatMarch 31,2020

Carrying Fairvalue Carrying Fairvalue
amount amount
inancialassets:

Tradereceivables 66,046.95 66,046.95 47,820.62 47,820.62
Loans 960.96 960.96 1,139.44 1,139.44
Security Deposit 78.01 78.01 78.55 78.55
Lease Deposit 247.72 247.72 272.60 272.60
Bank Deposit maturing over one Year 130.97 130.97 1,205.60 1,205.60
Cashandbankbalances 10,187.43 10,187.43 22,149.75 22,149.75
Otherfinancial assets 505.36 505.36 832.89 832.89
Total financial assets 78,157.40 78,157.40 73,499.45 73,499.45

Financial liabilities

Borrowings 28,660.27 28,660.27 24,769.98 24,769.98
Trade payables 51,836.90 51,836.90 55,964.09 55,964.09
Other liabilities 3,182.98 3,182.98 6,552.94 6,552.94
Lease Liabilities 1,169.49 1,169.49 1,534.42 1,534.42
Total financial liabilities 84,849.64 84,849.64 88,821.42 88,821.42

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, trade payables, other receivables, short-term security deposits, bank
deposits with more than 12 months maturity, capital creditors and cash and cash equivalents including bank
balances otherthan cash and cash equivalents are considered to be the same as their fair values due to the current
and short-term nature of such balances.

Thefair values of non-current borrowings are based on discounted cash flows using a current borrowing rate.
Forfinancial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value, the carrying amounts are equal to the fair values.

Financial Risk Management

Risk Management is an integral part of the business practices of the Company. The framework of Risk
Management concentrates on formalising a system to deal with the most relevant risks, building on existing
Management practices, knowledge and structures. The Company has developed and implemented a
comprehensive Risk Management System to ensure that risks to the continued existence of the Company as a
going concern and to its growth are identified and remedied on a timely basis. While defining and developing the
formalised Risk Management System, leading standards and practices have been considered. The Risk
Management System is relevant to business reality, pragmaticand simple and involves the following:

Risk identification and definition - Focused on identifying relevant risks, creating, updating clear definitions to
ensure undisputed understanding along with details of the underlying root causes contributing factors.

Risk classification — Focused on understanding the various impacts of risks and the level of influence on its root
causes. This involves identifying various processes generating the root causes and clear understanding of risk
interrelationships.
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iii. Riskassessmentand prioritisation — Focused on determining risk priority and risk ownership for critical risks. This
involves assessment of the various impacts taking into consideration risk appetite and existing mitigation
controls.

iv.  Risk mitigation - Focused on addressing critical risks to restrict their impact(s) to an acceptable level (within the
definedrisk appetite). This involves a clear definition of actions, responsibilities and milestones.

v. Risk reporting and monitoring - Focused on providing to the Board and the Audit Committee periodic
information onrisk profile evolution and mitigation plans.

a) Managementofliquidity risk

The Company's principal sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents, borrowings and the cash flow that is
generated from operations. The Company believes that current cash and cash equivalents, tied up borrowing
lines and cash flow that is generated from operations is sufficient to meet requirements. Accordingly, liquidity risk
is perceived to be low.

The following table shows the maturity analysis of the Company's financial liabilities based on contractually

agreed undiscounted cash flows as at the Balance sheet date:

I =y

amount | 12months | 12months

AsatMarch 31,2021
Borrowings
Non-current 19 203.13 - 203.13 203.13
Current 25 28,457.15 28,457.15 28,457.15
Trade payables
Non-current 20 84.44 - 84.44 84.44
Current 26 51,752.45 51,752.45 - 51,752.45
Other liabilities 28 3,182.98 3,182.98 - 3,182.98
Lease Liabilities
Non-current 21 760.08 760.08
Current 27 409.42 409.42 409.42
AsatMarch 31,2020
Borrowings
Non-current 19 1,533.33 - 1,533.33 1,533.33
Current 25 23,236.65 23,236.65 23,236.65
Trade payables
Non-current 20 11.00 -
Current 26 55,953.08 55,953.08

11.00 11.00
- 55,953.08

Otherliabilities 6,552.94 6,552.94 - 6,552.94

Lease Liabilities

Non-current 1,173.83 1,173.83 1,173.83

Current 360.58 360.58 - 360.58

49 Managementofmarketrisk

The Company’s size and operations resultin it being exposed to the following market risks that arise from its use of
financialinstruments:

i Pricerisk,

ii. Interestraterisk;and

iii. Foreignexchangerisk

The above risks may affect the Company’s income and expenses, or the value of its financial instruments. The

objective of the Company’s Management of market risk is to maintain this risk within acceptable parameters,
while optimising returns.The Company’s exposure to,and Management of, theserisks is explained below:
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Potential impact of risk
1. PriceRisk

The Company is mainly exposed to the
price risk due to its investments in equity
instruments. The price risk arises due to
uncertainties about the future market
values of these investments.

Equity price risk is related to the change
in market reference price of the
investmentsin equity securities.

In general, these securities are not held
for trading purposes. These investments
are subject to changes in the market
price of securities. The fair value of
quoted equity, mutual fund and bond
instruments classified as fair value
through Profit and Loss account as at
March 31, 2021 is Rs. 62.56 lakhs (March
31,2020:Rs.2.06 lakhs).

2. Interestraterisk

Financial Liabilities:

The Company is mainly exposed to
interest rate risk due to its variable
interest rate borrowings. The interest rate
risk arises due to uncertainties about the
future market interest rate of these
borrowings.

As at March 31, 2021, the exposure to
interest rate risk due to variable interest
rate borrowings amounted to Rs.
29,116.72 lakhs (March 31, 2020: Rs.
28,606.96 lakhs)

The Company has international
operations and is exposed to foreign
exchange risk arising from foreign
currency transactions. Foreign exchange
risk arises from future commercial
transactions and recognised Financial
assets and liabilities denominated in a
currency that is not the Company'’s
functional currency (INR). The risk also
includes highly probable foreign
currency cash flows. The objective of the
cash flow hedges is to minimise the
volatility of the INR cash flows of highly
probable forecast transactions.

Management policy

In order to manage its price risk arising
from investments in equity instruments,
the Company maintains its portfolio in
accordance with the framework set by
the Risk Managementpolicies.

Any new investment or divestment must
be approved by the Board of Directors,
Chief Financial Officer and Risk
Management Committee.

Financial Liabilities:

In order to manage its interest rate risk
arising from variable interest rate
borrowings, the Company uses Interest
rate swaps to hedge its exposure to
future market interest rates whenever
appropriate.

The hedging activity is undertaken in
accordance with the framework set by
the Risk Management Committee and
supported by the Treasury department.

3. Foreign Exchange risk

The Company has exposure arising out of
export, import, loans and other
transactions other than Company's
functional currency. The Company
hedges its foreign exchange risk using
foreign exchange forward contracts and
currency options after considering the
natural hedge. The same is within the
guidelines laid down by Company's risk
Management policy.

Sensitivity to risk

As an estimation of the approximate
impact of price risk, with respect to
investments in equity instruments, the
Company has calculated the impact as
follows:

For equity instruments, a 5% increase in
prices would have led to approximately
an additional Rs. 3.13 lakhs gain in profit
and loss account (2019-20 Rs. 0.10 lakhs).
A 5% decreasein prices would have led to
an equal but opposite effect.

Financial Liabilities:

As an estimation of the approximate
impact of the interest rate risk, with
respect to financial instruments, the
Company has calculated the impact of a
50 bps change in interest rates. A 50 bps
decrease in interest rates would have led
to approximately an additional Rs. 145.38
lakhs (2019-20: Rs. 143.03 lakhs) gain in
profit and loss account. A 50 bps increase
in interest rates would have led to an
equal butopposite effect.

As an estimation of the approximate
impact of the foreign exchange rate risk,
with respect to Financial Statements, the
Company has calculated the impact of a
2% increase in the spot price as on the
reporting date would have led to an
increase in additional Rs. 311.61 lakhs
(2019-20: Rs.811.84 lakhs)as loss in Profit
and Loss account. A 2% decrease would
have led to an increase an equal but
opposite effect
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Foreign currencyrisk exposure:
The Company's exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period expressed in Rs. Lakhs, are as
follows:

Particulars 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
EURO AED KWD EURO AED OMR
Financial assets

Tradereceivables 12,684.11 31,203.90( 14,789.33 -
Others 0.73 2,986.95 - 641.25 3,091.24
Less:
Foreign exchange forward contracty 2,287.85 - 13,946.70 -
Netexposure toforeign

currencyrisk (assets) 10,396.99 2,986.95(31,203.90( 1,483.88 3,091.24

Financial liabilities

Advancesreceived from customer 5,019.22 - - -
Borrowings - -l 5,301.13 - 758.35
Trade payables 729.69 1,012.15| 26,605.26 41.45 -
Others - - -
Less:

Hedged through derivatives
(includes hedges for highly
probable transactions upto next
12 months)

Foreignexchange forward contracts,  2,199.41
Net exposure toforeign

8,276.92

currencyrisk (liabilities) 48,515.60 5,748.91 1,012.15(31,906.38 8,318.37

1) Management of creditrisk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counter-party fails to meet its contractual
obligations.

Tradereceivables

Concentrations of credit risk with respect to trade receivables are limited, due to the Company’s customer base being
large, diverse and across sectors and countries. All trade receivables are reviewed and assessed for default on a
quarterly basis.

Our historical experience & collecting receivables is supported by low level of past default and hence the credit risk is
perceivedto below.

Other financial assets

The Company maintains exposure in cash and cash equivalents, term deposits with banks, and loans to subsidiary
companies. Individual risk limits are set for each counter-party based on financial position, credit rating and past
experience. Credit limits and concentration of exposures are actively monitored by the Treasury department of the
Company.

Impact of hedging activities
The Company does not follow the hedge accounting in view of natural hedge.
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Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2021.
(% In Lakhs)

Year Ended Year Ended
31st-March-2021 31st-March-2020
50 DisclosuresAsRequiredByIndian Accounting Standard (Ind As) 19 Employee Benefits

a  Defined contribution plans: Amount of Rs.186.77 Lakhs (Previous yearRs. 237.85 Lakhs) is recognised as an
expense andincluded in Employee benefits expense as under the following defined contribution plans:

Benefits (Contribution to):

Providentfund 185.69
Employee stateinsurance scheme 0.85
Labour welfare scheme 0.22

Total 186.76
Defined benefitplans:

Gratuity:

The company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible employees. The Gratuity
Plan provides a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of
employment, of an amount equivalentto 15 days'salary for each completed year of service. Vesting occurs upon
completion of five continuous years of service in accordance with Indian law.

The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expenses recognised in the statement of profit
and loss and the funded status and amounts recognised in the balance sheet: (% In Lakhs)

A
31st-03-2021 31st-03-2020

I Changein presentvalue of defined benefit obligation during the year

PresentValue of defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 269.08 335.11
Interest cost 16.10 25.80
Currentservice cost 37.39

Pastservice cost

Liability transfer from other Group

Liability transferred out/divestment

Benefits paid directly by employer =

Benefits paid (36.55)

Actuarial changes arising from changesin demographicassumptions -

Actuarial changes arising from changes in financial assumptions (3.34)

Actuarial changes arising from changesin experience adjustments (2.27)

Presentvalue of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 280.41

NN
N=0OWVWONOOTULIDWN = -

Changeinfairvalue of plan assets during the year

Fairvalue of plan assets at the beginning of the year 110.88
Interestincome 7.29
Contributions paid by the employer

Benefits paid from the fund (3.57)
Assets transferred out / divestments

Return on plan assets excluding interest 0.49
Fairvalue of plan assets at the end of the year 115.09

NOuUubhwN =

Netasset/(liability) recognised in the balance sheet

Presentvalue of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year (280.41) (269.08)
Fairvalue of plan assets at the end of the year 115.09 110.88
Amountrecognised in the balance sheet (165.32) (158.20)
Net (liability) / asset- current (37.08) (41.11)
Net (liability) / asset- non-current (128.25) (117.09)

upbhwN =
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(% In Lakhs)

Asat Asat
31st-March-2021 31st-March-2020

Expensesrecognised in the statement of profitand loss for

theyear

Currentservice cost

Interest cost on benefit obligation (net)

Total expensesincluded in employee benefits expense

Recognised in other comprehensiveincome forthe year
Actuarial changes arising from changes in demographic
assumptions

Actuarial changes arising from changesin financial assumptions
Actuarial changes arising from changes in experience adjustments

Return on plan assets excludinginterestincome
Recognisedin other comprehensiveincome

Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation

Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period)
Between 2and 5years

Between6and 10years

37.39
8.81

Quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptionis as below:

Increase/(decrease) on present value of defined benefits obligation at the end of the year:

One percentage pointincrease in discountrate

One percentage point decrease in discount rate

One percentage pointincreasein rate of salary Increase
One percentage pointdecreasein rate of salary Increase
Ten percentage pointincrease inemployee turnover rate
Ten percentage pointdecrease inemployee turnover rate

Sensitivity Analysis Method:

(20.38)
28.14
29.19

(21.63)

1.68
2.60

(21.46)
24.87
25.93

(22.69)
(0.51)

0.53

Sensitivity analysis is performed by varying a single parameter while keeping all the other parameters

unchanged.

Sensitivity analysis fails to focus on the interrelationship between underlying parameters. Hence, the results may

vary if two or more variables are changed simultaneously.

The method used does not indicate anything about the likelihood of change in any parameter and the extent of the

changeifany.

VIIl Actuarialassumptions
1 Discountrate
2 Salaryescalation

3 Mortalityrate duringemployment

4 Rateofemployeeturnover
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Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2021.
(% In Lakhs)

Asat Asat
31st-March-2021 31st-March-2020

51 a Disclosure requirement under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED
Act,2006).

The principal amountand the interest due thereon remaining unpaid
toany supplieratthe end of each accounting year

Principal

Interest on principal outstanding

Theamount of interest paid by the buyerin terms of section 16,
along with the amount of the payment made to a supplier beyond
the appointed day during each accounting year.

Theamountofinterest due and payable for the period of delay in
making payment (which has been paid but beyond the appointed
date during the year) but without adding interest under the act.

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid attheend
of each accountingyear.

Theamountof furtherinterest remaining due and payable evenin

succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above

areactually paid to the small companies, for the purpose of

disallowance as deductible expenditure under section 23. 49.17 131.31

Disclosure of payable to vendors as defined under the “Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act,
2006"is based on the information available with the Company regarding the status of registration of such vendors
underthe said Act, as per the intimation received from them on requests made by the Company.

b Tradepayables/receivables are subjectto confirmation and reconciliation.

52 Details Of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Expenditure:  In Lakhs)

Year Ended Year Ended
31st-March-2021 31st-March-2020
Amountrequiredto be spentas per Section 135 of the Act 116.15 101.93
116.15 101.93

Amountspentduring theyearon:
(i) Construction /acquisition of an asset = =
On purpose otherthan (i) above 176.73 103.63

Total 176.73 103.63
53 TheCompanyishavingsingle segmenti.e."Steel Pipes".

54 The Company has considered the possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating to COVID-19 on the
carrying amounts of receivables, inventories, property, plant and equipment and investments. In developing the
assumptions relating to the possible future uncertainties in the global economic conditions, the Company has, as
atthe date of approval of these standalone financials, used internal and external sources of information, including
economic forecasts and estimates from market sources, on the expected future performance of the Company.On
the basis of evaluation and current indicators of future economic conditions, the Company expects to recover the
carrying amounts of these assets and does not anticipate any impairment to these financial and non-financial
assets. However. the impact assessment of COVID-19 is a continuing process, given the uncertainties associated
with its nature and duration. The Company will continue to monitor any material changes to future economic
conditions.
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55 The Company is proposing to divest upto 100 % equity investment held in wholly owned subsidiary, Merino
Shelters Private Limited.

56 Expected credit loss represents an allowance for life time expected loss on the carrying value of trade receivables,
which has been recognised in accordance with simplified approach as permitted by IND-As 109 - "Financial
instruments"”

57 The Company, on approval of the Bombay High Court in March 2015, has given effect to the scheme of
arrangement for the merger / demerger between Man Industries (India) Limited (Company) and Man
Infraprojects Private Limited (MIPL), in the financial statement of Financial Year 2014-15. MIPL has made frivolous
claims on the company and also challenged the valuation of assets which had been already approved by the H'ble
Bombay High Court. In view of this, the Company has filed an Application for withdrawal of bogus claims and for
modification of scheme to provide for swapping of shares between two promoter groups, which is pending
hearing and disposal in the H'ble Bombay High Court. Pending adjudication of the same and pending full
implementation of the Scheme, Company continues to be 100% shareholder of MIPL. As the above matter stands
sub-judice, liability if any, thereon cannot be quantified.

58 Previous year's figures have been regrouped or reclassified to confirm to current year's presentation , wherever
considered necessary.

As perourreport ofthe even date

For MH Dalal & Associates For and behalf of Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants RCMansukhani Nikhil Mansukhani PKTandon RenuPJalan

Firmregistration number: 112449W Chairman Executive Director Director Director
DIN-00012033 DIN-02257522 DIN-00364652 DIN-08076758

DevangDalal HeenaKalantri NarendraS. Mairpady Ashok Gupta Jatin Shah
Partner Director Director Chief Financial Company Secretary
Membership No.: 109049 DIN-00149407 DIN-00536905 Officer

Place: Mumbai
Date: May31,2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To,
The Members of

MAN INDUSTRIES (INDIA) LIMITED

Reportonthe Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statement

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of MAN INDUSTRIES (INDIA) LIMITED (‘the Holding
Company') and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as 'the Group'), which comprise the
consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2021, the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), the consolidated statement of cash flows and the consolidated statement of changes in Equity for the year then ended,
and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the
consolidated financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except for the effect of matter
described in the basis of qualified opinion paragraph below, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information
required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2021, and it's consolidated profit (including other
comprehensive income), its consolidated cash flows and the consolidated changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified
under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI') together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
ouraudit of the consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficientand appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statement does not include the financial statement of Merino Shelters Private Limited, wholly
owned subsidiary of the holding company, which is in contravention to Indian Accounting Standard (IND AS) 110issued by the institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters (‘'KAM') are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated
financial statements as awhole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report:

Description of Key Audit Matter How ouraudit addressed the key audit matter

Assessmentof the carrying value of investmentin and loans granted to its subsidiary Merino Shelters Private Limited
(Refertonote 6 and note 15 to the financial statements)

As at 31 March 2021, the carrying amount of (a) investmentis¥ | Our Audit procedures include the following substantive
10,229.83 lakhs and (b) loan given is ¥ 846.59 lakhs to its wholly | procedures:

owned subsidiary Merino Shelters Private Limited (MSPL). The
aggregate exposure of the Company in respect of (a) and (b)
above is ¥ 11,076.42 lakhs which is significant to the

consolidated financial statements of the Company. ii. Considered the business forecasts with the current market
position relating to the demand and supply of the product.

I.  Obtained an understanding of the matter with the
management.

Considered the work of the external independent
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Merino Shelters Private Limited is developing
residential/IT/Commercial real estate project at Nerul, Navi
Mumbai. Considering the current situation of the Real Estate
industry there are indicators of the potential impairment of the
Investments in subsidiary and loans given as set out on (a) and
(b)above.

The Management has assessed the impairment by reviewing
the business forecasts using the “DCF” valuation method which
involves the use of management estimates that are dependent

valuation expert engagement by the Company and
assessed their methods and objectivity.

Examined terminal value of the subsidiary used in the
valuation report and tested mathematical accuracy of the
underlying calculations.

Based on the above procedures, the Management's assessment
of impairment in the carrying value of investments in the
subsidiary and loan givenisreasonable.

on future economic circumstances and noted that no provision
for impairment is required to be made in respect of the
investment in subsidiary and loans given and the same are
considered good.

Considering the materiality of the amounts and due to the
management judgment required in estimating the value of
investment and such estimates being subjective, this matter
has beenidentified as a key audit matter.

Other Matters

We did not audit the financial statements/ information of Dubai Branch included in the consolidated financial statements of the
Group whose financial statements/ financial information reflect total assets of ¥ 9,454.13 lakhs (previous year: ¥9,929.34 lakhs) and
the total operating revenues of ¥ 1549.95 lakhs (previous year:¥21,789.12 lakhs) for the year ended on that date, as considered in the
consolidated financial statements. The financial statements/ information of this branch has been audited by the branch auditor
whose reports have been furnished to us, and our opinionin so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of
this branch, is solely on report of such branch auditor.

We did not audit the financial statements of Man Overseas Metal DMCC, U.A.E., subsidiary of the Company, whose financial
statement reflects total assets of ¥ 3,226.83 lakhs (previous year ¥ 3,473.92 lakhs) and total operating revenue of ¥ 501.49 lakhs
(previous year NIL) for the year ended on that date. This financial statement has been audited by the other auditor whose report has
been furnished to us and our opinion, in so far it relates to amount included in respect of the subsidiary is based solely on the report
of otherauditor.

The consolidated financial statement includes unaudited financial statement of M/s. Man USA Inc, subsidiary of the Company,
whose financial statement reflects total assets of ¥ 1.37 lakhs (previous year ¥ 1.42 lakhs) and total operating revenue of NIL
(previousyear NIL) for the year ended on the date.

Ouropinionis notqualifiedin respect of these matters.

OtherInformation

The Holding Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation of other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Holding Company's Annual Report, but does not include the financial
statements and ourauditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
reportinthisregard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated financial statements

The Holding Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view of the consolidated state of affairs
(consolidated financial position), consolidated profit or loss (consolidated financial performance including other comprehensive
income), consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act. The respective management and Board of
Directors of the entities included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of each entity and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
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the selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent
and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the management and Board
of Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management and Board of Directors of the entities included in the Group are
responsible for assessing the ability of each entity to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the respective management and Board of Directors either intends
toliquidate the entity or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the entities included in the Group are also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting
process of each entity.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually orin the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the holding
company has adequate internal financial controls systemin place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by managementand Board of Directors of the Holding Company.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue asa going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
andsignificantauditfindings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bearonourindependence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
sowould reasonably be expected to outweigh the publicinterest benefits of such communication.

ReportonotherLegal and Regulatory Requirements

Asrequired by Section 143 (3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of the reports of the other auditors on separate
financial statements / consolidated financial statements and other financial information of the subsidiaries, we report, to the extent
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applicable, that:
We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purpose of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements;
In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated financial
statements have been kept sofarasitappears from our examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors;
The consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements.
Except for the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph above, in our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014;
The matter described in the Basis of Qualified Opinion paragraph above, in our opinion, does not have any adverse effect on
thefunctioning of the Company.
On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company and taken on record by the
Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports of the other statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies covered
under the Act, none of the directors of the Group companies, covered under the Act, are disqualified as on 31 March 2021 from
being appointed as a directorin terms of Section 164(2) of the Act;
With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Holding Company, and its
subsidiary companies covered under the Act, and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in
‘Annexure A';
With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the requirements of Section 197
(16) of the Act;as amended:
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us, the remuneration paid by the
Companytoits directors during the currentyearisin accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act.
With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Reportin accordance with rule 11 of the Companies (Auditand
Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us and based on the consideration of the report of the other auditors on separate financial statements / consolidated
financial statements as also the otherfinancial information of the subsidiaries:
i. The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2021 on the
consolidated financial position of the Group. Refer Note 42 to the consolidated financial statements.
The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts including derivative contracts during the
yearended 31 March 2021.
There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Holding Company, and its subsidiary companies, during the year ended 31 March 2021;
The disclosures in the consolidated financial statements regarding holdings as well as dealings in specified bank notes
during the period from 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016 have not been made in these consolidated financial
statements since they do not pertain to the financial year ended 31 March 2021.

For MH Dalal & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number:-112449W

Devang Dalal

Partner

Membership Number:- 109049
UDIN:21109049AAAARN5026
Place:Mumbai

Date:May 31,2021
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ANNEXURE A TO INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
Independent Auditor's Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of section 143 of the
CompaniesAct, 2013 (the'Act)
In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of MAN INDUSTRIES (INDIA) LIMITED (the 'Holding
Company') and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as the 'Group'), as at and for the year
ended 31 March 2021, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting ('IFCoFR') of the Holding Company, its
two subsidiary companies, which are companies covered under the Act, as at that date.
Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company, its two subsidiary companies, which are companies covered under the
Act, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the 'Guidance Note') issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (the 'ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of the company's business,
including adherence to the company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required
underthe Act.
Auditor's Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the IFCoFR of the Holding Company, its two subsidiary companies, as aforesaid, based
on ouraudit.We conducted our auditin accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the ICAl and deemed to be prescribed
under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of IFCoFR, and the Guidance Note issued by the ICAl. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whetheradequate IFCoFR were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in
allmaterial respects.
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the IFCoFR and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of IFCoFR includes obtaining an understanding of IFCOFR, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether duetofraud orerror.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms of their reports
referred to in the Other Matter paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the IFCoFR
of the Holding Company, its two subsidiary companies, as aforesaid.
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over financial Reporting
A company's IFCoFR is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's IFCoFR include those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of IFCoFR, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the IFCoFR to
future periods are subject to the risk that the IFCOFR may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the Group has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting and such internal
financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March 2021, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Group considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Noteissued by the ICAL.

For MHDalal & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number:- 112449W

DevangDalal

Partner

Membership Number:- 109049
UDIN:21109049AAAARN5026
Place: Mumbai

Date:May 31,2021
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH 2021

Non-current assets

Property, plantand equipment 32,639.21 35,403.87
Right-of-use assets 1,030.78 1,427.48
Capital workin progress 101.17 356.04
Financial assets

i) Investments 10,229.83 10,229.83
ii) Tradereceivables 2,518.52 5,113.31
iii) Otherfinancial assets 458.82 1,558.93
Othernon currentassets 10,797.44 10,787.56
Total non current assets 57.,775.77 64,877.02
Currentassets

Inventories 33,156.08 37,960.17
Financial assets

i) Investments 62.56 2.07
ii) Tradereceivables 65,595.29 44,999.15
iii) Cashand cash equivalent 1,729.16 13,602.79
iv) Bankbalance otherthan (iii) above 8,487.22 8,557.32
v) Loans 961.38 1,140.16
vi) Otherfinancial assets 505.36 832.89
Other currentassets 10,317.84 10,744.78
Total Current Assets 1,20,814.89 1,17,839.33
TOTALASSETS 1,78,590.66 1,82,716.35

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 2,855.15 2,855.15
Other equity 80,632.57 71,781.02
Total equity 83,487.72 74,636.17
Liabilities
Non-currentliabilities
Financial liabilities
i) Borrowings 203.13 1,533.33
ii) Tradepayable 84.44 11.00
iii) Lease liabilities 760.08 1,173.82
Provisions 128.25 117.09
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 2,545.30 2,660.83
Other non-current liabilities 364.53 364.53
Total Non currentliabilities 4,085.73 5,860.60
Currentliabilities
Financial liabilities
i)  Borrowings 27,725.88 22,478.32
ii) Trade payable
-Dues of micro and small enterprises 821.58 468.53
-Dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 50,935.28 55,659.42
iii) Lease liabilities 409.42 360.58
iv) Otherfinancial liabilities 3,206.91 6,572.24
Other current liabilities 6,444.09 15,353.60
Provisions 508.65 392.46
Current tax liability (net) 965.40 934.43
Total Current Liabilities 91,017.21 1,02,219.58
TOTALLIABILITIES 95,102.94 1,08,080.18

TOTALEQUITY AND LIABILITIES 1,78,590.66 1,82,716.35

Theaccompanying notes are anintegral part of these consolidated financial statement.

Thisis the Balance Sheetreferred toin ourreport of even date.

For MHDalal & Associates For and behalf of Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants R CMansukhani Nikhil Mansukhani PKTandon RenuPJalan

Firmregistration number: 112449W Chairman Executive Director Director Director
DIN-00012033 DIN-02257522 DIN-00364652 DIN-08076758

DevangDalal HeenaKalantri NarendraS. Mairpady Ashok Gupta Jatin Shah

Partner Director Director ChiefFinancial Company Secretary
Membership No.: 109049 DIN-00149407 DIN-00536905 Officer

Place: Mumbai

Date: May31,2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2021
(¥ in Lakhs)
S ==
2020-2021 2019-2020
Income
Revenue from operations 2,08,019.67 1,75,927.86
Otherincome 33 3,075.79 1,655.37
Total Income 2,11,095.46 1,77,583.23
Expenses
Costof materials consumed 1,28,268.97 1,16,641.40
Purchases of stock-in-trade 18,142.52 10,033.03
Changesininventories of finished goods, stock-in -trade and
work-in-progress (5,994.41) (360.83)
Employee benefits expense 5,488.85 5,592.03
Finance costs 5,274.28 6,442.01
Depreciation expenses 4,638.12 5,232.12
Other expenses 41,607.94 27,227.45
Total expenses 1,97,426.27 1,70,807.21
Profit/(loss) before exceptional item and tax 13,669.19 6,776.02
Exceptionalitem (loss by fire) = 25041
Profit/(loss) before tax 13,669.19 6,525.61
Taxexpenses
(1) Current tax 3,701.54 2,259.43
(2) Deferred tax (Credit) / charge. (117.06) (1,284.09)
Profit/(loss) for the period 10,084.71 5,550.27

Other Comprehensive Income
A (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (260.28)
(i) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to
profitorloss (1.53)
B (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss =
(i) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to
profitorloss
Total Other Comprehensive Income (net of tax) (261.81)

Total Comprehensive Income for the period (Comprising
Profit/(Loss) and Other Comprehensive Income for the period) 9,822.90 6,224.09

Earnings per equity share of face value of Rs.5/- each
Basic earning per share 17.66
Dilluted earning per share 16.78

Theaccompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statement.

Thisis the Statement of Profit & Loss referred to in ourreport of even date.

For MH Dalal & Associates Forand behalf of Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants R CMansukhani Nikhil Mansukhani PKTandon RenuPJalan

Firm registration number: 112449W Chairman Executive Director Director Director
DIN-00012033 DIN-02257522 DIN-00364652 DIN-08076758

DevangDalal HeenaKalantri NarendraS. Mairpady Ashok Gupta JatinShah
Partner Director Director ChiefFinancial Company Secretary
Membership No.: 109049 DIN-00149407 DIN-00536905 Officer

Place: Mumbai
Date: May31,2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2021

A.Equity Share Capital

(X InLakhs)

Asat 1stApril, 2019

2,855.15

Changesin equity share capital during the year

Asat31st March, 2020

2,855.15

Changesin equity share capital during the year

Asat31stMarch, 2021

2,855.15

B.OtherEquity (18 B)

Reserves and Surplus

Securities
Premium
Reserve

General | Retained

Reserve

Foreign
currency

(FInLakhs)

Money
received

Total

Balanceasat 1stApril, 2019

9,433.32

9,733.52  47,867.01

314.01

67,347.86

Profit/ (Loss) for the year

- 5,550.26

5,550.26

Other comprehensive gains/ (loss) for the year -

- Remeasurements gains/ (loss) on defined
benefitplans

93.49

93.49

- Foreign currency translation differences

556.80

- Deferred Tax

(19.57)

23.53

Dividend

Dividend on Equity Shares

(1,427.57)

(1,427.57)

Corporate Dividend Distribution Tax

(293.44)

(293.44)

Transferto General Reserve

539.80 (539.80)

TransitionimpactofInd-AS 116

- (69.90)

(69.90)

Balanceasat31st March, 2020

9,433.32

10,273.32 51,160.47

71,781.02

Profit/ (Loss) for the year

10,084.71

10,084.71

Other comprehensiveincome/ (loss) for the year

- Remeasurements gains/ (loss) on defined

benefit plans

6.10

6.10

- Foreign currency translation differences

(262.38)

(262.38)

- Deferred Tax

- (1.53)

(1.53)

Dividend on Equity Shares

- (1,142.06)

(1,142.06)

Transfer to General Reserve

1,008.47 (1,008.47)

Adjustment of IncomeTax (earlier year)

- (320.79)

(320.79)

Issue of share warrants

487.50

Balanceasat31st March, 2021

9,433.32

11,281.79 58,778.43

80,632.57

* Refer note 18A (d)

Theaccompanying notes are anintegral part of these consolidated financial statement.

Thisis the Statement of Changes in Equity referred to in our report of even date.

For MHDalal & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration number: 112449W

DevangDalal
Partner
Membership No.: 109049

Place: Mumbai
Date: May31,2021
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Forand behalf of Board of Directors

RCMansukhani
Chairman
DIN-00012033

HeenaKalantri
Director
DIN-00149407

Nikhil Mansukhani
Executive Director
DIN-02257522

NarendraS. Mairpady
Director
DIN-00536905

PKTandon
Director
DIN-00364652

Ashok Gupta
ChiefFinancial
Officer

RenuPJalan
Director
DIN-08076758

JatinShah
Company Secretary
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2021
(% in Lakhs)

Year Year
2020-21 2019-20

[A] CASHFLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before tax from continuing operations

13,669.19

6,525.60

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation expense

4,638.12

5,232.12

Finance costs

5,274.28

6,442.01

Interestincome

(428.23)

(730.59)

Bad debts

6,979.34

893.28

Provision for dobutful debts

213.81

Profit on sale of investments (net)

(118.36)

Fair valuation of investments through profitand loss

(8.10)

3.04

Dividendincome

(0.12)

Loss by fire

250.41

Foreign exchange (gain)/loss (net)

(1,635.57)

41.02

Other compressive income (Net)

(261.19)

673.82

Operating profit before working capital changes

28,323.16

19,330.70

Adjustments for:

(Increase)/ Decrease intrade and other receivables

(24,185.03)

6,767.52

(Increase)/ Decrease ininventories

4,804.09

(16,297.25)

Increase/ (Decrease)intrade and other payables

(11,395.16)

14,723.55

Increase/ (Decrease) in provisions

127.35

(414.64)

(30,648.75)

4,779.18

Cash (usedin)/from operations

(2,325.59)

24,109.88

Directtaxes paid (net of refunds)

(3,663.83)

(2,679.35)

~ [B] CASHFLOWSFROMINVESTING ACTIVITIES

Net cash (usedin)/from continuing operations[A]

(5,989.42)

21,430.53

Add:Inflows frominvesting activities

Interest received

428.23

730.59

Dividendreceived

0.12

Matuirty of Fixed Deposits

1,150.98

Proceedsfromsale of Investments

65.98

1,645.31

730.59

Less: Outflows frominvesting activities

Purchase of property, plantand equipment

1,219.41

1,069.76

Investmentin Fixed Deposits

4,294.90

1,219.41

5,364.66

Net Cash (usedin) /frominvesting activities[B]

— 42590

(4,634.07)

[C] CASHFLOWS FROMFINANCING ACTIVITIES

Add: Inflows from financing activities

Proceedsfrom short-term borrowings (net)

5,247.57

8,049.12

Proceedsfromissue of share warrants

487.50

5,735.07

8.049.12

Less: Outflows from financing activities

Repayments of long-term borrowings (net)

4,710.43

3,383.14

Repayment of lease liabilities

524.97

346.78

Dividend paid

1,135.80

1,398.40

Dividend Distribution Tax

293.44

Interest paid 5,674.00 6,313.08
12,045.19 11,734.85
Cash (usedin) /from financing activities [C] (6,310.1 (3,685.73)
NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASHAND BANK BALANCES (A+B+C) —(11,873.65) 13,110.73
Cashand cash equivalents at beginning of the year 13,602.79 492.07
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 1,729.15 13,602.79

Note:
The Consolidated Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting
Standard (Ind AS) 7 - Statement of Cash Flows

Thisis the Cash Flow Statementreferred toin our report of even date.

For MHDalal & Associates For and behalf of Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants R CMansukhani Nikhil Mansukhani PKTandon RenuPJalan

Firmregistration number: 112449W Chairman Executive Director Director Director
DIN-00012033 DIN-02257522 DIN-00364652 DIN-08076758

DevangDalal HeenaKalantri NarendraS. Mairpady Ashok Gupta Jatin Shah
Partner Director Director ChiefFinancial Company Secretary
Membership No.: 109049 DIN-00149407 DIN-00536905 Officer

Place: Mumbai
Date: May31,2021

Annual Report 2020-21 | 129




O
A Mtrlé (INndia) Ltd

the line pipe people

Notes on Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2021.

1 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards ('Ind AS') under the
historical cost convention on the accrual basis except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values, the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013(“the Act”) (to the extent notified) and guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (SEBI). The Ind AS are prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and relevantamendment rules issued there after.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted ora
revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hithertoin use.

PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the group has control. The group controls an entity when the group is exposed to, or
has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power
todirect the relevantactivities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which controliis transferred to
the group.They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for business combinations by the group

The group combines the financial statements of the parent and its subsidiaries line by line adding together like items of
assets, liabilities, equity, income and expenses. Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions
between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
an impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the group.

Non-controlling interestsin the results and equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated statement of profit
and loss, consolidated statement of changes in equity and balance sheet respectively.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the Management to make
estimates, judgments and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period. Application of accounting policies that require critical
accounting estimates involving complex and subjective judgments and the use of assumptions in these financial statements
have been disclosed in note no 46,48 and 49. Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual results could
differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as the Management becomes aware of changes in
circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in the financial statements in the period in
which changes are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Estimation of uncertainties relating to the global health pandemicfrom COVID-19

The Group has considered the possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating to COVID-19 on the carrying
amounts of receivables, execution of orders and investment in subsidiaries. In developing the assumptions relating to the
possible future uncertainties in the global economic conditions because of this pandemic, the Group, as at the date of
approval of these consolidated financial statements has used internal and external sources of information including credit
reports and related information, economic forecasts. The Group has performed sensitivity analysis on the assumptions used
and based on current estimates expects the carrying amount of these assets will be recovered.The impact of COVID-19 on the
Group’s financial statements may differ from that estimated as at the date of approval of these consolidated financial
statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Income Recognition

i) Revenue in respect of sale of goods is recognised on dispatch of goods from the factory on the basis of tax invoice.
The sales are net of Goods and Service Tax. Further the materials returned/rejected are accounted for in the year of
return/rejections.

ii) Fortheservicerendered by the Group recognised revenue on the basis of Stage of Completion Method.

iii) Otherincome is comprised primarily of interest income, export incentives, exchange gain/loss on forward contracts and
on translation of other assets and liabilities. Other income is recognized on accrual basis except dividend income which is
recognized when theright to receive paymentis established.
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Notes on Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2021.

b Property, Plantand Equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. The cost
directly attritubale to acquisition are capitalised until the property, plant & equipment are ready for use, as intended by the
Management.
Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each Balance Sheet date is classified
as capital advances under other non-current assets and the cost of assets not ready to use before such date are disclosed
under “Capital work-in-progress”. Subsequent expenditures relating to property, plant and equipment is capitalized only
wheniitis probable that future economic benefits associated with these will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. Repairs and maintenance costs are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss when incurred. The
cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the financial statements upon sale or retirement of the asset
andtheresultantgainsorlosses are recognized in the Statement of Profitand Loss.
The assets' residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate.

Leases:

Ind AS 116 requires lessees to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease adjusted with any option to
extend or terminate the lease, if the use of such option is reasonably certain. The Group makes an assessment on the expected
lease term on a lease-by-lease basis and thereby assesses whether it is reasonably certain that any options to extend or
terminate the contract will be exercised. In evaluating the lease term, the Group considers factors such as any significant
leasehold improvements undertaken over the lease term, costs relating to the termination of the lease and the importance of
the underlying asset to the Group's operations taking into account the location of the underlying asset and the availability of
suitable alternatives. The lease term in future periods is reassessed to ensure that the lease term reflects the current economic
circumstances. After considering current and future economic conditions, the Group has concluded that no changes are
required to lease period relating to the existing lease contracts (Refer to Note 41).

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
Cost of anon-monetary asset acquired in exchange of another non-monetary asset is measured at fair value. Intangible assets
areamortised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.

Goodwill

Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is included in intangible assets. Goodwill is not amortised but it is tested for
impairment annually, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that it might be impaired, and is
carried at cost lessaccumulated impairment losses.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in the
Consolidated Statement of Profitand Loss.

Depreciation
Property, Plant & Equipment
The Group depreciates property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives using the straight-line method. The
estimated useful lives of assets are as follows:
Office Building 60years Factory Building 30years
Plant&Machinery 15years Wind Mill 22years
Office Equipment’s 05years Furniture &Fixtures 10years
Vehicles 10years ComputerHardware 03 years
Depreciation methods, useful lifes and residual values are review periodically, including at each financial year end.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are amortized by straight line method over the estimated useful life of such assets. The useful life is
estimated based on the evaluation of future economic benefits expected of such assets. The amortisation period and
amortisation method are reviewed at least at each financial year. If the expected useful life of assets is significantly different
from previous estimates, the amortisation period is changed accordingly.
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Notes on Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2021.

f Valuation of Inventories

i) Raw materials are valued at cost or net realizable value whichever is lower. Cost is computed using First in First Out (FIFO)
method.

i) Work -in -Progress include the cost of purchase, appropriate share of cost of conversion and other overhead incurred in
bringing the inventory toits presentlocation and condition.

iii) Finished goods are valued at cost or net realisable value whichever is less. Cost includes cost of purchase, cost of
conversion and other overhead incurred in bringing the inventory to its present location and condition. Obsolete/slow
moving inventories are adequately provided for.

iv) Otherstoresand spares/consumable are valued at cost after providing for cost of obsolescence, if any.

Foreign Exchange Fluctuation

i) Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the
transaction orthatapproximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

ii) Monetaryitems denominated inforeign currencies at the year end are restated at yearend rates.

iii) In respect of forward exchange contract entered for speculation purpose and expired during the year, the difference in
forward exchange booking rate and spot rate on the date of expiry of contract is dealt in the consolidated Profit and Loss
Account.Inrespect of forward exchange contract entered for speculative purpose and carried forward in next accounting
period, the difference between the forward exchange booking rate and closing interbank rate including premium upto
maturity prevailing at the close of the year are dealt in the consolidated Profitand Loss Account.

In respect of branches, which are non-integral foreign operations, all transactions are translated at rates prevailing on the
date of transaction or that approximates the actual rate at the date of transaction. Branch monetary assets and liabilities
arerestated at the year-end rates. The exchange difference arising on translation are recognised in Other Comprehensive
Income (OCI).

Any income or expense on account of exchange difference either on settlement or on translation is recognised in the
consolidated Statement of Profitand Loss.

Employee Benefits

i) ShortTerm Employee Benefits
AllEmployee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-term employee
benefitsand they are recognized in the period in which employee renders the related service except leave encashment.
Long Term Employee Benefits
-Defined Contribution Plans
Defined contribution fund are government administered provident fund scheme, employee state insurance scheme for
all employees. The Group's contribution to defined contribution plans are recognized in the consolidated Profit & Loss
Accountinthefinancial year to which theyrelate.
-Defined Benefit Gratuity Plan
The Group's gratuity benefit scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Group's net obligation in respect of the gratuity benefit
scheme is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in
the currentand prior periods; that benefitis discounted to determine its present value and the fair value of any plan assets
isdeducted.

The present value of the obligation under such defined benefit plan is determined based on actuarial valuation using the
Projected Unit Credit Method.

The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount rates used for
determining the present value of the obligation under defined benefit plan, are based on the market yields on
Government Securities as at the consolidated Balance Sheet date.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to
retained earnings through other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Past service cost is recognised
inthe consolidated statement of profitand loss in the period of plan amendment.
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Notes on Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2021.

iii) Other Long-Term Employee Benefits
Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which the
employee renders the related services are recognised as a liability at the present value of the defined benefit obligation at
the consolidated Balance Sheet date, determined based on actuarial valuation using Projected Unit Credit Method. The
discount rates used for determining the present value of the obligation under defined benefit plan, are based on the
marketyields on Government Securities as at the consolidated Balance Sheet date.

Taxation

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred income tax. Income tax expense is recognized in net profit in the
consolidated statement of profit and loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity, in which
case it is recognized in other comprehensive income. Current income tax for current and prior periods is recognized at the
amount expected to be paid to or recovered from the tax authorities, using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted
orsubstantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

The group offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized
amounts and where it intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The
income tax provision for the interim period is made based on the best estimate of the annual average tax rate expected to be
applicable for thefull financial year.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for all temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each
reporting date and are reduced to the extent that itis no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized. Deferred
income tax assets and liabilities are measured using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the consolidated balance sheet date and are expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary
differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect of changes in tax rates on deferred income tax assets and
liabilities is recognized as income or expense in the period that includes the enactment or the substantive enactment date. A
deferred income tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences and tax losses can be utilized.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provision is recognised in the accounts when there is a present obligation as a result of past event(s) and it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are not
discounted to their present value and are determined based on the best estimate required to settle the obligation at the
reporting date.These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.
Contingent liabilities are disclosed unless the possibility of outflow of resources is remote.

Contingentassets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial statements.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalised as part of the cost
of such assets. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use. All
other borrowing costs are charged to Profitand Loss account.

Earning PerShare

In determining Earning per Share, the Group considers the net profit after tax and includes the post-tax effect of any
extraordinary / exceptional item. The number of shares used in computing Basic Earning per Share is the weighted average
number of shares outstanding during the period. The number of shares used in computing Diluted Earnings per Share
comprises the weighted average shares considered for deriving Basic Earnings per Share and also the weighted average
number of shares that could have beenissued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares unless the results would
be anti - dilutive. Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, unless issued at a
later date.
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m

Exceptional ltems

Certain occasions, the size, type or incidence of an item of income or expense, pertaining to the ordinary activities of the
group is such that its disclosure improves the understanding of the performance of the group, such income or expense is
classified as an exceptional item and accordingly, disclosed in the notes accompanying to the consolidated financial
statements.

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets and are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the
recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset
basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the
recoverable amountis determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized in the consolidated Statement of Profitand Loss
is measured by the amount by which the carrying value of the assets exceeds the estimated recoverable amount of the asset.
An impairment loss is reversed in the statement of profit and loss if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount.The carrying amount of the asset is increased to its revised recoverable amount, provided
that this amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of any accumulated
amortization or depreciation) had noimpairmentloss been recognized for the asset in prior years.

Government Grants

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received, and all attached
conditions will be complied with.

Where the grant relates to an asset the cost of the asset is shown at gross value and grant thereon is treated as capital grant
which is recognised as income in the statement of profit and loss over the period and in proportion in which depreciation is
charged.

Revenue grants are recognised in the statement of consolidated profit and loss in the same period as the related cost which
they areintended to compensate are accounted for.

Where the company receives non-monetary grants, the asset and the grant are recorded gross at nominal amounts and
released to the statement of consolidated profit and loss over the expected useful life and pattern of consumption of the
benefit of the underlying asset by equal annual instalments.

Financial Instruments

Initial recognition

The Group recognizes financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All financial assets and liabilities are recognized at fair value on initial recognition, except for trade receivables
which are initially measured at transaction price. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities, that are not at fair value through profit or loss, are added to the fair value on initial
recognition.

Subsequent measurement
a. Non-derivative financial instruments
i)  Financial assets carried atamortised cost
Afinancial assetis subsequently measured atamortised cost if itis held within a business model whose objective is to
hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held within a
business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and
the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. The Group has made an irrevocable election for its
investments which are classified as equity instruments to present the subsequent changes in fair value in other
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comprehensive income based on its business model. Further, in cases where the Group has made an irrevocable
election based on its business model, for its investments which are classified as equity instruments, the subsequent
changesin fairvalue are recognized in other comprehensive income.

Financial assets at fair value through profitorloss
A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently fair valued through profit or
loss.

-Impairment

The Group recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets which are
not fair valued through profit or loss. Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant financing component is
measured atan amount equal to lifetime ECL. For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured atan
amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition
in which case those are measured at lifetime ECL. The amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) thatis required to
adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date to the amount that is required to be recognised is recognized as an
impairment gain orlossin profit or loss.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method, except for
contingent consideration recognized in a business combination which is subsequently measured at fair value
through profit and loss. For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the Balance Sheet date, the
carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

Investmentin subsidiaries
Investmentin subsidiariesis carried at cost in the separate financial statements.

. Derivative financial instruments
The Group holds derivative financial instruments such as foreign exchange forward and option contracts to mitigate the
risk of changes in exchange rates on foreign currency exposures.The counterparty for these contracts is generally a bank.

. Share capital
Ordinary Shares
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issuance of new ordinary shares and
share options are recognized as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects.
Derecognition of financial instruments
The group derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire or it
transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition under Ind AS 109. A financial liability (or a part of a
financial liability) is derecognized from the Group's Balance Sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged or cancelled or expires.

FairValue Measurement:

In determining the fair value of its financial instruments, the Group uses a variety of methods and assumptions that are based
on market conditions and risks existing at each reporting date. The methods used to determine fair value include discounted
cash flow analysis, available quoted market prices and dealer quotes. All methods of assessing fair value result in general
approximation of value, and such value may never actually be realized.
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(% In Lakhs)

Asat Asat
31st-March-2021 31st-March-2020

Non Current Investment
Unquotedinvestments

Investment carried at cost

Investmentin equity instrument of subsidiaries

Merino Shelters Private Limited A
18,789 (31 March 2020: 18,789) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/-each

A Refernoteno.55
Non CurrentTrade Receivables
Unsecured, Considered goods unless otherwise stated

Non current*
Less :Allowance for expected creditloss

Total

10,229.83 10,229.83

10,229.83 10,229.83

2,732.33 5,113.31
(213.81) =

2,518.52 5,113.31

* of above Rs.1,882.95 Lakhs (31 March 2020: Rs.4,287.16 Lakhs) outstanding on account of mattersin litigation.

Non-Current Financial Assets-Others
Security deposit

Lease deposit *

Bank deposit maturing overoneyear A

Total

* includes payment torelated parties (Refer Note 44)

79.44
248.41
130.97

80.02
273.31
1,205.60

458.82

1,558.93

A held as lien by bank against bank guarantee and letter of credit amounting to Rs.124.11 Lakhs (31 March 2020:

Rs. 1,205.38 Lakhs)
Non-Current Assets-Others
Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated
Advanceto suppliers
Capitaladvance*
Advancefor property A
Others
Total

* Underlitigation

51.18
3,496.10
7,026.18

223.98

29.09
3,508.30
7,026.18

223.98

10,797.44 10,787.56

A Advance given for purchase of under-construction property and considering the current situation of real estate
industry, management believes to get the possession of the property soon.
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(% In Lakhs)

Asat Asat
31st-March-2021 31st-March-2020

10 Inventories

Raw material 16,110.51 28,589.04
Raw material in transit 1,639.60 77.80
Work-in-progress 4,208.11 881.78
Finished goods 7,311.41 4,643.34
Storesand spares 3,886.45 3,768.20

Total 33,156.08 37,960.17

Investment

Investments in equity instruments Quoted 62.16 2.06

Investments in equity instruments Unquoted 0.01 0.01

Investmentsin mutual Fund 0.39 =
62.56 2.07

QuotedInvestments

Investments in equity instruments Carried at fair value through profitandloss

Everest Kant Cylinder Limited

18763 (31 March 2020: 18763) Equity shares of Rs. 2/-each 14.69

Sirpur Paper Mills Limited

18519(31 March 2020: 18519) equity shares of Rs. 10/- each

GlaxoSmithKline Pharmaceuticals Limited

850 (31 March 2020: NIL) equity shares of Rs. 10/- each

HeidelbergcementIndiaLimited

5000 (31 March 2020: NIL) equity shares of Rs. 10/- each

Indraprastha Gas Limited

2850 (31 March 2020: NIL) equity shares of Rs. 2/- each

Minda Corporation Limited

9700 (31 March 2020: NIL) equity shares of Rs. 2/-each

Total CurrentInvestments

Aggregate amount of quoted investments and market value
thereof

Total

Unquoted Investments
Dombivali Nagari Sahakari Bank Limited
30(31March 2020: 30) equity shares of Rs. 50/-each

Investment in Mutual Fund

Nippon India money market fund - Growth plan growth option (LQGPG)
12.294 units (31 March 2020: NIL ) units of Rs. 1,000 /- each

Total

Trade Receivables

Considered good, unless otherwise stated

Unsecured 27,870.42 38,744.45
Secured 37,724.87 6,254.71

Total 65,595.29 44,999.15
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(% In Lakhs)

Asat Asat
31st-March-2021 31st-March-2020

13 CashAndCashEquivalents

Balances with banks:
-incurrentaccounts 1,722.55 12,411.92
-indepositaccounts - 33.00
-chequesonhand - 1,150.49
Cashonhand 6.61 7.38

Total 1,729.16 13,602.79
BankBalances OtherThan Cash And Cash Equivalents

Margin money deposits A 7,965.80 8,042.16
Unpaid dividends - earmarked balances with banks* 521.42 515.16

8,487.22 8,557.32
Aheld aslien by bank against bank guarantee, letter of creditand term loan.
* There are no amounts due and outstanding to be credited to the Investor Education and Protection Fund as at
31stMarch, 2021.
CurrentFinancial Asstes-Loans
Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated
Advancesrecoverablein cash orin kind or for value to be received:
Loanstoemployees 44.67

Loanstorelated parties (Refer Note 44) 856.12

Interest receivable 239.37

Total 1,140.16

Current Financial Assets-Others

Advance tax less provision for tax of earlier years

Total

Other Current Assets

Capitaladvance 49.36 224.64
Advancetosuppliers 257.69 3,629.82
Prepaid expenses 1,028.90 1,075.58
Deposits 200.00 -
Statutory and otherreceivables 8,781.89 5,814.75

Total 10,317.84 10,744.78
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Asat Asat
31st-March-2021 31st-March-2020

18A Share Capital
Authorised:
80,000,000 (31 March 2020:80,000,000) equity shares of Rs. 5/-each 4,000.00 4,000.00
Issued, Subscribed & Paid-Up - -
57,103,055 (31 March 2020:57,103,055) equity shares of Rs. 5/-each 2,855.15 2,855.15

Notes:
a  Reconciliation of the number of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year:

Issued, Subscribed and Paidup Share Capital Asat 31st-03-2021 Asat31st-03-2020
No. of Shares No.of Shares

Balance atthe beginning of the year 5,71,03,055 5,71,03,055
Balance atthe end of the year 5,71,03,055 5,71,03,055

b Terms/rightsattached to equity shares:
The Company has one class of share capital, i.e., equity shares having face value of Rs. 5/- per share. Each holder of
equity share is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to
receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their
shareholding.

¢ Details of shareholders holding more than 5 % shares in the Company:

Particulars % Asat % Asat
31st-March-2021 31st-March-2020
No. of Shares No. of Shares

Mr.Rameshchandra Mansukhani 24.09 1,37,54,992 24.09 1,37,54,992
Mr. Nikhil Mansukhani 6.28 35,86,285 6.11 34,91,285
Man Finance Private Limited 5.68 32,43,476 5.49 31,32,834

Money received against share warrants

Asat Asat
31st-March-2021 31st-March-2020

25% upfront payment 487.50
Total 487.50 -

Money received agianst Share Warrants represents amounts received towards warrants which entitles the
warrant holders the option to apply for and be allotted equivalent number of equity shares of the face value of
Rs.5/each.

During the current financial year,the Company has issued to its Promoters Group 3,000,000 warrants at a price of
Rs. 65/- each entitling them for subscription of equivalent number of Equity Shares of Rs. 5/- each (including
premium of Rs. 60/- each Share) under Regulation 28(1) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. The holder of the
warrants would need to exercise the option to subscribe to equity shares before the expiry of 18 months from the
date of allotment made on 9th November,2020 upon payment of the balance 75% of the consideration of
warrants.

e The Company, in the previous five years, has not allotted any Bonus Shares, fully paid up Shares pursuant to
contract(s) without payment being received in cash and has not bought back any Shares.
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18B. Other Equity

(X In Lakhs)

Particulars Reserves and Surplus Foreign Money
Securities General Retained currency received

Premium Reserve Earnings transalation againstshare
Reserve reserves warrants *

Balanceasat 1st April, 2019 9,433.32 9,733.52 |47,867.01

Profit/(Loss) fortheyear 5,550.26
Other comprehensive gains/ (loss) for the year -
- Remeasurements gains/ (loss) on defined
benefitplans 93.49
- Foreign currency translation differences -
- Deferred Tax (19.57)
Dividend -
Dividend on Equity Shares (1,427.57)
Corporate Dividend Distribution Tax -1 (293.44)
Transferto General Reserve 539.80| (539.80)
Transitionimpactof Ind-AS 116 - (69.90)

67,347.86
5,550.26
93.49
556.80
23.53

(1,427.57)
(293.44)

(69.90)

Balanceasat31stMarch, 2020 9,433.32 | 10,273.32|51,160.47

71,781.02

Profit/(Loss) fortheyear 10,084.71
Other comprehensiveincome/ (loss) for the
year -
- Remeasurements gains/ (loss) on defined
benefitplans 6.10

- Foreign currency translation differences - (262.38) (262.38)

- Deferred Tax (1.53)
Dividend on Equity Shares (1,142.06)
Transferto General Reserve 1,008.47 | (1,008.47)
Adjustment of IncomeTax (earlier year) -1 (320.79)
Issue of share warrants -

10,084.71

6.10

(1.53)
- (1,142.06)
- (320.79)
487.50

Balanceasat31st March,2021 9,433.32 | 11,281.79|58,778.43 651.53 80,632.57

(% In Lakhs)

Asat Asat
31st-March-2021 31st-March-2020

19 Non-CurrentFinancialLiabilities-Borrowings

Securedloans
Termloansfrombanks
Foreign currency loan
Rupeeloan

Total

Non Current Borrowings
Foreign currencyloan
Rupeeloan

Total

Current Borrowings

Current maturities of long term borrowing (refer note 28)
Foreign currencyloan

Rupeeloan

Total

375.25 5,301.13

284.63 69.17
659.88 5,370.30

- 1,522.08
203.13 11.25

203.13 1,533.33

375.25 3,779.05
81.50 57.92

456.75 3,836.99
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(% In Lakhs)

Asat Asat
31st-March-2021 31st-March-2020

(a) Secured term loans from banks:
FCNR(B) Loan from State Bank of India amounting to Rs.375.25 lakhs is secured primarily against 1st pari-passu
charge on Company's entire Property, Plant & Equipmentand 2nd charge on current assets.
Repayment Schedule
Rate of interest Repayment Schedule
2021-22 Total
6 Monthslibor +5.00% 375.25 375.25

Car Loan from Kotak Mahindra Prime Limited balance amounting to Rs. 125.00 Lakhs (Previous year March 31,
2020 Rs.47.82 Lakhs)issecured against the motor car.
Repayment Schedule of Car Loan
Rate of interest Repayment Schedule
2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 Total
9.5% perannum 38.01 41.38 45,61 125.00

Car Loan from Axis Bank balance amounting to Rs. 12.32 lakhs (Previous year March 31, 2020 Rs.21.35 Lakhs) is
secured against the motorcar.
Repayment Schedule of Car Loan
Rate of interest Repayment Schedule
2021-22 2022-23 Total
8.52% perannum 9.82 2.50 12.32

Car Loan from HDFC Bank balance amounting toRs. 147.31 lakhs (Previous year March 31,2020 Rs. NIL) is secured
againstthe motorcar.

Repayment Schedule of CarLoan

Rate of interest Repayment Schedule

2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 Total
7.40% perannum 33.66 36.24 39.01 38.40 147.31

Non Current Financial Liabilities-Trade Payables
Others
Total

Non Current Financial Liabilities - Lease Liabilities

Lease liabilities 1,169.50 1,534.41
Less:Current portion (refer note 27) (409.42) (360.58)

Total 760.08 1,173.82

Non-CurrentProvisons
Employee benefits

Total
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(Z In Lakhs)

23 Taxation

The major components of income taxitems charged or credited directly to the profit orloss during the year:
Currentincometax:
CurrentIncometax charge 3,701.55 2,259.43

Deferred tax expense/ (benefit):
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences
(continuing operations) (117.06) (1,284.09)

Total taxexpense 3,584.48 975.34

IncomeTaxexpense

Reconciliation

Profit before income tax 13,647.04 6,525.60
Taxable Incometaxrate in Indiaapplicable to Company 25.168% 25.168%
Tax Amount 3,434.69 1,642.36
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (Taxable)

in calculating taxableincome 262.37 617.07
Income not considered for tax purpose (563.53) (165.05)
Expense notallowed for tax purpose 4,981.02 2,616.85
Additional allowances for tax purpose (3,375.01) -
Additional allowances for capital gain 26.16 -
Tax paid atlowerrate 4.49 -

Income tax expense charged to the statement of profitand loss 3,701.55 2,259.43

Deferred tax relates to the following:

Balance Sheet Recognisedin Recognisedin
statement of statement
profitorloss of OCl

510331 31103120 203031 201930 203031 201930
31/03/21 | 31/03/20
Depreciation (Other than Right-of-

Use Assets) 2,626.97 2,729.17 (102.19) (1,287.75) -
Gratuity Provision (41.61) (39.82) (3.32) 17.84 1.53 19.57
Ind AS Effect (40.06) (28.51) (11.55) (14.19) -
Foreign Currency translation Reserve (43.10)

2,54530 2,660.83 (117.06) (1,284.09) 1.53 (23.53)

(X In Lakhs)

As at As at
31st- March-2021 31st- March-2020

Reconciliation of deferred tax assets / (liabilities) net:

Opening balance as of 1st April 2,660.83 3,968.46
Tax income / (expense) during the period recognised in profit or loss (117.06) (1,284.09)
Tax income / (expense) during the period recognised in OCI 1.53 (23.53)
Closing balance 2,545.30 2,660.83
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Asat Asat
31st-March-2021 31st-March-2020

24 OtherNon-CurrentLiabilities
Others 364.53 364.53
Total 364.53 364.53

CurrentFinancial Liabilities -Borrowings

Secured loans

Working capital demand loan from banks

Foreign currency loan 12,623.17 -
Rupeeloan 15,102.71 22,478.32

Total 27,725.88 22,478.32

Working Capital facilities by banker's are secured by first pari passu charge on entire current assets and second
pari passu charges on theimmovable properties of the Company.

CurrentFinancial Liabilities-Trade Payables

Dues of micro and small enterprises 821.58 468.53

Dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises

Unsecured 5,785.87 4,801.03

Secured 45,149.41 50,858.39
50,935.28 55,659.42

Total 51,756.86 56,127.94

Refer Note 51 for due to supplier registered under MSME Act.

Current Financial Liabilities - Lease Liabilities

Leaseliabilities

Total

Current-Other Financial Liabilities

Financial Liabilities atamortised cost:

Current maturities of long-term debt from bank (refer note 19)

Foreign currency Loan 375.25 3,779.05

Rupeeloan 81.50 57.92

456.75 3,836.99

Interestaccrued butnotdue 210.62 688.28

Interestaccruedand due 49.17 131.30

Outstanding expenses 1,968.95 1,400.53

Unpaid dividend 521.42 515.15

Total 3,206.91 6,572.24
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(% In Lakhs)

Asat Asat
31st-March-2021 31st-March-2020

29 OtherCurrentlLiabilities
Advances from customers
Other payables:

Statutory dues

Others

Total

Short-Term Provisions
Employee benefits

Total

Tax Assets/Liabilities (Net)

Current tax liabilities

Total

32 RevenueFromOperations
Sale of products
Sale of services
Otheroperatingincome
Total
Otherincome
Interestincome*
Dividendincome
Gainonsale of investments
Foreign exchange gain/(loss)
Others
Total
*includesincome fromrelated parties (Refer note 44)
Cost Of Materials Consumed
Openingstock
Add:Purchases
Less: Closing stock

Total

6,274.40 14,605.22

169.69 97.77
= 650.61

6,444.09 15,353.60

965.40 934.43

965.40 934.43

YearEnded YearEnded
31st-March-2021 31st-March-2020

2,05,005.87 1,71,222.53
298.84 378.54
2,714.96 4,326.80

2,08,019.67 1,75,927.86

428.23 730.59
0.12 =
118.36 =
1,635.57 (41.02)
893.52 965.79

3,075.79 1,655.37

28,666.84 13,594.60
1,17,352.24 1,31,713.65
17,750.11 28,666.84

1,28,268.97 1,16,641.40
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YearEnded YearEnded
31st-March-2021 31st-March-2020
35 Purchases Of Stock-In-Trade
Purchases of stock-in-trade 18,142.52 10,033.03
Total 18,142.52 10,033.03

ChangesInInventories Of Finished Goods, Work-In-Progress
And Stock-In-Trade

Closing stock:

Finished goods 7,311.41 4,643.34
Work-in-progress 4,208.11 881.78

Total 11,519.53 5,525.12
Opening stock:

Finished goods 4,643.34 1,157.11
Work-in-progress 881.78 4,007.17
Total 5,525.12 5,164.28

Total Changesin Inventories of Finished Goods,

Workin Progress (5,994.41) (360.83)

Employee Benefits Expense
Salaries, wagesand bonus 4,904.14 4,994.97

Contribution to providentfund and other funds 232.96 299.82
Staff welfare expenses 351.75 297.24

Total 5,488.85 5,592.03
Finance Costs

Interest onloans 3,362.66 4,425.07
Interest on lease liabilities 160.07 128.93
Interest on others 49.17 70.01
Bank charges/loan processing fees 1,702.38 1,818.01
Total 5,274.28 6,442.01
Depreciation Expenses

Depreciation:

Property, plantand equipments 4,241.42 4,977.23
Right-of-use assets 396.70 254.89

Total 4,638.12 5,232.12
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(% In Lakhs)

YearEnded YearEnded
31st-March-2021 31st-March-2020
40 OtherExpenses

Manufacturing Expenses

Consumption of stores and packing materials 4,279.86 3,576.19
Repairs to plantand machinery 194.36 166.95
Power expense 3,136.44 2,621.24
Jobwork charges 166.84 1,145.23
Labourcharges 2,409.01 2,104.00
Others 529.39 431.86

10,715.90 10,045.46

Selling and Distribution Expenses

Commissiononsales 4,051.65 1,313.72
Freightand forwarding charges 16,295.13 10,754.93
Bad debts 6,979.34 893.28
Allowance for expected creditloss 213.81 -
Others* 1,620.17 1,950.04

29,160.11 14,911.96

Administrative expenses

Insurance 166.37 220.64
Professional fees * 830.63 958.03
Rentalsincluding leaserentals * 12.83 12.58
Repairs to other 85.26 80.27
Repairs to building 31.94 27.10
Rates and taxes 22.25 34.26
Expenditureincurred for CSR (note No 52) 176.73 103.63
Payment to auditor:

-Statutory audit Fees 18.41 21.25
-Otherservices 3.63 2.92
Others 383.88 809.35

1,731.93 2,270.03
Total 41,607.94 27,227.45
*includes payment torelated parties (Refer note 44)

Leases

Accounting policy

Companyasalessee

The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for Office Building and Plant & Machinery. The
Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, atinception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, alease
if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the
Company assesses whether : (i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset (ii) the Company has
substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and (iii) the
Company hastherighttodirect the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use (ROU) asset and a
corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of 12
months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low-value leases, the Company
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recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

The Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
Commencement date of the lease. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease,
if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company uses incremental
borrowing rate. For leases with reasonably similar characteristics, the Company, on a lease by lease basis, may
adopt either the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease or the incremental borrowing rate for the
portfolioasawhole.

The lease payments shall include fixed payments, variable lease payments, residual value guarantees, exercise
price of a purchase option where the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option and payments of
penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease.
The lease liability is subsequently remeasured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease
liability, reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made and remeasuring the carrying amount
to reflect any reassessment or lease modifications or to reflect revised in-substance fixed lease payments. The
company recognises the amount of the re-measurement of lease liability due to modification as an adjustment to
the right-of-use asset and statement of profit and loss depending upon the nature of modification. Where the
carryingamount of the right-of-use assetis reduced to zero and there is a further reduction in the measurement of
the lease liability, the Company recognises any remaining amount of the re-measurement in statement of profit
and loss.

Certain lease arrangementsincludes the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term.
ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options whenitis reasonably certain that they will be exercised.

The ROU assets areinitially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for
any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any
lease incentives.They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
ROU assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease
term and useful life of the underlying asset. ROU assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of
impairment testing, the recoverableamount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to selland the value-in-use) is
determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely
independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash
Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The
lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicitin the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the
incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a
corresponding adjustment to the related ROU asset if the Company changes its assessment of whether it will
exercise an extension or a termination option.

Lease liability and ROU assets have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been
classified as financing cash flows.

The weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities as at April 1,2020is 11.68%

The aggregate depreciation expense on ROU assets is included under depreciation and amortization expense in
the Statement of Profitand Loss.

The break-up of currentand non-current lease liabilities is as follows
(X In Lakhs)

As at As at
31st- March-2021 31st- March-2020

Currentlease liabilities 409.42 360.58
Non-currentlease liabilities 760.08 1,173.82
Total 1,169.49 1,534.41

The details of the contractual maturities of lease liabilities as at March 31, 2021 on an undiscounted basis
areasfollows:

Lessthanoneyear 525.06 526.99
Onetofiveyears 842.29 1,369.03
Total 1,367.35 1,896.02
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(% In Lakhs)

Asat Asat
31st-March-2021 31st-March-2020

42 ContingentLiabilities & Legal Cases
a ContingentLiabilities: (to the extent not provided for)

(a) Claims againstthe company not acknowledged as debts:

Guarantees/ Letter of Credit outstanding 38,373.85 92,698.40
(b) Entry Tax/ Sales Tax/VAT liability matters A 366.77 366.77
(c) Excise duty/Customs duty/ Service tax liability /

Goods &ServiceTax matters A 2,267.11 2,262.15
(d) Income tax matters*» 2,438.07 2,438.07
Legal Cases

-Midcontinentexpress pipeline LLC, USA 778.64 778.64
-Sebi 25.00 25.00

*includes matters amounting to Rs. 2014.37 lakhs, the outcome of the first level of appeal proceedings is in favour
ofthe company, which hasbeen challanged by the IncomeTax Department atthe Hon'ble Tribunal level.

AThe management including its tax advisors expect that its position will likely be upheld on ultimate resolution
and will not have material adverse effect on the Company's financial position and result of operation.

b Arbitration & Legal Cases

Arbitration & legal cases pending before the various forum
for settlement /recovery of outstanding dues 13,324.46 13,580.33

The management, based on the legal opinion received and considering various force majeure issues involved, is
of the view that the chances of recovery of these amounts are very high and further viewed that pending
outcome these would not be any material impact on cash flows and profitability of the company. In view of the
same, Company has not made any provisions.

43 Remunerationto Directors
YearEnded YearEnded
31st-March-2021 31st-March-2020
Salaries and perquisite 1,049.43 946.77
Sitting fees 7.80 9.50

Total 1,057.23 956.27

44 Disclosures As Required By Indian Accounting Standard (Ind As) 24 Related Party Disclosures

ﬂ "Name of the Related Party / Asat

Country of Incorporation" 31st-March-2021 31st-March-2020
Subsidiaries:

1 Merino Shelters Private Limited - India 100% 100%

Key ManagementPersonnel:
Mr.Rameshchandra Mansukhani (Chairman)
Mr. Nikhil Mansukhani (Executive Director)
Mrs.Heena Kalantri (Director)

Relative of Key Managerial Personnel
Mrs .Deepa Mansukhani
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YearEnded
31st-March-2021

(% In Lakhs)
YearEnded
31st-March-2020

Enterprises controlled or significantly influenced by key management personnel or their relatives with whom

transaction have occurred

M Concepts Retail LLP

Limitless Contracting Private Limited

TMW Fintech PvtLtd (formerly known as"The Mobile Wallet Private Limited")
Man Finance Private Limited

Thefollowing transactions were carried out with therelated partiesin the ordinary course of business:

Subsidiary Company

Merino Shelters Private Limited
Loan given (Net) (9.51)
Interestincome -

Enterprises over which Key Managerial Personnel are able to Exercise Significant Influence

M Concepts Retail LLP

Professional fees 36.00
Man Finance Private Limited

Money received towards share warrants 487.50
Limitless Contracting Private Limited

Loan given (Net)

Interestincome

TMW Fintech PvtLtd (formerly known as "The Mobile Wallet

Private Limited")

Sundry purchases

3 KeyManagerial Personnel and Relative of Key Managerial Personnel
Salaryand bonus 1,049.43
Sitting Fees 240
Rental charges 265.94
Interestincome on rental deposit/ 12.11
Details of Outstanding Balance to Related Parties

As at
31st- March-2021

1 Subsidiary Company

Merino Shelters Private Limited

Investmentin equity shares 10,229.83
Loan given 846.59

2 KeyManagerial Personnel and Relative of Key Managerial
Personnel Lease deposit/ 101.09

A ThemovementisduetoIND AS Effect
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(% In Lakhs)

YearEnded YearEnded
31st-March-2021 31st-March-2020
45 EarningsPerShare
Earnings Per Share has been computed asunder:
Profit/(Loss) forthe year 10,084.71 5,550.27
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 5,71,03,055 5,71,03,055
Basic earning per share (Face value of Rs 5/ per share) 17.66 9.72
Diluted earning per share (Face value of Rs 5/ per share) * 16.78 9.72
* Assuming full conversion of 30,00,000 convertible warrants issued on preferential basis as per SEBI (LODR)
Regulation, 2015

46 Capital Management
Risk Management
The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximise shareholder value. The Company

monitors capital using debt-equity ratio, which is total debt divided by total capital.

For the purposes of the Company’s capital management, the Company considers the following components of its
balance sheetto be managed capital.

Total equity as shown in the balance sheet includes general reserve, retained earnings, share capital, security
premium.Total debtincludes current debt plus non-currentdebt.

(X In Lakhs)

As at As at
31st- March-2021 31st- March-2020

Total debt 28,385.76 27,848.63
Total equity 83,487.72 74,636.17
Debt-equity ratio 0.34 0.37

47 FairValue Measurement

31st-March-2021 31st-March-2020
FVTPL Amortised FVTPL Amortised
cost cost

Financial assets
Investments:
Equityinstruments = =
Tradereceivables 68,113.82 50,112.46
Loans 961.38 1,140.16
Security Deposit 79.44 80.02
Lease Deposit 24841 27331
Bank Deposit maturing overone Year 130.97 1,205.60
Cashandbankbalances 10,216.38 22,160.11
Otherfinancial assets 505.36 832.89
Total Financial assets 80,255.76 d 75,804.56

Financial liabilities

Borrowings 27,929.01 24,011.64
Trade payables 51,841.30 56,138.94
Otherliabilities 3,206.91 6,572.24
Lease Liabilities 1,169.49 1,534.41
Total financial liabilities 84,146.72 88,257.24
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a) Fairvaluehierarchy
This section explains the judgement and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial
instruments that are (a) recognised and measured at fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost and for which
fair values are disclosed in the Financial Statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs
used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its financial instruments into the three levels
prescribed under the accounting standard. An explanation of each level follows underneath the table.

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value - recurring fair value measurements at

March 31,2021
____Note | Levell | Level2 | Level3 |  Total |

Financial assets

Financial investmentsat FVTPL:

Quoted Equity shares & Mutual Fund 11 62.55 - 62.55
Unquoted Equity Shares 1 - 0.01 0.01

Totalfinancial assets 62.55 0.01 - 62.57

Financial assets and liabilities which are measured at amortised cost for which fair values are disclosed at

March 31,2021
___Notes | Levell | Level2 | Level3 |  Total |
Financial assets

Tradereceivables 7&12 68,113.82 68,113.82
Loans 15 961.38 961.38
Security Deposit 8 79.44 79.44
Lease Deposit 8 248.41 248.41
Bank Deposit maturing over one Year 8 130.97 130.97
Cashand bankbalances 10,216.38 10,216.38
Otherfinancial assets 16 505.36 505.36

Total financial assets 80,255.75 80,255.75

Financial liabilities

Borrowings

Non Current 203.13 203.13
Current 27,725.88 27,725.88
Trade payables

Non Current 84.44 84.44
Current 51,756.86 51,756.86
Otherliabilities 3,206.91 3,206.91
Lease Liabilities 1,169.49 1,169.49

Total financial liabilities 84,146.72 84,146.72

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value - recurring fair value measurements at

March 31,2020
___Notes | Levell | Level2 | Level3 |  Total |

Financial assets

Financialinvestmentsat FVTPL:

Quoted Equity shares & Mutual Fund 11 2.06 2.06
Unquoted Equity Shares 11 - . 0.01

Total financial assets 2.06 . 2.07

152 | Man Industries (India) Ltd.




v
Corporate Overview

v v
Statutory Reports Financial Statement

Notes on Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2021.

iv)
March 31,2020

Financial assets and liabilities which are measured atamortised costfor which fair values are disclosed at

____Note | levell | _level2 | __level3 | _Total

Financial assets

Tradereceivables 7&12
Loans 15
Security Deposit 8
Lease Deposit 8
Bank Deposit maturing over one Year 8
Cashandbankbalances

Otherfinancial assets 16

50,112.46
1,140.16
80.02
273.31
1,205.60
22,160.11
832.89

50,112.46
1,140.16
80.02
273.31
1,205.60
22,160.11
832.89

Total financial assets

75,804.56 75,804.56

Financial liabilities
Borrowings

Non Current
Current

Trade payables

Non Current
Current
Otherliabilities
Lease Liabilities

1,533.33
22,478.32

1,533.33
22,478.32

11.00
56,127.94
6,572.24
1,534.41

11.00
56,127.94
6,572.24
1,534.41

Total financial liabilities

88,257.24  88,257.24

There were no transfers between anylevels during the year.

Level 1:

Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes listed equity
instruments and mutual funds that have a quoted price. The fair value of all equity instruments which are traded in
the stock exchangesis valued using the closing price as at the reporting period. The mutual funds are valued using
the closing netassets value (NAV)

Level 2:

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example over-the-counter
derivatives) is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and
rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are
observable, theinstrumentisincludedinlevel 2.

Level 3:

If one or more of the significantinputsis not based on observable market data, the instrumentisincludedinlevel 3

Valuation technique used to determinefairvalue

Speaﬁc valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:
the use of quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similarinstruments

ii) thefairvalue of interest rate swaps is calculated as the present value of the estimated future cash flows based
onobservableyield curves.
the fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts are determined using forward exchange rates at the
Balance Sheet date
thefair value of foreign currency option contracts is determined using the Black Scholes valuation model.
thefair value of the remaining financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow analysis.
Allof the resulting fair value estimates areincluded inlevel 1and 2.

Valuation processes

The finance department of the Company includes a team that performs the valuations of financial assets and
liabilities required for financial reporting purposes, including level 3 fair values. This team reports directly to the
ChiefFinancial Officer (CFO).
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d) Fairvalueoffinancial assets and liabilities measured atamortised cost

Particulars AsatMarch 31,2021 AsatMarch31,2020
Carrying Carrying
amount amount

Financial assets:

Tradereceivables 68,113.82 68,113.82 50,112.46 50,112.46
Loans 961.38 961.38 1,140.16 1,140.16
Security Deposit 79.44 79.44 80.02 80.02
Lease Deposit 248.41 248.41 273.31 273.31
Bank Deposit maturing overone Year 130.97 130.97 1,205.60 1,205.60
Cashandbankbalances 10,216.38 10,216.38 22,160.11 22,160.11
Otherfinancial assets 505.36 505.36 832.89 832.89
Totalfinancial assets 80,255.76  80,255.76  75,804.56  75,804.56

Financial liabilities

Borrowings 27,929.01 27,929.01 24,011.64 24,011.64
Trade payables 51,841.30 51,841.30 56,138.94 56,138.94
Other liabilities 3,206.91 3,206.91 6,572.24 6,572.24
Lease Liabilities 1,169.49 1,169.49 1,534.41 1,534.41
Total financial liabilities 84,146.72 84,146.72 88,257.24 88,257.24

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, trade payables, other receivables, short-term security deposits, bank
deposits with more than 12 months maturity, capital creditors and cash and cash equivalents including bank
balances other than cash and cash equivalents are considered to be the same as their fair values due to the current
and short-term nature of such balances.

Thefair values of non-current borrowings are based on discounted cash flows using a current borrowing rate.
Forfinancial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value, the carrying amounts are equal to the fair values.

Financial Risk Management

Risk Management is an integral part of the business practices of the Group. The framework of Risk Management
concentrates on formalising a system to deal with the most relevant risks, building on existing Management
practices, knowledge and structures. The Group has developed and implemented a comprehensive Risk
Management System to ensure that risks to the continued existence of the Group as a going concern and to its
growth are identified and remedied on a timely basis. While defining and developing the formalised Risk
Management System, leading standards and practices have been considered. The Risk Management System is
relevantto business reality, pragmatic and simple and involves the following:

Risk identification and definition - Focused on identifying relevant risks, creating, updating clear definitions to
ensure undisputed understanding along with details of the underlying root causes contributing factors.

Risk classification - Focused on understanding the various impacts of risks and the level of influence on its root
causes. This involves identifying various processes generating the root causes and clear understanding of risk
interrelationships.

Risk assessment and prioritisation — Focused on determining risk priority and risk ownership for critical risks. This
involves assessment of the various impacts taking into consideration risk appetite and existing mitigation
controls.

Risk mitigation — Focused on addressing critical risks to restrict their impact(s) to an acceptable level (within the
definedrisk appetite). Thisinvolves a clear definition of actions, responsibilities and milestones.

Risk reporting and monitoring - Focused on providing to the Board and the Audit Committee periodic
information onrisk profile evolution and mitigation plans.

154 | Man Industries (India) Ltd.




v v v
Corporate Overview Statutory Reports Financial Statement

Notes on Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2021.

a) Managementofliquidityrisk
The Group's principal sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents, borrowings and the cash flow that is
generated from operations. The Company believes that current cash and cash equivalents, tied up borrowing
lines and cash flow that is generated from operations is sufficient to meet requirements. Accordingly, liquidity risk
is perceivedto be low.
The following table shows the maturity analysis of the Group's financial liabilities based on contractually agreed
undiscounted cash flows as at the Balance sheet date:

N
amount | 12months | 12months

AsatMarch31,2021
Borrowings
Non-current 203.13 -
Current 27,725.88 27,725.88
Trade payables
Non-current 84.44 - 84.44 84.44
Current 51,756.86 51,756.86 - 51,756.86
Otherliabilities 3,206.91 3,206.91 - 3,206.91
Lease Liabilities
Non-current 760.08 -
Current 409.42 409.42

203.13 203.13
- 27,725.88

760.08 760.08
- 409.42

AsatMarch 31,2020

Borrowings

Non-current 1,533.33 - 1,533.33 1,533.33
Current 22,478.32 22,478.32 - 22,478.32
Trade payables

Non-current 11.00 - 11.00 11.00
Current 56,127.94 56,127.94 - 56,127.94
Other liabilities 6,572.24 6,572.24 - 6,572.24
Lease Liabilities

Non-current 1,173.82 - 1,173.82 1,173.82
Current 360.58 360.58 - 360.58

Management of marketrisk

The Group's size and operations result in it being exposed to the following market risks that arise from its use of
financial instruments:

Pricerisk,
Interestraterisk; and
Foreign exchangerisk

The above risks may affect the Group’s income and expenses, or the value of its financial instruments. The

objective of the Group’s Management of market risk is to maintain this risk within acceptable parameters, while
optimising returns.The Group's exposure to,and Management of, these risks is explained below:
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Potential impact of risk
1. PriceRisk

The Group is mainly exposed to the price
risk due to its investments in equity
instruments. The price risk arises due to
uncertainties about the future market
values of these investments.

Equity price risk is related to the change
in market reference price of the
investmentsin equity securities.

In general, these securities are not held
for trading purposes. These investments
are subject to changes in the market
price of securities. The fair value of
quoted equity, mutual fund and bond
instruments classified as fair value
through Profit and Loss account as at
March 31, 2021 is Rs. 62.56 lakhs (March
31,2020:Rs.2.06 lakhs).

2. Interestraterisk

Financial Liabilities:

The Group is mainly exposed to interest
rate risk due to its variable interest rate
borrowings. The interest rate risk arises
due to uncertainties about the future
market interestrate of these borrowings.

As at March 31, 2021, the exposure to
interest rate risk due to variable interest
rate borrowings amounted to Rs.
28,385.76 lakhs (March 31, 2020: Rs.
28,606.96 lakhs)

The Group has international operations
and is exposed to foreign exchange risk
arising from foreign currency
transactions. Foreign exchangerisk arises
from future commercial transactions and
recognised Financial assets and liabilities
denominated in a currency thatis not the
Group’s functional currency (INR). The
risk also includes highly probable foreign
currency cash flows. The objective of the
cash flow hedges is to minimise the
volatility of the INR cash flows of highly
probable forecast transactions.

Management policy

In order to manage its price risk arising
from investments in equity instruments,
the Group maintains its portfolio in
accordance with the framework set by
the RiskManagementpolicies.

Any new investment or divestment must
be approved by the Board of Directors,
Chief Financial Officer and Risk
Management Committee.

Financial Liabilities:

In order to manage its interest rate risk
arising from variable interest rate
borrowings, the Group uses Interest rate
swaps to hedge its exposure to future
market interest rates whenever
appropriate.

The hedging activity is undertaken in
accordance with the framework set by
the Risk Management Committee and
supported by the Treasury department.

3. ForeignExchangerisk

The Group has exposure arising out of
export, import, loans and other
transactions other than Group's
functional currency. The Group hedges
its foreign exchange risk using foreign
exchange forward contracts and
currency options after considering the
natural hedge. The same is within the
guidelines laid down by Group's risk
Management policy.

Sensitivity to risk

As an estimation of the approximate
impact of price risk, with respect to
investments in equity instruments, the
Group has calculated the impact as
follows:

For equity instruments, a 5% increase in
prices would have led to approximately
an additional Rs. 3.13 lakhs gain in profit
and loss account (2019-20 Rs. 0.10 lakhs).
A 5% decrease in prices would have led to
anequal but opposite effect.

Financial Liabilities:

As an estimation of the approximate
impact of the interest rate risk, with
respect to financial instruments, the
Group has calculated the impact of a 50
bps change in interest rates. A 50 bps
decrease in interest rates would have led
to approximately an additional Rs. 141.93
lakhs (2019-20: Rs. 143.03 lakhs) gain in
profit and loss account. A 50 bps increase
in interest rates would have led to an
equal butopposite effect.

As an estimation of the approximate
impact of the foreign exchange rate risk,
with respect to Financial Statements, the
Group has calculated the impact ofa 2%
increase in the spot price as on the
reporting date would have led to an
increase in additional Rs. 311.61 lakhs
(2019-20: Rs.811.84 lakhs)as loss in Profit
and Loss account. A 2% decrease would
have led to an increase an equal but
opposite effect
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Notes on Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2021.

Foreign currencyrisk exposure:
The Company's exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period expressedin Rs. Lakhs, are as follows:

Particulars 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
USsD KwWD EURO AED OMR uUsD EURO AED
Financial assets

Tradereceivables 12,684.11 31,203.90( 14,789.33 -
Others 0.73 2,986.95 641.25 3,091.24
Less:
Foreign exchange forward contracts| 2,287.85 13,946.70 -
Netexposure toforeign currency
risk (assets) 10,396.99 2,986.95(31,203.90| 1,483.88 3,091.24

Financial liabilities

Advances received from customer 5,019.22 -
Borrowings 5,301.13 -
Trade payables 729.69 1,012.15| 26,605.26 41.45
Others -
Less:

Hedged through derivatives
(includes hedges for highly
probabletransactions upto
next 12 months)
Foreignexchange forward contracts | 2,199.41
Netexposure toforeign currency
risk (liabilities) 48,515.60 5,748.91 1,012.15(31,906.38 8,318.37

8,276.92

1) Management of creditrisk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counter-party fails to meet its contractual
obligations.

Tradereceivables

Concentrations of credit risk with respect to trade receivables are limited, due to the Company’s customer base
beinglarge, diverse and across sectors and countries. All trade receivables are reviewed and assessed for defaulton a
quarterly basis.

Our historical experience of collecting receivables is supported by low level of past default and hence the credit risk
is perceived to be low.

Other financial assets

The Group maintains exposure in cash and cash equivalents, term deposits with banks, and loans to subsidiary
companies. Individual risk limits are set for each counter-party based on financial position, credit rating and past
experience. Credit limits and concentration of exposures are actively monitored by the Treasury department of the
Group.

Impact of hedging activities
The Group does not follow the hedge accounting in view of natural hedge.
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Notes on Consolidated Financial Statements for the yearended 31st March 2021.
(% In Lakhs)

Year Ended Year Ended
31st-March-2021 31st- March-2020
50 DisclosuresAsRequiredByIndian Accounting Standard (Ind As) 19 Employee Benefits
a  Defined contribution plans: Amount of Rs.186.77 Lakhs (Previous yearRs. 237.84 Lakhs) is recognised as an
expense andincluded in Employee benefits expense as under the following defined contribution plans:
Benefits (Contribution to):
Providentfund 185.69 236.73
Employee stateinsurance scheme 0.85 0.89
Labour welfare scheme 0.22 0.23
Total 186.77 237.84

b Definedbenefitplans:

Gratuity:

The company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible employees. The Gratuity
Plan provides a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of
employment, of an amount equivalentto 15 days' salary for each completed year of service. Vesting occurs upon
completion of five continuous years of service in accordance with Indian law.

The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expenses recognised in the statement of profit
and loss and the funded status and amounts recognised in the balance sheet: (% In Lakhs)

As at As at
31st- March-2021 31st- March-2020

I Changeinpresentvalue of defined benefit obligation
during theyear
PresentValue of defined benefit obligation at the beginning of
theyear
Interest cost
Currentservice cost
Pastservice cost =
Liability transfer from other Group -
Liability transferred out/divestment -
Benefits paid directly by employer -
Benefits paid (36.55) (42.73)
Actuarial changes arising from changesin demographic
assumptions - (0.06)
10 Actuarial changesarising from changes in financial assumptions (3.34) (79.92)
11 Actuarial changes arising from changes in experience
adjustments (2.27) (14.08)
12 Presentvalue of defined benefit obligation atthe end of the year 280.41 269.08

—_

WoONOTULTD~NWN

Changeinfairvalue of plan assets during the year

Fairvalue of plan assets at the beginning of the year 110.88 114.09
Interestincome 7.29 8.78
Contributions paid by the employer

Benefits paid from the fund (3.57) (11.42)
Assets transferred out / divestments

Return on planassets excludinginterestincome 0.49 (0.57)
Fairvalue of plan assets at the end of the year 115.09 110.88

NOoOubhwNn=

Netasset/(liability) recognised in the balance sheet

Presentvalue of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year (280.41) (269.08)
Fairvalue of plan assets at the end of the year 115.09 110.88
Amountrecognisedinthe balance sheet (165.32) (158.20)
Net (liability) / asset- current (37.08) (41.11)
Net (liability) / asset- non-current (128.25) (117.09)
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Notes on Consolidated Financial Statements for the yearended 31st March 2021.
(% In Lakhs)

Asat Asat
31st-March-2021 31st-March-2020

IV Expensesrecognised inthe statement of profitand loss for

theyear
1 Currentservice cost 37.39 44.96
2 Interestcoston benefitobligation (net) 8.81 17.02
3 Totalexpensesincludedin employee benefits expense 46.20 61.98

Recognisedin other comprehensiveincomefortheyear

Actuarial changes arising from changes in demographic

assumptions (0.06)
Actuarial changes arising from changes in financial assumptions (79.92)
Actuarial changes arising from changes in experience

adjustments (14.08)
Return on plan assets excludinginterestincome 0.57
Recognisedin other comprehensiveincome (93.49)

Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation

Withinthe next 12 months (nextannual reporting period) 35.15
Between 2and5years 64.86
Between6and 10years 92.34

Quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptionis as below:

Increase/(decrease) on present value of defined benefits obligation at the end of the year:

One percentage pointincrease in discountrate (20.38) (21.46)
One percentage point decrease in discountrate 28.14 24.87
One percentage pointincreaseinrate of salary Increase 29.19 25.93
One percentage point decrease inrate of salary Increase (21.63) (22.69)
Ten percentage pointincrease inemployee turnoverrate 1.68 (0.51)
Ten percentage point decrease in employee turnover rate 2.60 0.53

Sensitivity Analysis Method:
"Sensitivity analysis is performed by varying a single parameter while keeping all the other parameters
unchanged.

Sensitivity analysis fails to focus on the interrelationship between underlying parameters. Hence, the results may
vary if two or more variables are changed simultaneously.

The method used does not indicate anything about the likelihood of change in any parameter and the extent of
the changeifany.

Actuarial assumptions
Discountrate 6.45% 6.40%
Salary escalation 0% for next 0% for next
2yearsand 3yearsand
3%thereafter 3% thereafter
Mortality rate during employment Indian assured Indianassured
lives (2012-14) lives (2012-14)
Ultimate Ultimate
Rate of employee turnover 20%atlowerservie  20%atlower servie
reducingto 1%at reducingto 1%at
higher service higherservice
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Notes on Consolidated Financial Statements for the yearended 31st March 2021.
(% In Lakhs)

Asat Asat
31st-March-2021 31st-March-2020

51 a Disclosure requirement under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 ("MSMED
Act, 2006").

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each
accountingyear
Principal 821.58 468.53

Interest on principal outstanding 21.11 9.69

Theamount of interest paid by the buyerin terms of section 16,
along with theamount of the payment made to a supplier beyond
the appointed day during each accountingyear.
Theamountofinterest due and payable for the period of delay in
making payment (which has been paid but beyond the appointed
date during the year) but withoutadding interest under the act.

iv. Theamountofinterestaccrued and remaining unpaid atthe
end of each accounting year.
Theamount of furtherinterest remaining due and payable evenin
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are
actually paid to the small companies, for the purpose of
disallowance as deductible expenditure under section 23. 49.17 131.31

Disclosure of payable to vendors as defined under the “Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act,
2006"is based on the information available with the Company regarding the status of registration of such vendors
underthe said Act, as per the intimation received from them on requests made by the Company.

b Tradepayables/receivables are subjectto confirmation and reconciliation.
52 Details Of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Expenditure: (Z In Lakhs)
Year Ended Year Ended
31st-March-2021 31st- March-2020

Amountrequiredto be spentas perSection 135 of the Act 116.15 101.93
116.15 101.93

Amount spentduring the yearon:
(i) Construction/acquisition of an asset s =
On purpose other than (i) above 176.73 103.63

Total 176.73 103.63

53 TheCompanyishavingsingle segmenti.e."Steel Pipes".

54 The Company has considered the possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating to COVID-19 on the
carrying amounts of receivables, inventories, property, plant and equipment and investments. In developing the
assumptions relating to the possible future uncertainties in the global economic conditions, the Company has, as
at the date of approval of these standalone financials, used internal and external sources of information, including
economic forecasts and estimates from market sources, on the expected future performance of the Company. On
the basis of evaluation and current indicators of future economic conditions, the Company expects to recover the
carrying amounts of these assets and does not anticipate any impairment to these financial and non-financial
assets. However. the impact assessment of COVID-19 is a continuing process, given the uncertainties associated
with its nature and duration. The Company will continue to monitor any material changes to future economic
conditions.
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Notes on Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2021.

The Company is proposing to divest upto 100 % equity investment held in wholly owned subsidiary, Merino
Shelters Private Limited.

Expected credit loss represents an allowance for life time expected loss on the carrying value of trade receivables,
which has been recognised in accordance with simplified approach as permitted by IND-As 109 - "Financial
instruments"

The Financial Statements of Merino Shelters Private Limited, wholly owned Subsidiary of the company have not
been consolidated as required by Indian Accounting Standard (IND AS) 110 issued by Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

The Company, on approval of the Bombay High Court in March 2015, has given effect to the scheme of
arrangement for the merger / demerger between Man Industries (India) Limited (Company) and Man
Infraprojects Private Limited (MIPL), in the financial statement of Financial Year 2014-15. MIPL has made frivolous
claims on the company and also challenged the valuation of assets which had been already approved by the H'ble
Bombay High Court. In view of this, the Company has filed an Application for withdrawal of bogus claims and for
modification of scheme to provide for swapping of shares between two promoter groups, which is pending
hearing and disposal in the H'ble Bombay High Court. Pending adjudication of the same and pending full
implementation of the Scheme, Company continues to be 100% shareholder of MIPL. As the above matter stands
sub-judice, liability if any, thereon cannot be quantified.

Previous year's figures have been regrouped or reclassified to confirm to current year's presentation , wherever
considered necessary.

Asperthereportof the evendate

For MH Dalal & Associates For and behalf of Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants RCMansukhani Nikhil Mansukhani PKTandon RenuPJalan

Firmregistration number: 112449W Chairman Executive Director Director Director
DIN-00012033 DIN-02257522 DIN-00364652 DIN-08076758

DevangDalal HeenaKalantri NarendraS. Mairpady Ashok Gupta Jatin Shah
Partner Director Director ChiefFinancial Company Secretary
Membership No.: 109049 DIN-00149407 DIN-00536905 Officer

Place: Mumbai
Date: May31,2021
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FORM AOC-1

[Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of Section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014]

Statement containing salient features of the financial statements of Subsidiaries

(% in Lakhs)
Name of the Subsidiary Companies Man Overseas ManUSAIncA
Metals DMCC
Financial Yearended on 31-March-2021 31-March-2021
Share Capital 2,985.75 0.73
Reserve & Surplus 197.83 (3.76)
Total Liabilities 3,226.83 1.37
Total Assets 3,226.83 1.37
Investments -
Turnover 630.22
Profit before taxation 22.14
Provision for taxation -
Profit after taxation 22.14
Proposed dividend -
% of shareholding 100% 100%
Reporting Currency AED usD
Rupee Equivalentof 1 unit of foreign currency
asat31.03.2021 19.9050 73.1100

Note:

Financial Information in respect of Merino Shelters Private Limited (Merino) has not been given as
Financial Statement of Merino Shelters Private Limited as on 31st March 2021 has not been consolidated
dueto pending implementation of the Scheme of Demerger.

AFinancial Informationis based on Unaudited Results.

Forand behalf of Board of Directors

RCMansukhani PKTandon RenuP Jalan Narendra Mairpady
Chairman Director Director Director
(DIN:00012033) (DIN:00364652) (DIN:08076758) (DIN:00536905)

Nikhil Mansukhani HeenaKalantri Ashok Gupta Jatin Shah
Executive Director Director Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
(DIN:02257522) (DIN:00149407)

Place:Mumbai
Date:May 31,2021
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KYC FORM

To Date: __/I__ Il
Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd
C-101, 247 Park, L.B.S. Marg, Vikhroli (West), Mumbai - 400083 Folio No:

Unit : MAN INDUSTRIES (INDIA) LTD
No. of Shares:

Dear Sir Madam,

Name of the shareholder(s) PAN Bank details | Specimen | Email ID | Mobile No. | Nominee
(A) (B) Signature (D) (E) Details
(©) (F)

Registered Holder Required Required Required | Required | Required | Required
1st Joint Holder Required N.A. Required N.A. N.A. N.A.
2nd Joint Holder Required N.A. Required N.A. N.A. N.A.

3rd Joint Holder Required N.A. Required N.A. N.A. N.A.

N.A.—NotApplicable
We are forwarding herewith the required supporting documents by ticking in the appropriate checkbox below for all the
fields where the status is shown as 'Required' in the above table.
A. For registering PAN of the registered and/or joint shareholders (as applicable)
[] Registered shareholder [ Joint holder 1 1 Joint holder 2 1 Joint holder 3
(self-attested copy for all Shareholders attached)

. For registering Bank details of the registered shareholder
[J Aadhar/Passport/utility bill [] Original cancelled cheque leaf [] Bank Passbook/Bank Statement

. For registering the Specimen Signature of registered and/or joint shareholders (as applicable
] Affidavit [JBank Verification ~ []Original cancelled cheque leaf [[] Bank Passbook/Bank Statement
(for all Shareholders attached)

. For Updating the email id :

MobiteNo.L 1 L I [ 1 [ ]|

. For registering the nominee details by the registered shareholder
[J Form SH-13 (Nomination registration form attached)

Note:- Forresidents of Sikkim, instead of PAN provide Aadhar Card/Voter ID /Driving License/Passport or any other
identity proofissued by Govt.

I/We hereby state that the above-mentioned details are true and correct and we consent towards updating the particulars
based on the self-attested copies of the documents enclosed with this letter by affixing my/our signature(s) toiit.

Sign: Sign: Sign: Sign:
Registered holder Joint holder 1 Joint holder 2 Joint holder 3

Name & Address of the Registered Shareholder

Name : Mr/Ms/Mrs

Address:

City




Instruction for updating the necessary KYC details of the shareholders holding shares in physical form

SEBI, vide its Circular No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/DOP1/CIR/P/2018/73 dated 20" April 2018 & BSE, vide its Circular No.
LIST/COMP/15/2018-19 dated 5" July 2018 have directed all the listed companies to record the PAN and Bank account
details of all their shareholders and advise them to dematerialise their physical securities.

Accordingly, your Company has initiated steps for registering the PAN details (including joint holders, if any) and the BANK
ACCOUNT details of all the registered shareholders.

We would also like to register other KYC details such as specimen signature, email id, mobile number, and nomination. We
request you to kindly fill in the details in the KYC form and forward the same along with all the supporting documents based on
requirements considering the below mentioned points. Single copy of supporting document is sufficient for updating multiple
subjects.

A.

For updating PAN of the registered and/or joint shareholders :
Self- attested legible copy of PAN card (exempted for Shareholders from Sikkim)

For updating Bank Account details of the registered shareholder:

. In cases wherein the original cancelled cheque leaf has the shareholder's name printed

For address proof: Self- attested legible copy of Aadhaar/passport/utility bill (not older than 3 months)
Original cancelled cheque leaf containing the Bank A/c No., Bank Name, type of account, IFSC Code, MICR Code and
the name of the shareholder printed on the cheque leaf.

OR

2. Incases wherein the cancelled cheque leaf does NOT contain the shareholder's name printed on it

Foraddress proof: Self- attested legible copy of Aadhaar/passport/utility bill (not older than 3 months).

Original cancelled cheque leaf containing the details, Bank A/c No., Bank Name, type of account, IFSC Code, MICR
Code.

Legible copy of the bank passbook / bank statement specifying the KYC details of the registered shareholder such as
the name, address, bank account number etc. duly attested by the officer of the same bank with his signature, name,
employee code, designation, bank seal & address stamp, phone no. and date of attestation.

For updating the Specimen signatures of the registered and/or joint shareholders:

Affidavit duly notarised on non-judicial stamp paper of Rs. 100/- (format available on RTA's website
www.linkintime.co.in under Resources-Download-General-Change of Signature- Affidavit for change of signature).
Banker's verification (format available on RTA's website www.linkintime.co.in under Resources-Download-General-
Change of Signature format for signature verification)

Original cancelled cheque containing the details, Bank A/c No., Bank Name, type of account, IFSC Code, MICR Code
and the name of the shareholder printed on the cheque leaf.

If the cancelled cheque leaf does not contain shareholder's name - legible copy of the bank passbook / bank statement
specifying the KYC details of the registered shareholder such as the name, address, bank account number etc. duly
attested by the officer of the same Bank with his signature, name, employee code, designation, bank seal & address
stamp, phone no. and date of attestation.

Forregistering Email id of registered shareholder:
Email-id of the registered shareholder to be mentioned in the KYC form attached for all future communication in
electronic mode (Go Green Initiative).

Forregistering Mobile No. of registered shareholder:
Mobile no. of registered shareholder for future direct communication.

Forregistering Nominee by the registered shareholder (if any):
Nomination (Form SH-13) is available on the website of the RTA's website www.linkintime.co.in under Resources-
Downloads-General- Nomination.

You are requested to kindly forward the KYC form duly filled in, along with copies of supporting documents for all the
“Required” remarks to the Registrar and Transfer Agents of the Company, 'Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd" at C-101, 247
Park, L.B.S. Marg, Vikhroli (West), Mumbai - 400083, Tel. +91 22 49186270; Fax: +91 22 49186000. As per SEBI
directive, enhanced due diligence procedure will be applicable if KYC requirements mentioned above are not
fulfilled.
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